Attachment #10



Attachment #10



Attachment #10



Attachment #10



Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission Meeting: 04/05/23 09:00 AM
546 Jay Street, Suite 108 Department: Community Development
Colusa, CA 95932 Category: Public Hearing
Prepared By: Melissa Kitts
SCHEDULED Initiator: Greg Plucker
Sponsors:
PLANNING COMMISSION (ID # 9002) DOC ID: 9002
Detail
Applicant: Janus Solar PV, LLC File: Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829)
General Plan: Agriculture Upland (AU) Zoning: Foothill Agriculture (F-A)
Agriculture General (AG) Exclusive Agriculture (E-A)

Formal Title / Summary

Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829)

Action Requested

Open and continue the Public Hearing on the Final Environmental Impact Report and
Use Permit for the Janus Solar Project to 9:00 a.m., May 6, 2023, Planning Commission
meeting.

DETAILED DESCRIPTION/BACKGROUND OF REQUEST

Additional public comment letters have been received and are attached to this report
for review prior to the May 6, 2023 meeting. Janus Solar PV, LLC (Applicant) has applied
for a conditional use permit to construct, operate, maintain, and decommission (in the
future) a photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility with a battery energy storage
system (BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure. The project would generate
and store up to 80 megawatts of electricity on an approximately 768 acres of a 1,024-
acre site. The proposed battery energy storage system (BESS) would extend the period
of time each day that the project could contribute the PV-generated energy to the
electrical grid. The project would connect to the existing Cortina Substation, which is
owned and operated by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 4
miles northeast of the project site by aboveground electrical lines. Contingent upon
project approval, the Board of Supervisors would consider the cancellation of the
property’s existing Wiliamson Act contract.

The County of Colusa (County), as the CEQA Lead Agency, has prepared an
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577) to document
the analysis of the potential direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts of the proposed
project.

APN:

018-050-005-000, 018-050-006-000, and 018-050-013-000

LOCATION:

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 1

Packet Pg. 6




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

The project site is located approximately 6.5 west/southwest from the City of Williams.
Access to the site is provided by Spring Valley Road and is approximately 1.64 miles to
the south of the Spring Valley Road/Walnut Drive street intersection. Please refer to
Figure 2-1 (Project Location) of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the
specific location.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

Overview

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), when a discretionary
project (such as the subject Use Permit) is submitted to the County for approval, the
County acting as the Lead Agency must determine:

(D) Whether the project is covered by either Statutory or Categorical Exemption;

2 If not exempt, if there is no possibility that the project would have the potential to
cause a significant impact, or if potential significant impacts are mitigated below
the level of significance then a Mitigated Negative Declaration can be
prepared; or

3) If there is reasonable information that the project may have a significant impact
on the environment despite any potential mitigation measures, then an
Environmental Impact report must be prepared.

When staff originally reviewed the proposed application, staff determined that given
the size and scope of the project that it was reasonable to determine that the project
could have potential significant effects upon the environment. As such, the
Community Development Department, as the CEQA Lead Agency, prepared an
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577) to document
the analysis of the potential direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts of the proposed
project.

An EIR is primarily an informational document intended to inform the public agency
decision-makers (in case of a Use Permit the Planning Commission), other responsible
agencies, and the general public of the potentially significant effects of a proposed
project. The EIR discloses all known potentially significant impacts; identifies feasible
means to minimize or mitigate those effects; and considers reasonable alternatives to
the project that might further reduce significant impacts while still attaining the project
objectives. The decision-making body then must consider the information in an EIR
before taking action on the proposed project.

An EIR is prepared in two key stages. First, a Draft EIR (DEIR) is prepared and distributed

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 2

Packet Pg. 7




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

for public and agency review. Once comments on the DEIR are received, responses to
those comments and any additional relevant project information are prepared and
compiled in a Final EIR (FEIR). Both of these documents (i.e., the DEIR and the FEIR),
along with any related technical appendices, represent the complete record of the
EIR.

Throughout this staff report, the term EIR may be used to refer to the DEIR together with
the Final EIR, Appendices, and all other studies and documents prepared as part of the
environmental review process since these documents represent the totality of the EIR
record, However, when referring to just the “Draft EIR” document, the term DEIR will be
used and when referring to just the “Final EIR” document, the term FEIR will be used.

Ultimately, the EIR is used by the agency’s decision making body to weigh the
environmental impacts against a proposed project in order to make an informed
decision. In the case of the Janus Solar Use Permit, the Planning Commission is the
decision making body for the Use Permit and the Board of Supervisors is the decision
making body for the proposed Wiliamson Act contract cancellation.

Process

In preparing the EIR, the following is a general overview of the process that has been
undertaken:

o July, 2020 the required Tribal Cultural Resources Notification of Consultation
Opportunity pursuant to Public Resources Code § 21080.3.1 was sent.

o July, 2020, the Notice of Preparation of the DEIR was sent to the State Office of
Planning and Research (OPR) for distribution to State agencies.

o October, 2021, the Notice of Availability along with the Notice of Completion for
the Janus Solar DEIR was sent to the State’s OPR which informed State
responsible agencies of the availability of the DEIR for review and started the 45-
day period for the DEIR.

o October, 2021, the Notice of Completion for the Janus Solar DEIR was also sent to
adjacent property owners, local agencies and published in the Williams Pioneer
newspaper. In addition, this notice informed the public of a neighborhood
meeting which was held in November, 2021 in order to provide an opportunity to
learn about the project and provide initial comments.

o February, 2023, the Final Environmental Impact Report was published.

Responsible agencies, surrounding property owners, and all individual and
agencies that commented on the DEIR were notified of its completion and of the

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 3

Packet Pg. 8




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

public hearing for consideration of the FEIR and Use Permit at the Planning
Commission’s March 1, 2023 meeting.

° February 9, 2023, the public hearing notice informing the public about the
Planning Commission’s consideration of the FEIR and Use Permit at its March 1,
2023 meeting was posted in the Williams Pioneer newspaper.

The EIR is now before the Planning Commission for your review and consideration as
part of proposed Janus Solar Use Permit application. Prior to acting upon the proposed
Use Permit, the Planning Commission must consider the totality of the EIR record
including any written comments received on the adequacy of the FEIR and proposed
Use Permit.

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION:

Section 2.1 (page 2-1) through Section 2.4 (page 2-20) of the DEIR contains a detailed
description of the proposed project. In general, the project consists of three major
components: a solar energy generating facility, an energy storage system, and the
generation tie-line (Figure 2-2 of the DEIR). A general overview of each componentis as
follows:

Solar Energy Generating Component

The solar energy generating component would consist of PV solar modules (also known
as panels) arranged into arrays supported by a racking system and tracker units that
track the sun. Each tracking assembly would consist of steel posts on which the frames
for the PV modules rest. Each tracker would hold PV modules mounted on this metal
framework structure and range between 6 and 13 feet above grade, depending on
the topography. The trackers are organized in rows in a uniform grid pattern or solar
array and the project would include approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple
solar arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system. The PV modules themselves
would be dark blue or black in color, with anti-reflection coating to minimize light
reflection.

The project would include a substation anticipated to be located in the northwest
portion of the project site. The substation would include a step-up transformer to
increase the output voltage from the module blocks (34.5 kV) to the voltage of the 60-
kV gen-tie line, protective relay and metering equipment, utility and customer revenue
metering, lightening arrestor, disconnect, circuit breaker and a station service
transformer that would provide power to the substation and its weatherproof control
house.

The overall footprint of the project’s on-site substation is anticipated to be

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 4

Packet Pg. 9




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

approximately three acres with gen-tie power poles up to 80 feet in height. An
emergency generator for use in the event that the regional transmission system
fails also would be at this substation; this emergency generator would provide
emergency power until the regional transmission system restores operations.

A complete description of this component is contained within Section 2.4.1.1 of the
DEIR.

Energy Storage System

The battery energy storage system (BESS) is expected to be located adjacent to the
project’s substation. Batteries would be contained within metal enclosures measuring
approximately 20 to 60 feet long, 8 to 12 feet wide, and 8 to 12 feet in height and
situated on concrete pads. The maximum combined footprint for the BESS would be
approximately 3.5 acres. Key components of the BESS include batteries and battery
storage system enclosures and controllers, converters, inverters, and transformers.

Each BESS container would contain a safety system that would be triggered
automatically when the system senses imminent fire danger. The fire safety system inside
each enclosure would shut down the unit if any hazard indicators are detected. If the
safety system detects a potential issue as detected by the smoke and temperature
sensors, the batteries would be automatically de-energized by opening the electrical
contacts, and HVAC units and fans would be shut off.

A complete description of this component is contained within Section 2.4.1.2 of the
DEIR.

Generation Tie-Line

Energy produced from the solar arrays would be collected at the project’s substation
and transmitted to the existing PG&E-owned Cortina Substation along Walnut Avenue.
In order to interconnect the project to the Cortina Substation, the Applicant would
construct a new 60 kV gen-tie line that would extend from the project’s on-site
substation about 2 miles within the County’s ROW on Spring Valley Road to reach
Walnut Drive. At Walnut Drive, the transmission line would be located within the Colusa
County road ROW for approximately 2 miles on existing, retrofitted, or new poles to the
Cortina substation. Along this route, the gen-tie line would cross the Colusa-Tehama
Canal, administered by USBR. The gen-tie line would include tubular steel poles of up to
80 feet in height. The Applicant’s gen-tie construction would terminate at the PG&E
Cortina Substation property line. At the Cortina Substation, PG&E would construct
network upgrades, interconnection facilities, and a span of transmission line that
extends from the Cortina Substation property line to the new bay station within the
existing footprint of the PG&E facility. All PG&E improvements would be constructed

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 5

Packet Pg. 10




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

within the existing Cortina Substation footprint.

A complete description of this component is contained within Sections 2.4.1.3 and
2.4.1.4 of the DEIR.

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION:

Project construction would consist of two major stages. The first stage would include site
preparation, grading, and preparing staging areas and on-site access routes. The
second stage would involve assembling the trackers and constructing electrical
interconnection facilities. It is anticipated that construction would occur during an 11-
month period and would occur primarily during daylight hours, Mondays through
Fridays 7:00 am to 7:00 pm and potentially 8:00 am to 8:00 pm on Saturdays and
Sundays. The applicant proposes potential nighttime hours if necessary for material and
equipment deliveries and/or where the schedule has been delayed due to weather or
other events. These nighttime activities would be performed with temporary lighting,
which would be directed downward to minimize impacts to neighboring properties and
wildlife in the project vicinity.

The on-site construction workforce would consist of laborers, craftspeople, supervisory
personnel, and support personnel. The on-site assembly and construction workforce is
expected to reach a peak of approximately 200 workers; the average number of
workers on-site is anticipated to be approximately 50 to 150. On average, itis
anticipated that 25 percent of worker trips to the site would be in carpools. Workers
would commute to the site from nearby communities and given the number of workers
required it is anticipated that some would travel from more-distant areas in the
Sacramento Valley area.

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (DEIR) SUMMARY:

As previously discussed, a DEIR or the project has been prepared pursuant to the
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. Detailed information about
the project’s potential impacts are contained with the DEIR documents. The following is
an overview of the issues considered in the DEIR:

Section 4.1 Agriculture and Forestry Resources

The project site largely consists of grazing land with some areas used for dryland crop
production and has been classified as Farmland of Local Importance under the
California Department of Conservation’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program.
The entirety of the project site is included in a Willamson Act contract. The applicant
has filed a Petition for Cancellation of Contract for the Wiliamson Act contract. In
order to cancel the contract, the County must find (1) that other public concerns

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 6

Packet Pg. 11




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

outweigh the objectives of the Wiliamson Act and (2) that there is no proximate
noncontracted land that is both available and suitable for the proposed use or that
development of the contracted land would provide more contiguous patterns of urban
development (Government Code Section 51282(c)).

As stated in the EIR, development of the proposed solar facility is in the public interest in
order to address the State’s goal of generating emissions-free electricity energy. The
proposed project would assist the State of California in achieving its goal of providing
electricity 100 percent GHG emissions free by 2045. The subject property is not prime
farmland and its conversion would not have a significant adverse effect on agricultural
resources.

Mitigation Measure AGR-1 requires the Applicant to file a Petition for Cancellation of
Contract for the Wiliamson Act contract on the project site and approval of the
Petition for Cancellation would be required prior to development of the project. With
incorporation of this mitigation measure, the EIR determined that impacts to agricultural
resources were reduced to a level that is less than significant.

Section 4.2 Air Quality

Air pollutant emissions associated with the project would occur over the short term from
construction related activities including equipment exhaust, vehicle travel on paved
and unpaved roads, and fugitive dust from soil disturbance activities. Construction
activities would produce combustion emissions from construction equipment engines
and motor vehicles transporting the construction crew, equipment, and materials.
Exhaust emissions from construction activities would vary daily as activity levels change.

Once constructed, the project would operate seven days per week and 365 days per
year. Only occasional, on-site maintenance is expected to be required following
commissioning. Operations and maintenance activities would require up to three
workers performing visual inspections, monitoring plant performance, executing minor
repairs, and responding to needs for plant adjustment.

An air quality analysis report (Appendix “C” of the DIER) has been prepared to evaluate
potential air quality and greenhouse gas (GHG) impacts associated with the proposed
solar project. As detailed, during construction, unmitigated NOx emissions would
exceed the BCAQMD daily and annual significance thresholds. However, mitigated
NOX emissions would fall below the BCAQMD significance thresholds. Both unmitigated
and mitigated ROG emissions are below the annual threshold of significance. Both
unmitigated and mitigated PM10 emissions are below the daily threshold of
significance.

Unmitigated and mitigated daily operational emissions are below significance

thresholds for all pollutants. During the longer-term operational phase, the project
would have routine inspection and maintenance activities that would result in a net

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 7

3.1

Packet Pg. 12




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

increase in emissions although, the increase in emissions would not exceed any
significance threshold. Construction and operational emissions are summarized in Tables
7, 8, and 9 of Appendix “C”.

The mitigation measures that have been included require that during construction of
the project, all disturbed areas including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and
unpaved roads shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible
covered and enclosed by the construction contractor. Materials transported offsite
shall be wetted and covered securely and at least 2 feet of freeboard maintained. In
addition, traffic speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 miles per hour and
construction activities shall be curtailed when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds
150.

In addition, a dust suppressant will be required to be applied to Spring Valley Road, the
unpaved road accessing the site, before and during the construction period as needed
to reduce dust associated with truck traffic. During anticipated peak truck trip periods
of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries, a traffic control flagger shall be present on
Spring Valley Road and shall enforce a 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles
on unpaved roads, and shall monitor and log dust conditions. Additional long term dust
control measures are also required.

During construction, diesel particulate filters or other CARB-verified diesel emission
control strategies shall be installed on construction equipment. All on- and off-road
diesel equipment shall not idle for more than 5 minutes. Signs shall be posted in the
designated queuing areas and/or job sites to remind drivers and operators of the 5-
minute idling limit. All construction equipment shall be maintained in proper tune
according to the manufacturer’s specifications. EQuipment must be checked and
determined to be running in proper condition before the start of work. Idling, staging
and queuing of diesel equipment within 1,000 feet of sensitive receptors shall be limited.

With incorporation of these mitigation measures, the EIR determined that impacts to air
quality are less than significant.

Section 4.3 Aesthetics

Although some portion of the project site may be visible from a relatively large area,
the degree of visibility would depend on distance and view angle. Generally, the
project site would be most visible from viewpoints within 1 mile, while site visibility would
diminish as distance increases and view angle decreases. Air quality, including dust and
other visible particulates, can affect visibility in the area. Distance is only one of the
factors that determine visibility of a site from a viewpoint. Terrain, vegetation, and
structural features can obscure views that might otherwise be available at a certain
distance.

In order to evaluate the potential visual impact of the project, a Visual Impact

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 8

3.1

Packet Pg. 13




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

Assessment was prepared to identify and evaluate the potential visual and aesthetic
impacts associated with construction and operation of the project (Appendix “D” of
the DEIR). Potential visual impacts were characterized by determining the level of visual
contrast introduced by the project based on comparing existing conditions and photo
simulations. Visual contrast is a means to evaluate the level of modification to existing
landscape features. Existing landscape is defined by the visual characteristics (form,
line, color, and texture) associated with the landform (including water), vegetation,
and existing development. The level of visual contrast introduced by a project can be
measured by changes in the visual characteristics that would occur because of project
implementation. The greater the difference between the character elements found
within the existing landscape and with a proposed project, the more apparent the level
of visual contrast.

In the visual impact analysis Key Observation Points (KOPs) were identified based on
locations from which the project infrastructure would potentially be visible and
noticeable to the casual observer. The “casual observer” is considered an observer
who is not actively looking or searching for the project, but who is engaged in activities
at locations with potential views of the project, such as hiking or driving along a scenic
road. If the project infrastructure is not noticeable to the casual observer, visual impacts
can be considered minor to negligible.

Based on the visual impact analysis, the EIR determined that project impacts to
aesthetics would be less than significant, and no mitigation measures were required.

Section 4.4 Biological Resources

The project site is located in northern California within the Sacramento Valley Subregion
of the Great Central Valley Region. This region experiences hot, dry summers, mild
winters, and annual rainfall averaging between roughly 5 and 25 inches. Elevation at
the project site ranges from approximately 144 to 331 feet. The project site currently
supports cattle grazing and grain cultivation. Vegetation on the project site includes
non-native grassland, cultivated grain fields, low growing herbaceous plants, and
disturbed riparian areas and drainages with sparse native and non-native trees, as well
as non-native cultivated tree rows along the proposed gen-tie line. Wetlands and
standing water also occur in small areas on the project site

Vegetation communities of the project were mapped within the Biological Survey Area
(BSA) during the surveys, which is defined as the project site and 150-meter buffer. No
CDFW sensitive natural communities were found. All vegetated areas of the project site
have previously been or are currently being used for grazing and/or cultivation of
common wheat.

The proposed project site supports an assortment of plants and wildlife and provides

shelter, cover, roosting, foraging, and breeding habitats to mammals, birds,
invertebrates, reptiles, and amphibians as year-round residents, seasonal residents,

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 9

Packet Pg. 14




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

and/or migrants. Overall, the project site supports low quality wildlife habitat since it is
disturbed by cattle grazing and grain cultivation and lacks complex vegetation
communities. During the 2019, 2020, and 2021 field surveys, 93 native and non-native
plant species, six mammals, 35 birds, six invertebrates, three reptiles, and two amphibian
species were recorded within the BSA.

To evaluate the potential impacts, a habitat characterization report was prepared
(Appendix “E1” of the DEIR), a biolocifcal survey report was prepared (Appendix “E2” of
the DEIR, and a Burrowing Owl Report was prepared (Appenix “E3” of the DEIR).

The EIR identified potential impacts to the following plant and animal species: Parry’s
rough tarplant, burrowing owl, Swainson’s hawk, and American badger. Mitigation
measures, including project site pre-construction surveys for the species, have been
incorporated into the project to address potential impacts to these species. In
addition, mitigation measures including Worker Environmental Awareness Training, Best
Management Practices for Biological Resources including limiting the areas of
disturbance, flagging sensitive habitats including riparian areas and state and federally
protected wetlands, covering excavated holes and trenches with plywood at the end
of the work day, and enforcement of a maximum speed limit of 20 miles per hour will
also be required. Finally, during the nesting bird breeding season (February 1 to August
31), a qualified biologist shall conduct preconstruction surveys of all potential nesting
habitat within the project site where construction is planned.

With incorporation of these mitigation measures, impacts to biological resources were
defined as being reduced to a level that is less than significant.

Section 4.5 Cultural Resources

The construction of the proposed project is not anticipated to impact historic or unique
resources. Based on the background studies and the Phase | field survey, there are no
known resources found in the project area or within the transmission line corridor that
meet CEQA’s definition of a historical resource or unique resource.

Construction activities related to trenching, excavating and grading could potentially
impact previously unidentified, buried archaeological resources. To address this
impact, prior to project construction related to ground disturbing activities (e.g.,
vegetation removal, excavation, trenching, grading), the project proponent would
conduct a worker education awareness program for project construction personnel. A
qualified archaeologist will be retained for the project and will prepare and present the
initial cultural resource briefing of the worker education awareness program prior to
ground disturbing activities.

In addition, a qualified archaeologist would be retained to prepare an Inadvertent

Discovery Plan for the project and to be on-call in the event of an inadvertent
discovery. The Inadvertent Discovery Plan will provide protocols and notification

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 10

3.1

Packet Pg. 15




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

procedures in the event of an inadvertent discovery. During project construction,
should subsurface archaeological resources be discovered, all ground disturbing
activities within 50 feet of the find would cease and the qualified archaeologist would
be contacted to assess the significance of the find according to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15064.5 and/or NRHP criteria (as applicable).

The County and Applicant would continue to consult with interested tribes throughout
the planning process and construction of the project, as applicable. A tribal monitor
from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation (or other local tribe as available) would be notified
to participate in monitoring of visibly exposed, excavated subsurface soils associated
with ground-disturbing construction activities. At the completion of construction, a final
monitoring report would be prepared for the project that summarizes the daily
monitoring activities and resolution of any inadvertent discoveries identified during
construction of the project. With these mitigation measures required, the DEIR
determined that the impacts to cultural resources are less than significant.

Section 4.6 Energy

California’s Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) Program was enacted in 2002 and
accelerated in 2006, requiring investor-owned utilities to obtain 20 percent of their
electric supply from renewable energy sources, such as solar, by 2010. On April 12, 2011,
Governor Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 2X, requiring California retail electric providers,
such as PG&E, to procure 33 percent of their retail energy sales from eligible renewable
sources by 2020. In October 2015, Governor Brown signed into legislation SB 350, which
requires retail sellers and publicly owned utilities to procure 50 percent of their electricity
from eligible renewable energy resources by 2030. On September 10, 2018, Governor
Brown signed SB 100, establishing that 100 percent of all electricity in California must be
obtained from renewable and zero-carbon energy resources by December 31, 2045.

The project would assist the state of California in achieving or exceeding its RPS and
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reduction objectives by developing and constructing
a new California RPS-qualified 80 MW solar power generating facility. Potential impacts
to energy have been determined to be less than significant by the DEIR and that no
mitigation measures are required.

Section 4.7 Geology, Soils and Paleontological Resources

The surface geologic unit mapped within the project site is Plio-Pleistocene alluvium
(QPc). This unit is assessed as having moderate paleontological sensitivity and therefore,
a moderate probability of containing fossils. The local geologic unit that
stratigraphically underlies the QPc surface unit is Cretaceous sedimentary rock (Ku),
which also is considered to have moderate (though little known) paleontological
sensitivity. This unit has contained fossils at other locations, including one that is only 3
miles from the project site.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 11

3.1

Packet Pg. 16




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

To address potential impacts, prior to construction activities on-site personnel would be
trained in basic recognition of fossils and appropriate procedures to notify
management in order to engage a qualified paleontological specialist in the event
that fossils are discovered during construction activities. In addition, a qualified
paleontological specialist would be retained on an on-call status, to be brought on-site
to evaluate the significance of any unanticipated discovery of paleontological
resources and determine if additional study is warranted. With these mitigation
measures required, the DEIR determined that the impacts to geology and soils are less
than significant.

Section 4.8 Greenhouse Gases

Construction of the project would increase greenhouse gas (GHG) generation, which
can contribute to global climate change. The project will also decrease GHG emissions
by providing renewable power.

Construction emissions would be associated with vehicle engine exhaust from
construction equipment and vehicles, equipment and material deliveries, and
construction worker commuting trips. Construction-related GHG emissions are
considered temporary and short term.

While GHG would be generated from construction and occasional operation and
maintenance activities, the project would result in a net reduction in GHG from the
production of solar energy that would potentially replace energy generated by fossil
fuels. The project would assist in the attainment of the State’s goals by using a
renewable source of energy that could displace electricity generated by fossil-fuel-fired
power plants, and therefore would comply with the goals and objectives of the State.

Potential impacts to greenhouse gases have been determined by the DEIR to be less
than significant and no mitigation measures are required.

Section 4.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

The project would not involve the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous
materials, as defined by the Hazardous Materials Transport Uniform Safety Act. The
majority of the waste generated during construction would be non-hazardous, and
consist primarily of cardboard, wood pallets, wire, scrap metal, common trash, and
wood wire spools. Most construction waste would be disposed of at a non-hazardous
landfill or at a recycling facility whenever feasible. Construction would generate an
average of approximately 20 cubic yards of non-hazardous solid waste per week over
the period of construction. Sanitary waste would be managed using portable toilets
and hauled for off-site disposal.

During construction of the project, diesel and gasoline fuels and other hazardous
materials such as oils, solvents, hydraulic fluids, and paints commonly associated with

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 12

Packet Pg. 17




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

construction equipment may be stored on-site. These materials would be stored and
handled in a manner to prevent accidental release, i.e., consistent with the hazardous
materials handling Best Management Practices (BMP) and other measures contained
within the required Stormwater Pollutions Prevention Plan (SWPPP), which would require
them to be stored within locked aboveground containers with secondary containment.

With these protections in place, potential impacts to hazards and hazardous materials
have been determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation
measures are required.

Section 4.10 Hydrology and Water Quality

The portions of the project site that would be disturbed for construction are relatively
flat, with little potential for any concentrated runoff to occur. Construction would
involve the use of bulldozers, graders, semi-trucks, and various other types of heavy
equipment for vegetation removal, grubbing, grading, and installation of roads and
other facilities. These construction activities would involve minor changes to on-site
topography; however, these activities would potentially loosen existing surface soils and
sediments, increasing the potential for erosion during storm events. Water used for dust
suppression also has the potential to generate runoff that could transport sediments
and dissolved solids. The use of construction equipment on-site may involve the
accidental release of fuel, oils, brake dust, lubricants, antifreeze, and other potentially
hazardous substances at the project construction site. These water quality pollutants
could be delivered to surface water bodies during storm events, and/or be infiltrated
into groundwater and the underlying aquifer, resulting in the degradation of water
quality.

The project will be subject to compliance with the NPDES General Permit for Stormwater
Discharge Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Construction
General Permit). The Construction General Permit would include development and
implementation of a SWPPP. The objectives of a SWPPP are to identify pollutant sources
that may be delivered off-site (in the form of runoff) and affect the quality of
stormwater discharge; to implement site controls and practices to reduce stormwater
pollution; and to protect water quality of receiving waters. The SWPPP would include
site-specific BMPs to minimize erosion on-site and reduce or otherwise prevent
conditions of erosion and stormwater runoff.

Diesel and gasoline fuels and other hazardous materials such as oils, solvents, hydraulic
fluids, and paints commonly associated with construction equipment would be stored
and handled in a manner to prevent accidental release, i.e., consistent with the
hazardous materials handling BMPs, Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure Plan,
and other measures contained within the required SWPPP.

With implementation of the General Construction Permit conditions, including the
preparation and implementation of a SWPPP, Spill Prevention, Control, and

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 13

3.1

Packet Pg. 18




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

Countermeasure Plan, and associated BMPs, potential impacts to hydrology and water
quality have been determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation
measures are required.

Section 4.11 Land Use and Planning

The project site is on three parcels of private land that total approximately 1,024 acres
and is currently operated as a cattle ranch. To avoid environmental constraints,
approximately 768 acres of the 1,024-acre site would be used for the project. The
project site is surrounded by rural residential, agricultural fields, and undeveloped land.
Spring Valley Road runs through the project site from north to south. The gen-tie line
follows Spring Valley Road north to Walnut Drive at which point it follows Walnut Drive to
PG&E’s Cortina substation. The nearest community to the project site is the city of
Williams, which is located approximately 6.5 miles northeast. The project site lies within
the County’s jurisdiction and land uses on the project site are governed by the County’s
General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.

The project would not physically divide an established community as the construction,
operation, and decommissioning phases of the project do not propose any features
that would create a physical barrier that would hinder existing community access.
Additionally, the project would not involve the removal of any existing publicly used
means of access. Therefore, the project would not physically divide an established
community.

The project site is zoned Foothill Agriculture (F-A) and Exclusive Agriculture (E-A). These
zone districts allow for commercial scale solar facility projects through the Use Permit
process, as described in Zoning Code §44-2.20.30. Compliance with conditions of
approval for the Use Permit will ensure the project will not conflict with the underlying F-
A and E-A zones. Potential impacts to land use and planning have been determined by
the DIER to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are required.

Section 4.12 Mineral Resources

Based on the geologic setting, the only mineral resources with the potential to occur
near the project site are aggregate resources. Alluvial geologic units in the region are
potential sources of sand and gravel that could have value as a mineral resource
commodity. Because sand and gravel are low-value, high-volume resources, the
economic value and feasibility of developing them is predicated on the existence of
high local demand from the construction industry. The closest gravel mine is Lovelady
Ranch, which has been closed for a number of years, approximately 20 miles northwest
of the project site.

There are no active mining claims within the project site, nor is there any locatable

mineral activity within the project site boundary. Based on the geological environment
and historical trends, the potential for occurrence of locatable minerals is low within the

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 14

Packet Pg. 19




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

surrounding area. However, none of these resources occurs within 30 miles of the
project site and they are unlikely to be found within the geologic units that underlie the
site or surrounding area. Potential impacts to mineral resources have been determined
by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are required.

Section 4.13 Noise

The project site is surrounded by rural residential, agricultural fields, and undeveloped
land. The nearest residential properties are located directly adjacent to the southern
project boundary and the northwestern project boundary, while a mixed
residential/agricultural property is located directly adjacent to the northern project
boundary. Spring Valley Road runs through the project site from north to south. The
gen-tie line follows Spring Valley Road north to Walnut Drive at which point it follows
Walnut Drive to PG&E’s Cortina substation.

Human response to noise varies considerably from one individual to another. Effects of
noise at various levels can include interference with sleep, concentration, and
communication, and can cause physiological and psychological stress and hearing
loss. Given these effects, some land uses are considered more sensitive to ambient
noise levels than others. In general, residences, schools, hotels, hospitals, and nursing
homes are considered to be the most sensitive to noise. These locations are referred to
as noise sensitive areas (NSAs). Places such as churches, libraries, and cemeteries,
where people tend to pray, study, and/or contemplate also are NSAs. Commercial and
industrial uses are considered the least noise sensitive. As shown in Figure 4.13-1 of the
DEIR, there are multiple residences near the project site.

Construction of the project will occur over approximately 11 months and has the
potential to generate noise impacts from construction equipment and related activities
to surrounding properties and residences. Construction of the project may cause short-
term, but unavoidable noise impacts that could be loud enough at times to temporarily
interfere with speech communication outdoors and indoors with windows closed at two
of the neighboring residences, and with windows open at two other residences. The
noise levels resulting from the construction activities would vary significantly depending
on several factors such as the type and age of equipment, specific equipment
manufacture and model, the operations being performed, and the overall condition of
the equipment and exhaust system mufflers.

As proposed, project construction would occur between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m.,
Monday through Friday, and between 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m., Saturday and Sunday in
compliance with Section 13-8 of the County Code. Once the project is constructed
and operational, the primary noise sources are the inverters, transformers, battery
storage heating, ventilation, air conditioning (HVAC) units, and battery storage
inverters. Noise from normal operations is not anticipated to be significant.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 15

Packet Pg. 20




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

To address potential noise impacts during construction, the project will be required to
implement construction management protocols which include: maintain all
construction tools and equipment in good operating order according to
manufacturers’ specifications; limit use of major excavating and earth-moving
machinery to daytime hours; to the extent practicable, schedule construction activity
during normal working hours on weekdays when higher sound levels are typically
present and are found acceptable; equip any internal combustion engine used for any
purpose on the job or related to the job with a properly operating muffler that is free
from rust, holes, and leaks; limit possible evening shift work to low noise activities such as
welding, wire pulling, and other similar activities; and utilize a Complaint Resolution
Procedure to address any noise complaints received from residents. With these
mitigation measures required, the DEIR determined that noise impacts will be less than
significant.

Although the DEIR has determined that noise levels would not be a significant impact
and comply with the County Code, County staff believes that through the Use Permit
restrictions a condition should be added that limits the import or export of materials and
heavy equipment to just Monday through Friday and that on-site construction hours on
weekends should be limited to 8:00 a.m. though 5 p.m.

Section 4.14 Population and Housing

The project site is located approximately 6.5 miles southwest of the city of Williams. It is
reasonable to assume that construction workers may drive approximately 50 miles to
the project site during construction, operation, or decommissioning from the
surrounding counties of Butte, Glenn, Lake, Sutter, and Yolo. In 2019, Colusa County
had an estimated population of 21,547 representing an approximate 0.7 percent
increase from the 2010 population of 21,419. The city of Wiliams had a higher rate of
growth during the 2010-2019 period, but its actual growth was only 314 persons. The city
of Colusa had an estimated population of 6,060 in 2019, an approximate 2.6 percent
decrease from 2010.

In 2020, Colusa County had an estimated 8,227 housing units with a vacancy rate of 6.7
percent such that there were 716 vacant housing units. The number of households is
expected to increase by 7 percent in Colusa County over the period from 2020-2028.
The County is expected to increase housing by 526 units between 2019 and 2028.

The projectis not anticipated to increase the need for additional housing units as
workers would be expected to commute to the site from local and regional towns and
cities, rather than relocate. Therefore, construction, operation, and decommissioning of
the project is not expected to require substantial numbers of new housing units.
Potential impacts to population and housing have been determined by the DEIR to be
less than significant and no mitigation measures are required.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 16

Packet Pg. 21




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

Section 4.15 Public Services

The Williams Fire Protection Authority will provide fire services to the project site. The fire
station is located in the city of Williams and is approximately 7 miles from the project
site. The project will be designed in compliance with federal, state, and local worker
safety and protection codes and regulations which will minimize the potential for the
occurrence of fire.

Project maintenance and operation may introduce potential ignition sources such as
transformers, electric transmission line (including gen-tie inline), substations,
maintenance vehicles, and gas/electric-powered machinery. The proposed inverters
and photovoltaic arrays may also be identified as a potential ignition source. However,
the potential fire risk is low for these project components. All battery components for the
battery energy storage system would be installed on concrete pads and contained
within an enclosure to minimize the potential for sparks or ignition. All such enclosures
would be equipped with a fire suppression system.

A Battery Storage Fire Management Plan is also required to be submitted to the Williams
Fire Authority for review and approval. This mitigation measure requires the battery
containers to receive a UL 9540 certification. If a UL 9540 certification cannot be
provided, a Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory, approved by the Wiliams Fire
Authority and qualified to conduct the field testing, would conduct a field evaluation of
one typical system utilizing the field evaluation procedures detailed by that testing
laboratory, as approved by the Williams Fire Authority. Upon passing the field test, the
testing laboratory would provide a label certifying that the system has been evaluated
to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds these standards.

In addition, a Wildland Fire Management Plan is required to be submitted to the
Williams Fire Authority. The Plan would detail implementation measures to control and
maintain the vegetation throughout the project site to eliminate wildland fire hazards.

To encourage and incentivize the construction of commercial solar projects, the State
of California has passed legislation which excludes properties developed with
commercial solar facilities from paying increased property taxes that would normally be
generated by physical improvements. This loss of additional property tax revenue has
the potential to financially impact both the County and public service providers (i.e. fire
protection, sheriff, parks and recreation, etc.). To address this impact, a mitigation
measure is included which requires the project proponents to enter into a Public Service
Mitigation Agreement with the County.

The Agreement will require the payment of a Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) to the
County each year for the life of the project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years
until the project is decommissioned, the site restored, and the Use Permit is no longer
activated (voided) by the County. The PSMF is a total of $110,000 which is paid directly
to the County for unrestricted County General Fund uses. In addition, a $15,000

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 17

Packet Pg. 22




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

payment would be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, a $15,000
payment would be paid to the City of Williams to be used to support activities in the
Wiliams Park and Recreation Department, and a $15,000 payment would be paid to
the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.

With these mitigation measures, the DEIR has determined that impacts to Public
Services will be less than significant.

Section 4.16 Recreation

Increases in use of recreational facilities typically are associated with substantial
increases in population or a substantial reduction in the availability of existing parks or
other recreational facilities. The project site is not located within or adjacent to a
residential area, or within the immediate vicinity of any parks or recreational facilities,
and there no parks or existing recreational facilities located on the site. No residential
facilities are proposed as part of the project. However, as previously discussed to offset
any short-term or long-term impacts to the area’s recreation districts, a PSMF would be
paid for the life of the project.

Section 4.17 Transportation

State Route (SR) 20 runs as close as 1 mile from the project site, to the north and west.
Interstate 5 runs north to south, approximately 7.2 miles east of the project site. The
western portion of the site is intersected by Spring Valley Road, an undivided, two-lane
County road. Walnut Drive, also a two-lane, undivided County road, provides access
from Spring Valley Road to State Route 20 north of the project site.

Due to the site’s rural location, current traffic on the roads immediately adjacent to the
project is light. The Caltrans data available for Colusa County includes I-5 and SR 20. |-5
included 30,800 vehicles per day, and SR 20 included 5,900 vehicles per day within
Colusa County. Near the project location the roads are rural without dedicated turn
lanes. The existing traffic is expected to be light, and based on experience with similar
projects, rural roads like these are estimated to have between 500 and 800 vehicles per
day, or less than 100 vehicles during peak hour.

Spring Valley Road is a two-lane undivided County road that provides access from the
site via Walnut Drive to SR 20. Most vehicle trips generated by the project would travel
through the intersection of Spring Valley Road and Walnut Drive to get to the project
site. Travelers from Colusa and Williams would be expected to access the site from SR
20 via East Camp Road, to Beauchamp Road, which transitions to Walnut Drive. There
are no dedicated turn lanes onto or off of Spring Valley Road or Walnut Drive in the
vicinity of the project site. Average annual daily traffic and peak hour volumes on
Spring Valley Road and Walnut Drive are not available.

Peak hours for traffic generated by the project are expected to be daily between 6:00

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 18

3.1

Packet Pg. 23




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

a.m. and 7:00 a.m. and between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m., when construction workers
would commute to and from the project site. It is expected that nearly all workers
would arrive and leave during the peak hours. Conservatively, a small number of
workers are included as either leaving during the morning peak hour or arriving during
the evening peak hour.

Once constructed, the project would operate 7 days per week and 365 days per year.
Only occasional, on-site maintenance is expected to be needed following
commissioning. Initially, personnel would likely visit the project site daily or weekly, but it
is anticipated that eventually maintenance visits would be reduced to once a month or
less, such that facility operations would generate little traffic.

Operation and maintenance activities would require up to three workers performing
visual inspections, monitoring plant performance, executing minor repairs, and
responding to needs for plant adjustment. On intermittent occasions, the presence of 5
to 30 workers may be required for repairs or replacement of equipment, panel
cleaning, and other specialized maintenance. Due to the infrequent operations and
maintenance waorker trips to the site, there would be no impact to peak hour traffic
associated with ongoing operations of the project.

Construction of the project has the potential to damage area roads. The applicant will
be required to conduct both pre-project and post-project inspections of construction
access routes approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director that are used
during construction of the project. Damage determined to have been caused by
project construction would be repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.
With this mitigation measure required, the DEIR has determined that the project would
have less than a significant impact.

Section 4.18 Tribal Cultural Resources

The project area and surrounding region is within the ancestral territory of the Patwin
band of the Southern Wintun people. An ethnographic review of tribal cultural
resources was performed and review of available ethnographic documents. In
addition, AB 52 tribal notification consultation letters were sent out to tribes.

Construction activities related to the project has the potential to impact tribal cultural
resources. Implementation of the three previously discussed Cultural Resources
mitigation measures (Cultural Resource Worker Education/Training), Inadvertent
Discovery of Archaeological Resources During Construction, and Native American
Tribal Consultation and Monitoring, will also ensure that tribal resources are
appropriately addressed, therefore, reducing any potential impacts to less than
significant.

Section 4.19 Utilities and Service Systems

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 19

Packet Pg. 24




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

The relevant utility or service systems for the project are the water supply, wastewater,
stormwater, solid waste disposal, gas and electrical, and telecommunication utilities
that would provide service to the project site.

Current water facilities on-site are one hand dug well and several manmade reservoirs
currently used to water the land for cattle grazing. The city of Wiliams is the purveyor of
a public water system located approximately 11.4 miles from the project site. The City
has indicated that it can provide water for the project through a fire hydrant located at
180 N. Virginia Way in the city of Williams. Water obtained from the fire hydrant would
be trucked to the project site.

The DEIR determined that the project would primarily require water during construction
for dust control and that total water volume that would be used during construction
was 46 acre-feet (approximately 15,000,000 total gallons). However, as previously
discussed dust suppressant would be used on Spring Valley Road. Not only would this
reduce dust levels, but it would reduce the number of water trucks and amount of
water necessary to control the dust on Spring Valley Road.

During operation and maintenance, water would be used for panel washing and
maintenance. The expected annual water consumption during operation would be
approximately 1 acre-foot per year (approximately 326,000 gallons). No new wells
would be constructed as part of the project. The proposed project would not require or
result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water treatment facilities.
Due to the relatively low amount of water used during the construction and operation
of the life of the project, it is anticipated that the project would have sufficient water
supplies during normal, dry, and multiple dry years.

The proposed project would not require permanent wastewater treatment connection
due to the small number of employees during operation. Portable toilets would be on-
site for permanent employees. Portable units would be provided for workers during
construction. Removal of the portable units would not affect the operation or function
of wastewater facilities that are located on or adjacent to the project.

No on-site stormwater detention facilities are planned nor would the project require the
construction or relocation of stormwater drainage facilities. The project has been
designed so that site drainage would continue to follow the natural drainage pattern.
None of the project facilities would prevent stormwater flow. Site preparation and
construction activities would be performed in accordance with a SWPPP, or similar plan
as appropriate, which incorporates stormwater BMPs to reduce the adverse effects of
erosion and sedimentation.

Based on this information, potential impacts to utilities and service systems have been

determined by the DEIR to be less than significant and no mitigation measures are
required.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 20

Packet Pg. 25




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

Section 4.20 Wildfire

The primary fire protection services in the vicinity of the project site are provided by the
Williams Fire Protection Authority (WFPA). The WFPA’s service area encompasses
approximately 135 square miles in the City of Wiliams and the surrounding
unincorporated area. The WFPA provides a full range of emergency response services,
which include structural, wildland, and confined space fire suppression, basic response
to hazardous materials incidents, and basic life support medical services.

As previously discussed a series of fire management plans are required to mitigate
potential fire risks, including wildland fire risks. With these mitigation measures and
review and approval required by the Williams Fire Authority, potential wildfire impacts
are less than significant.

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (FEIR) SUMMARY:

The 45-day public review period for the DEIR began with the filing of the Notice of
Completion (NOC) on October 14, 2021 with the Governor’s Office of Planning and
Research and ended on November 29, 2021. In addition, notices were mailed directly
to property owner’s in the vicinity and published in the Williams Pioneer informing the
public of the opportunity to review the DEIR, the public review time period, and that a
public meeting had been scheduled for November 4, 2021 at Granzella’s Conference
Room to introduce the project and provide an early opportunity to provide initial
comments.

Upon conclusion of the public review period, nine comments were received from seven
property owners and their representative and two State agencies. Since that time,
County staff, the EIR consultant, and the applicant have worked on addressing the
submitted comments, performed additional analysis and studies, and incorporated a
series of revisions. The totality of this effort represents the FEIR document which is
attached to this staff report. The FEIR provides an analysis and response to each of the
issues identified in the submitted comments. Because several comments contained the
same issues, there is some duplication of the FEIR responses.

The totality of the comments (including from State agencies) and responses thereto in
the FEIR must be fully reviewed and considered. In order to provide an overview of the
identified issues contained within the submitted comments by the general public, a
summary has been developed as detailed below. Please note that this is a generalized
summary of comments submitted by the general public for informational purposes and
the formal responses contained with the FEIR are required to be fully considered prior to
action on the project.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 21

Packet Pg. 26




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023
1.) Traffic
a. Spring Valley Road: The entrance to the project site is Spring Valley Road, a

gravel County Road. A concern has been raised that construction traffic would
negatively impact the road and the resultant dust could negatively impact the
production and health of the adjacent orchards.

In June 2022, a field study was conducted to observe the degree of effectiveness of the
dust suppressant that has been historically used by private landowners on unpaved,
rural County roads adjacent to orchards. A liquid magnesium chloride dust suppressant
commercially known as “Dust-Off” was applied to a portion of King Road, an unpaved
roadway in rural Colusa County which borders existing orchards. In addition, a section
of the roadway was also left untreated so that a direct comparison could be made
between the treated roadway and the untreated roadway. A semi-truck with a loaded
travel trailer traveled along the treated and untreated road at speeds of 15 MPH, 25
MPH, and 40 MPH.

As shown in the photographs of Appendix “C”, the application of dust suppressant was
extremely effective in mitigating dust generation at all speeds. This observation is
consistent with field observations of the Road Department staff where Dust-Off has
been historically applied on County Roads to control dust and prevent it from
impacting adjacent crops. However, in order to ensure dust is not created, Mitigation
Measure AQ-1 has been developed which includes a number of requirement including:
(1) that the applicant apply the dust suppressant per County standards prior to and
during construction as necessary to prevent dust; (2) construction traffic speed on
Spring Valley Road be limited to 15 MPH; (3) during peak travels periods a traffic control
flagger will be present on Spring Valley Road to enforce the 15 MPH speed limit and
monitor and log dust conditions; and (4) each day during construction, the construction
contractor shall keep a daily log of dust and weather conditions. In addition, prior to
the application of the dust suppressant, Spring Valley Road will be graded to ensure a
flat uniform surface.

In addition to this requirement, before and during construction an additional mitigation
measure (AQ-3: Long-Term Dust Control) has been developed which requires the
applicant to apply the dust suppressant once a year (generally in late spring) to ensure
that dust generated by the applicant’s operational traffic and other local traffic does
not impact the surrounding orchards. The timing and rate of application of the dust
suppressant is required to be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

b) Road Conditions: A concern has been expressed that the area roadways are
not adequate to support the proposed construction traffic and may be damaged
because of this traffic.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 22

3.1

Packet Pg. 27




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

The area roadways are currently heavily impacted by existing agriculturally related
trucking operations. The proposed construction traffic will be of limited term and is not
expected to negatively impact the existing roads in the area. However, as discussed in
the FEIR, to ensure that any impacts to the areas roadways are fully mitigated,
Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been developed which requires that a pre-project
inspection and a post-project inspection of road conditions be conducted in
consultation with the Public Works Director to ensure that access roads are not
negatively impacted by the additional traffic associated with the project. If the Public
Works Director determines that construction related traffic has damaged County
roadways, the applicant is required to fix this damage.

C) Safety Concerns: A concern was expressed about traffic safety at both the
intersection of Highway 20 and East Camp Road and Highway 20 and Walnut
Drive where there are no turn lanes.

As detailed in the FEIR, the Transportation Injury Mapping System (TIMS) data was
reviewed for the years 2015 through 2020 (the last year which data was available).
During those 5 years, 7 accidents were reported within 2 miles of the project site, which
includes: 2 accidents where driver or passenger had a complaint of pain, 3 minor
injuries, 1 serious injury accident, and 1 fatality. Construction traffic will access the
project site from Highway 20 and East Camp Road. Three of the accidents recorded
between 2015 and 2020 occurred at the intersection of Highway 20 and East Camp
Road, including one minor injury accident in 2019 and two minor accidents with
complaints of pain in 2015 and 2016. These accidents appear to be the result of non-
attentiveness of the drivers as the line of sight on Highway 20 at East Camp Road is
approximately 1 mile in length, and the project traffic itself is not anticipated to
contribute to a greater accident rate.

However, to bring added awareness of project related construction traffic to motorists,
a condition of the Use Permit requires that the applicant install construction traffic
warning signage along Highway 20 as required by Caltrans and along county roads as
required by the Public Works Director.

2) Economic Impact

Lack of Tax Revenue: A concern has been raised that the project would generate little
tax revenue to off-set the cost of public services.

Unlike many other businesses in California, portions of solar development can be
excluded from property taxes per State law. This property tax exclusion results in solar
projects not providing the tax revenue needed to offset public services that they may
require. CEQA requires an analysis of physical impacts to the environment from a

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 23

Packet Pg. 28




Attachment #10
Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

project; it does not require analysis of social and economic impacts. Under CEQA, “an
economic or social change by itself is not be considered a significant effect on the
environment”. However, Community Development Department staff believes that
potential economic impacts that may result in County service constraints must be fully
considered in the review of any project so that all aspects of the project are fully
evaluated. In order to review the projects potential fiscal impacts, the County
commissioned an economic impact analysis.

As detailed in the Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis dated January 9, 2023
(Attachment #1):

a) The construction of the project is anticipated to generate $15.9 million in onetime
economic activity (supporting 90 jobs) and generate $788,000 in onetime fiscal
revenues to the County;

b) On an annual ongoing basis, project operations are anticipated to generate
$4.0 million annually in total economic activity (supporting 6 new jobs in the County);
and

C) On an annual ongoing basis, the project is anticipated to generate tax revenue
directly to the County ranging from $155,000 (including Vehicle In-Lieu fees) in the first
year of operations to $22,000 (including VLF) once all assets have depreciated (years 12
and beyond).

In the short-term, the project would generate significant economic activity and benefit.
In the long term, project operations would add additional economic activity over the
cattle operations that exist today. With respect to property taxes, the State’s solar
property tax exclusion does significantly reduce what property taxes would be received
from the developed project. However, it is important to note that even fully
depreciated; the property tax payments would be greater than is being collected
today.

Currently, under the Williamson Act, the project site generates approximately $15,212 in
total annual property taxes, with the County receiving approximately $3,514. As part of
the project, the property will be removed from the Wiliamson Act and the first year total
tax revenue is estimated to be approximately $495,083 ($442,713 in property taxes and
$52,370 in VLF) with the County receiving approximately $154,765, or $151,251 more
than currently being collected. Please note that in addition to the County, all other
agencies in the project site’s Tax Rate Area (Williams School District, Yuba Community
College District, Williams Fire Authority, and the Colusa Groundwater Authority) will also
be receiving considerable more tax revenue than they are currently. Even after the
equipment is fully depreciated in year 12, the total amount of tax revenue is estimated

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 24

3.1

Packet Pg. 29




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

to be approximately $71,503 ($63,939 in property taxes and $7,564 in VLF) with the
County receiving approximately $22,352, or $18,838 more than currently being
collected.

While the County, as well as the other agencies in the project site’s Tax Rate Area, will
be receiving considerably more in tax revenues than is currently being collected, staff
was nonetheless concerned that the developed project would generate additional
public service demands than the existing uses on the property are generating and
whether the additional tax revenue would pay for any increased public service
demand. As detailed in Chapter 3 of the FEIR (Minor Revisions to the Draft EIR), a Public
Services Mitigation Fee has been developed to ensure that any potential public service
is fully mitigated. Asrequired, each year for the life of the public, the developer will pay
$110,000 directly to the County Colusa for unrestricted use. In addition, the developer is
also required to pay annually $15,000 to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District,
$15,000 payment to the City of Williams to support the Wiliams Park and Recreation
Department, and $15,000 to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.

In summary, between the one-time revenue, the on-going operational revenue, the
increased property taxes, and the Public Service Mitigation Fee payments, the project
will have a positive economic impact while ensuring that public services are fully
funded.

3.) Visual Impact

Potential Visual Impact: A concern was expressed about the aesthetics of the project.

Section 4.3 of the DEIR provides the initial analysis of the project aesthetics. In this
analysis, Key Observation Points (KOPs) were identified based on locations from which
the project would potentially be visible and noticeable to a casual observer. A “casual
observer” is considered an observer who is not actively looking or searching for the
project, but who is engaged in activities at locations with potential views of the project,
such as hiking or driving along a road.

In total six KOPs were selected as representative vantage points in the landscape that
offer motorists traveling on area roadways and local residents’ views of the proposed
project site. Please refer to Figure 4.3-1 of the DIER for the KOP’s locations. These KOPs
provide views of each side of the project site from publicly accessible areas. In
general, this analysis found that the visibility of the project would be limited except for
vehicles traveling along Spring Valley Road. With respect to visual impacts along Spring
Valley Road, the DEIR found that the project would introduce dark gray color,
geometric shapes, and horizontal lines into the landscape setting and would be visible
to the casual observer (DEIR Figure 4.3-7). The DEIR found that although a portion of
the project that would be visible, the contrast would be considered moderate and the

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 25

Packet Pg. 30




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

view would be short term for travelers as they approached the project as their focus
would be on the road ahead. A complete discussion of the views from the 6 KOP’s is
contained on pages 4.3-16 - 4.3-17.

In addition to the visual analysis contained in the DEIR, Appendix “D” of the FEIR
included additional photo simulations of the project showing what the power poles
along Beauchamp Drive (Walnut Avenue). As is shown, the appearance of the poles
would not be out of character with the existing streetscape. It should be noted that the
poles that were visually modeled are a dark brown color. In order to ensure that the
visual appearance matches the photo simulation, a condition in the Use Permit has
been included which requires if metal poles are used, that the finish be a flat, dark
brown color to resemble the existing wooden power poles.

4.) Obstruction of Agricultural Aerial Operations

A concern was expressed that the new gen-tie power poles would interfere with
agricultural related aerial operations.

To evaluate this concern, the County’s Agricultural Commissioner’s office was
contacted regarding the potential impact. Based on information obtained from the
Agricultural Commissioner’s Office, there are nine growers with a total of 15 permitted
sites adjacent to the proposed gen-tie line route . These sites include orchards and field
crops. Based on data available for the last three years, there were 27 aerial pesticide
applications in 2019, five aerial pesticide applications in 2020, and one aerial pesticide
application in 2021. The pole heights proposed as part of the project are similar to
existing obstacles for aerial applicators and based on discussions with the Agricultural
Commissioner; the introduction of the new gen-tie poles would not prevent
agriculturally related aeronautic operations from occurring.

5.) Migratory Bird Impacts

A concern was expressed that birds migrating along the Pacific Flyway would mistake
the solar panels as a water body resulting in their deaths when landing.

The potential risks to migrating birds is discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.4, Biological
Resources of the DEIR. In general, the available data from PV solar array-type facilities
indicate some instances of avian mortality resulting from collisions. However, the best
available scientific information to date does not indicate a significant risk of substantial
avian mortality occurring at facilities such as the proposed project. The current research
on the topic indicates that though avian species, and specifically aguatic habitat
avian species, may perceive PV solar facilities as waterbodies, it remains unclear the
proportion of species that might actually land or attempt landing. As the Commission is
aware, local waterfowl hunting in the County is a significant source of economic

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 26

Packet Pg. 31




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

activity in the County. For example, during the 2020-2021 season some 30,555
waterfowl were harvested just in the Colusa National Wildlife Refuge and Sacramento
National Wildlife Refuge Complex. In comparison to any waterfowl deaths as a result of
the project, the annual recreational hunting bird harvest in the Colusa County will far
exceed any accidental bird deaths as a result of the project.

As previously stated, research on this issue has been limited. Staff believes that the
project would provide an opportunity to development statistically information on this
matter. Assuch, a condition has been developed which requires the applicant to log
any bird deaths as a result of solar panel impacts and submit this information to the
County on an annual basis so that this information can be quantified.

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (FEIR) COMMENTS:

As of the writing of the staff report, staff has received four written comments on the FEIR.
Although we expect that there will be a number of verbal comments presented at the
project’s hearing.

Williams Fire Authority

The first comment was received from the Williams Fire Authority (Attachment #2). In the
letter, the Fire Authority expresses a concern that should there ever be a fire, despite
the mitigation measures, it would result in a potentially significant impact due to
operational staffing issues. In addition, the Fire Authority has a grant that will expire in
February 2024 potentially resulting in the current two-man fire crews having to go back
to a one-man fire crews. The Fire Authority believes that a specific fire public service
mitigation fee is required in order to ensure that if there is a fire that it can be
adequately staffed from an operational perspective. As of the writing of this staff
report, the Fire Authority and project proponents are discussing the required level of
funding to ensure the proposed project does not result in a significant operational
impact to the Williams Fire Authority. An update will be provided at the meeting.

Department of Conservation

A second letter was received on March 20, 2023 from the Department of Conservation
(Attachment #3). The letter stated that the FEIR did not address:

» The Project’s compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands
within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Williamson Act contract.

* If applicable, notification of Wiliamson Act contract non-renewal and/or
cancellation.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 27

Packet Pg. 32




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

The DEIR did discuss the Wiliamson Act and requirement for the contract cancellation
process in numerous sections including but not limited to Section 4.1 - beginning at
Page 4.1-10, Section 4.14 - beginning at Page 4.1-5, Section 4.1.2.2.1 - beginning at
Page 4.4-1, Impact 4.1-2 - beginning at Page 4.1-5, and Section 4.11.2.2.1 - beginning at
Page 4.11-1. In addition, early on the project review the applicant met with the Board
of Supervisor’s Williamson Act ad hoc committee (then Supervisors Evans and Carter) to
discuss the project and to consider whether the project was considered a compatible
use or not with agricultural operations on site. During this effort, the ad hoc committee
considered the County’s existing Wiliamson Act program’s enabling resolution. Please
refer to Attachment #4 (Resolution 02-82) for the Board’s resolution setting forth the
current permitted and compatible uses. Item #19 of Compatible Uses lists “The
erection, construction, alteration or maintenance of gas, electric, water or
communication utility facilities.” While the proposed project is an electric utility facility,
it will displace any permitted agricultural use on site. As such, the ad hoc committee
believed that given this displacement the project was not compatible with agricultural
uses on the site and, therefore, recommended that the existing Wiliamson Act
contracts should be cancelled. Ultimately, the full current Board of Supervisors will make
this determination.

Beth Ferrini Katsaris

A third comment letter was received from Beth Ferrini Katsaris (Attachment #5). The
comment letter raised concerns with:

(1) Answers included in the application’s project questionnaire where it was
indicated that the project would not have change scenic views, the character
of the general area, the amount of dust in the vicinity, noise levels, or cause a
substantial demand for municipal;

(2) The Wiliamson Act Cancellation process and the recommendation from the
Board’s Ad-Hoc Committee;

(3) The response to the Department of Conservations DEIR comments;

(4) The threat to public safety from fire; and

(5) The compatibility of the project to the rural character of Spring Valley Road and
consistency with the County’s General Plan.

The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter
for the complete wording of the comments.

Clark and Nelson

David Nelson, representing Jean Terkildsen, Matthew Ferrini, and Elizabeth Katsaris,
submitted a comment letter on the EIR documentation (Attachment #6). The

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 28

Packet Pg. 33




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

comment letter raised concerns with:

(1) The projectlacks consistency with Colusa County's General Plan; and
(2) The subject property is ineligible for inclusion within the Energy Production
Overlay Zone.

The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter
for the complete wording of the comments.

Matt Ferrini also submitted a comment letter (Attachment #7). In general, the letter
shared his concerns with the land use and visual change that the proposed project
would have to Spring Valley, is opposed to the conversion of the agricultural ground
into a commercial solar facility and the adverse effect on surrounding owner and
residents, and believes that the project is not consistent with the rural character of
Spring Valley.

The comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter
for the complete wording of the comments.

Finally, as of the writing of the staff report, Jean Terkildsen also submitted a comment
letter (Attachment #8). In general, her comment letter expressed concerns that the
project could provide additional commercial and industrial encroachment into the
Spring Valley area, the impact on property values, and the provision for fire protection.

Her comments were summarized above and the Commission should refer to the letter
for the complete wording of the comments.

With respect to the Katsaris, Ferrini, Nelson, and Terkildsen comment letters, staff will
provide additional information when the project is heard by the Commission. However,
staff wanted to provide the letters to the Commission at the earliest time with this Staff
report package.

USE PERMIT (UP 20-01):

Land Use

The solar facility would be located on land desighated in the Colusa County General
Plan as “Agriculture Upland,” in which cultivated agriculture, industrial and commercial
agriculture, agricultural tourism, resource production, energy production (including
solar), single family housing, and farmworker housing are allowed as appropriate uses
(Colusa County General Plan Land Use Element Table LU-1). The gen-tie power lines
along Walnut Drive are located on land designated in the Colusa County General Plan

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 29

Packet Pg. 34




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

as “Agriculture General” in which the same land uses are also allowed by the Colusa
County General Plan Land.

With respect to the zoning, the solar facility would be located on land designated as
the Foothill Agriculture zoning district and the gen-tie power lines along Walnut Drive
are located on land with the zoning designation of Exclusive Agriculture. Pursuant to
Section 44-2.20.30 (Allowed Uses in the Agricultural Zones) of the Zoning Code, Energy
Generation for Off-Site Use are permitted subject to obtaining a Conditional Use Permit.

Pursuant to Section 44-1.70.010 (Review Authority) the Planning Commission is the
review authority of Use Permits. Section 44-1.80.030 (Use Permits) of the County Code
specifies that in order to approve a Use Permit application, the Planning Commission
must make the following findings:

1. The proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and all applicable
provisions of this title; and

2. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the use applied for will not,
under the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and
operating characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals,
comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area of such
use.

As detailed above, the proposed solar facility is allowed as an energy production
facility by the General Plan and, thus, staff recommends Finding #1 be made. With
respect to Finding #2, the FEIR has identified potential impacts and has developed a
series of mitigation measures in order to ensure that the proposed project is not
detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons
residing or working in the area. In addition, the staff has recommended additional
conditions of approval within the Use Permit to further ensure that the project would not
be detrimental to other properties or residents in the area. Together these mitigation
measures and conditions of approval address the submitted concerns regarding
transportation impacts and hazards, dust creation, impacts to agriculture aviation,
aesthetics, fire hazards, impacts to public services, and other the other issues that have
been fully detailed in the FEIR documents.

SUMMARY

As required by CEQA, a DEIR report was prepared for the project and comments
regarding the adequacy of that document were received. A FEIR has been prepared
responding to those comments and additional studies, analysis and several minor
updates to the DIER have been made. Together, these documents comprise the
entirety of the EIR’s environmental record for the proposed Use Permit.

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 30

Packet Pg. 35




Attachment #10 31

Planning Commission (ID # 9002) Meeting of April 5, 2023

Attached to this staff report, Planning Staff has prepared a resolution for the
Commission’s consideration that would certify the FEIR and approved the proposed Use
Permit. If the Planning Commission determines that that the FEIR along with the
proposed mitigation measures and Use Permit conditions of approval, reduce potential
impacts below a level of significance and that the project would not be detrimental to
surrounding properties and residents, then the Planning Commission should adopt the
resolution which would approve the project.

During the course of the Commission’s review, following a review of the totality of the
record, and all testimony received during the public hearing, should the Commission
have any questions regarding the project that have not been addressed, the
Commission should detail those questions so that they can be fully addressed prior to
the Commission taken formal action on the project. Depending on the nature of such
guestions, it may be possible that they can be answered to the Commission’s
satisfaction at the Commission’s March meeting. Should this not be the case, then the
Commission should direct staff to perform the necessary additional analysis and return
with the results to the Commission prior to acting upon the application

Updated: 3/29/2023 3:05 PM by Ann Nordyke Page 31

Packet Pg. 36




Attachment #10 312

RESOLUTION NO. 23-

RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
CERTIFYING A FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (SCH No. 2020070577),
ADOPTING A MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM, AND
APPROVING USE PERMIT #20-01 (PD-3829) FOR JANUS SOLAR PV, LLC

WHEREAS, Janus Solar PV, LLC (Applicant) has applied for a conditional use permit to
construct, operate, maintain, and decommission (in the future) a photovoltaic (PV) electricity
generating facility with a battery energy storage system (BESS) and associated facilities and
infrastructure (Project); and

WHEREAS, the County of Colusa is considered a Lead Agency under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for this Project and has determined that an Environmental
Impact Report was necessary to fully review and consider all potentially significant impacts for the
Project; and

WHEREAS, a Draft Environmental Impact Report and a Final Environmental Impact were
prepared and processed pursuant to all requirements of Title 14 (Natural Resources), Division 6
(Resources Agency), Chapter 3 (Guidelines for Implementation of the California Environmental
Quality Act) of the California Code of Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed Public Hearing regarding the
proposed Final Environmental Impact Report and Use Permit on March 1, 2023, at which time any
and all comments were received during the public hearing process; and

WHEREAS, after the close of the Public Hearing the Planning Commission fully
considered the Final Environmental Impact Report, Planning Staff’s report on the Project, all public
testimony, all other written and orally testimony, and totality of the public record of the Project.

I. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Colusa County Planning
Commission based on facts contained within the Final Environmental Impact Report, Planning
Staff’s report on the Project, all public testimony, all other written and orally testimony, and totality
of the public record of the Project makes the following findings:

A. The Final EIR has been completed in compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act;
B. The Final EIR was presented to the Planning Commission acting as the decision

making body of the lead agency and that the Planning Commission has reviewed and
considered the information contained in the Final EIR prior to taking any action upon the
project;

C. The Final EIR reflects the lead agency's independent judgment and analysis; and

D. The Final EIR has identified potential significant impacts of the Project but all said
potential impacts have been reduced to a level of non-significance through project changes
and/or mitigation measures that have been fully considered and incorporated into the
Project.

Attachment: Commission Resolution Certifying FEIR Adopting MMRP Approving UP 20-01 for Janus Solar (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-

Page 1 of 2

Packet Pg. 37




Attachment #10 312

II. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that based upon the
findings of Section I of this Resolution, that the Colusa County Planning Commission does hereby
take the following actions:

A. Certifies the Final EIR attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference;

B. Adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Report Program attached hereto as Exhibit
“B” and incorporated by reference;

C. Finds that the Proposed Use Permit 20-01 (PD-3829) with the adopted Mitigation
Measures and the Conditions of Approval detailed in Exhibit “C” is consistent with the
General Plan and all applicable provisions of Chapter 44 of the Colusa County Code and
that the establishment, maintenance or operation of the Project will not be detrimental to the
health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in
the area surrounding the Project and does hereby approve Use Permit 20-01 (PD-3829) as
detailed in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5" day of April, 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

John Troughton, Jr. , Chair,
Planning Commission

ATTEST: Greg Plucker, Secretary to the
Colusa County Planning Commission

Melissa Kitts, Deputy Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Jennifer Sutton, Sr. Deputy County Counsel

Attachment: Commission Resolution Certifying FEIR Adopting MMRP Approving UP 20-01 for Janus Solar (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-

Page 2 of 2

Packet Pg. 38




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

FINAL
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
JANUS SOLAR PROJECT

COUNTY OF COLUSA
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

220 12th Street
Colusa, California 95932

State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577

February 3, 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 39




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Table of Contents

JANUS SOLAR FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION .......coiiiiiiiriieenssissss s s essssssssssss s s s s s s s snsssssssssssssssnnnnnns 11

CHAPTER 2 RESPONSE TO COMMENTS ... s e ems e e e mms e 21

CHAPTER 3 MINOR REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR ...t eeeeeeeeenns 3-1
APPENDICES

A Public Notices

B Recipients of the Final EIR

C Dust Suppressant Effectiveness Study Photo Log

D Additional Photographic Simulations

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project i Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 40




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

1 Introduction

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

This Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2020070577) is an
informational document which examines and discloses the potential impacts of the Janus Solar
Project (Project), as proposed by Janus Solar I, LLC (Applicant). Colusa County (County) will rely
on the findings of this EIR, along with all other information in the formal record, to decide whether
to approve, approve with modifications, or disapprove the application for the Conditional Use
Permit as requested for the Project (UP No. 20-01).

The Final EIR consists of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (Draft EIR) published October
15, 2021, and responses to comments, as provided in Chapter 2. The Draft EIR and a digital copy
of this Final EIR are contained on a CD in the cover of printed copies of this Final EIR and are
available for viewing at the Community Development Department and local public libraries. An
electronic version is available at the Colusa County’s Community Development Department’s
website.

The County is the lead agency for reviewing the potential environmental impacts of the Project
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and directed the preparation of this
Final EIR. The County will use this Final EIR, along with any other information developed in the
County’s formal record, when considering whether to certify the Final EIR and whether to approve
the Applicant’'s CUP application to the County Development Department.

The Draft EIR detailed the Project; evaluated and described the potential environmental impacts
associated with Project construction, and operation and maintenance; identified those impacts
that have the potential to be significant; and presented mitigation measures that would avoid or
minimize impacts, if adopted. The Draft EIR also evaluated alternatives to the Project, including
the Reduced Acreage Alternative, Distributed Solar Alternative, Northeast Site Alternative, and
the CEQA-required No Project Alternative.

1.2 INTENDED USE OF THE EIR

The EIR is intended to evaluate the potential environmental impacts that a proposed project may
have to the greatest extent possible. This EIR, in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section
15126, should be used as the primary environmental document to analyze all planning and
permitting actions associated with the proposed Project. For detailed information on the proposed
project, please refer to Chapter 2, Project Description of the Draft EIR, which provides a
discussion of the proposed Project.

1.3 ORGANIZATION OF THE FINAL EIR

As required by CEQA Guidelines 15132, this Final EIR consists of the following elements:
1. The Draft EIR;

2. Comments received on the Draft EIR;

Janus Solar Project 1-1 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 41




1 Introduction

Exhibit "A"

Attachment #10 [__31®

A list of persons, organizations, and public agencies that commented on the Draft EIR;

The County’s responses to significant environmental points raised in the review and

consultation process;

Other information added by the County; and

Minor revisions to the Draft EIR.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project
Final Environmental Impact Report

1-2

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Packet Pg. 42




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

2 Response to Comments

2 RESPONSE TO COMMENTS

2.1

LIST OF COMMENTERS

The following individuals and agencies provided comments on the Draft EIR:

>
A. Vance Boyes %
Q
B. Leo LaGrande o
2
C. Bob and Cindy Freed S
Y
D. David R. Nelson, representing Jean Terkildsen, Elizabeth Katsaris, and Matthew Ferrini E
[
o
E. Garnett A. Vann o
=]
F. Elizabeth Katsaris &
b
G. Sid LaGrande @
c
©
H. Peter G. Minkel, Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board >
AN
(=]
I.  Monique Wilber, California Department of Conservation a
©
(]
3
o
G
°
(7]
[72]
>
c
©
L
x
i
©
c
£
E
=
x
11}
£
[
S
L
(&)
8
<
Janus Solar Project 2-1 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 43




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

((628€-ad) 10-02# 3wrIad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 303[0.d Jejos snuer ¥I3 flld v, HAIYXT Juswyoeny

Packet Pg. 44




3.1.b

Attacteanent #10

Exhibit "A"

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3oafoid sejog srmuer Y| [euld V., HIYX3 ;Juswiydeny

Packet Pg. 45




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

Letter C

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3oafoid sejog snuer Y| [euld V., HAIYX3 ;Juswiydseny

Packet Pg. 46




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
Naovember 22 2021

Dear Mr. Plunker,

This letter is regarding the proposed Janus Solar Project, which is being considered west
of Williams, off of Spring Valley Road. Our home is located on East Camp Road, which
apparently would be a main thoroughfare for construction and maintenance of the project.
With this in mind, we are adamantly opposed to the project. We are aware of several injury
accidents, as well as fatalities, at the intersection of Highway 20 and East Camp Road --there is
no turn lane on either roadway, making it a very dangerous area. In addition, East Camp Road
is known to flood, closing the roadway in both directions (I've attached photos of from this
year). With the proposed construction, more vehicles and trucks will be utilizing Highway 20
and East Camp Road, creating more traffic and likely more accidents. Furthermore, the

additional wear and tear of the already rough East Camp Road will only add to more
maintenance required on said roadway.

Please take into consideration all of the negative aspects of this project before agreeing to

move forward. If you should have questions or would like to discuss our thoughts, please feel
free to contact either of us.

Sincerely,\
I. ‘\-_

Bob &itindy Freed
530-304-8899

3.1.b

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 47




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3oafoid sejog snuer Y| [euld V., HAIYX3 ;Juswiydseny

Packet Pg. 48




Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

)
N
o
®
o
[
N
-
<
o
N
*
=
£
S
(]
o
o
[72]
D
)
=
o
n
)
=]
c
1]
S
N
o
o
2
)
(5]
2,
o
S
o
)
<
[}
n
[72]
=
c
1]
S
2
w
©
£
i
<
=
)
(=
P
i
s
[=
)
£
=
Q
o]
=
<

Packet Pg. 49




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

Letter D

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3oafoid sejog snuer Y| [euld V., HAIYX3 ;Juswiydseny

-~

Packet Pg. 50




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 |31

CLARK & NELSON
ATTORMNEYS AT LAW

future expansion of prime agricultural property should future water

sources be found for the property (Sites Reservoir perhaps). This
conversion of agricultural property to an industrial use conflicts 2
with the overriding policy set forth in the General Plan that favors

and protects the County’s agricultural heritage.

2. INADEQUATE REVIEW OF POTENTIAL DRAINAGE IMPACTS: The
DEIR indicates that there will not be any significant impact from
drainage in that the water will drain from the property after the
project is built in the same way that it does presently. However, the
DEIR fails tc consider the potential for the accelerated and increased
offsite drainage flows, especially those related to peak flows during
a storm event. The project contemplates placing 196,000 solar panels 3
over 738 acres of the project site. While currently there are no
improvements that would prevent water from rains to permeate into the
soil and pond upcn the property, the 196,000 sclar panels will be
impermeable and the rainwater will accelerate off of the panels and
gquite likely create a significant increase in downstream drainage.
The criteria of the Energy Production Overlay Zone provides in Section
E(g) the following: “there shall be no net increase in offsite
drainage flows, including peak flows during a storm event.” Our
clients contend that there is a great likelihcod of a significant
increase in offsite drainage which must be analyzed and mitigated
within the DEIR.

3. DUST IMPACTS: The DEIR references that dust will be
created as a part of the construction of the project. The dust will
cccur not only on the project site itself but along unpaved portions
of Spring Valley Road which will serve as the primary means of ingress
and egress to the project site. The DEIR proposes that the dust issue
be mitigated by watering dust producing areas twice a day by water
truck. The DEIR fails to analyze the potentially significant impact 4
upon neighboring almond orchards. It is common knowledge within
almond growing districts that the creation of dust near orchards
significantly increases the infestation of mites that are detrimental
te almond trees and can cause significant and long lasting impacts to
the trees and their production capabilities. The DEIR needs to fully
analyze the potential for damage from dust mites and provide
mitigation measures that will be more significant than watering twice
a day.

4. TRANSMISSION POLES: The DEIR recognizes that there will
be numerous transmission poles located in the county road right of way
from the project site down Spring Valley Road and then along Walnut
Drive to the PG&E substation. The DEIR further advises that these 5
transmission poles will be as high as 80 feet. That results in the
poles and transmission cables being some 20 to 40 feet higher than the
existing power poles along Spring Valley Reocad and Walnut Drive. This

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 51




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 |31

CLARK & NELSON
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

increase in the number of poles and the height of the poles could have
a significant impact upon agricultural aerial applicators servicing
the orchard and open ground in the area. Pecles and wires are a
significant hazard to both fixed wing aircraft and helicopters used in
agricultural application. Increasing the height of the poles and 5
wires to 80 feet will result in a greater safety hazard for the
applicators and may result in aerial application not being feasible in
close proximity to the poles and wires. Alternatives to the proposed
transmission lines, such as underground lines, should be considered.

5. TRAFFIC AND ROADWAY IMPACTS: As property owners and
residents of the area in gquestion, our clients are very familiar with
the local roads and have concerns with regard to the impacts this
project would have on the local roads. With Spring Valley Road being
unimproved it may not be adequate in its current condition to
accommodate the traffic flows during construction, nor for emergency
vehicle access to the project site both during construction and
afterwards. As mentioned, Spring Valley Road is in large part unpaved 6
and does not have adequate or appropriate drainage facilities. As a
result, in times of rain events, the rcad becomes either unpassable or
dangerous to travel upon. While Spring Valley Road presents
transportation impacts the additional surrounding roadways will also
be impacted. The DEIR acknowledges that Walnut Drive and East Camp
Road will also be major routes to access the project site. While
traffic will be greatly increased, particularly during construction,
safety concerns must be addressed at both the intersection of Highway
20 and East Camp Road where there are no turn lanes as well as at the
intersection of Highway 20 and Walnut Drive where again, there are no
turn lanes. The DEIR is silent with regard to traffic safety
Concerns.

Furthermore, the number of truck trips is vastly
understated. The DEIR references that during construction there will
be a need of 15,000,000 gallons of water that would be trucked to the
site. Projecting that a water truck can carry 4,000 gallons per load, 7
that egquates to 7,500 truck trips during construction. The most
likely route for the water trucks would be Highway 20 to East Camp
Road to Walnut Drive and to Spring Valley Road. That number of trucks
making turns on the State Highway and County Roads without turn lanes
creates significant safety issues. The actual number of truck trips
will also impact the need for additional road maintenance.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

6. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ASSOCIATED WITH BATTERIES: The DEIR
references that the project will include a battery energy storage
system. Batteries are known to have hazardous waste and toxic
materials associated with them and have the ability to leak, burn 8
and/or explede. The DEIR fails to adeguately analyze what threats the
battery energy storage system as proposed will create for both humans,

Packet Pg. 52




3.1.b

Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

CLARK & NELSON
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

wildlife and the environment. The DEIR further fails to adequately
discuss whether local emergency personnel are capable of responding to 8
an accident at the project site and if not, what training will be
necessary.

7. IMPACTS TO COLUSA COUNTY AND THE CITY OF WILLIAMS: It
does not appear that the project will provide any significant revenue
source to either the County of Colusa or to the City of Williams.
However, it goes without saying that the project will have impacts to
county and city roadways, fire and emergency responders, drainage
improvements, law enforcement amongst others. There is nc analysis as 9
to the economic benefits that would come to the County of Colusa or
the City of Williams, nor is there any analysis of the economic costs
to the County of Colusa and City of Williams. The citizens of Colusa
County and the decision makers should be fully advised of impacts upon
public agencies and particularly the fiscal impacts that will result
from this project.

8. IMPACTS TO USE AND VALUE OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY: As the
owners of adjacent and neighboring agricultural property, our clients
have concerns over what impact a project of this size and nature will
have upon their farming operations and the value of their agricultural
realty. The DEIR does not address what impacts a 1,000 acre
industrial utility complex will have upon current and future 10
neighboring agricultural properties and the extensive cattle and sheep
grazing that occur in the area. The potential impacts include changes
to the vistas, potential acceleration of drain waters, roadway
impacts, hazardous material exposure, altering the safety and
availability of aerial agricultural applications and potential impacts
to local wildlife. The DEIR should address and adequately review what
these cumulative impacts will have upon nearby property owners, their
workers and their property.

9. ADDITIONAL EXPANSION: Cculd the creation of a 1,000 acre
industrial utility complex lead to additional expansion of this type
of use in the area? If so, the DEIR should review what the potential
cumulative and future impacts could be to agricultural properties 11
similarly situated within the County of Colusa. Cumulative impacts
could be in conflict with Colusa County’s General Plan that seeks to
preserve and expand the County’s agricultural heritage.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 53




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3oafoid sejog snuer Y| [euld V., HAIYX3 ;Juswiydseny

Packet Pg. 54




3.1.b

Affac[ggeerrg #10

Exhibit "A"

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuadd asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 302foid Jejog snuer Y| [euld V., HIYX3 ;Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 55




3.1.b

Attachment #10

Exhibit "A"

((628¢-ad) 1L0-0Z# Hwuadd asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 302foid Jejog snuer Y| [euld V., HIYX3 ;Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 56




Exhibit "A" All‘f%cfl._menf #10
Colusa County e

EIR Public Meeting
Janus Solar Project
¢ Granzella’s Inn, Conference Room
391 6™ Street, Williams
Thursday, November 4, 2021

This form may be used to submit comments in regards to the Draft Environmental Impact
Report (EIR) for the proposed Janus Solar Project.

Name (please print) E / | Z W-{/I:\, I<A.+‘5 a Y'i 5

Mailing Address

Telephone No. (daytime)

E-mail address K a+‘5a Y" ﬁ@COW\M g m,\-f-

Organization/Affiliation

In the Final EIR, please address the following comment on the environmental impacts of the
Janus Solar Project:

IZézpmq in_mind _7he 4hreat +z public hea t+h a nal
W/n +he ever aﬁ a ﬂ/re witl —;4/2 ﬁq/rhme.qwﬂne.rn‘

u%‘ Fire Dg:a.rfmenhbe kzp—l- on SH’c?I:}'-IJ what. +ypc7

2) Hre +there any alternative projects with a bigger or

Smaller Scope’ 7

%) Zs any+hing about this project geing o chonge?

4) wﬁ_—é;/:s +Ze r77a 3 A w17 amM+ az, Q&féa-c?c.
the project Coudd entail?

Signature ; I<@L

Thank you for your assistance.

Written comments will be accepted until November 29, 2021 and may be directed to Mr. Greg Plucker,
Director, located at Community Development Department, 1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932, or email
to gplucker@countyofcolusa.com.

To Mail, Fold and Staple

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 57




Exhibit "A" Attachmiesiesgo | 1P

7/:& /%Wﬁﬂfﬁ(/ /25% / /’gﬁﬁf Gre /?(Vﬁfy Vﬂv//éi
e 2 c ot Jzuf {/ f/zs’{_ /{

%ﬁ/ém’@%’ % Coroeer /é’ 22 /,,;,zf;;/ Locrkn
ngl  pesse il e A /ﬂﬂ%fa» andl /Mff
/1/2 //M// // ~giles /g; i //

T &
Lnite / o A %@47 Ay% %ﬁw
/’éj‘/z’%’&a’ %M @/ M%,ﬁﬂ////

/ j/ 56’5&'24 d%/%ﬂ// MW

%ﬂﬁﬁ /Mﬁ@p/éf Prce /ﬁi/’w%

S30-68/- 6578

e g

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 58




Exhibit "A" AHSSHiment #10

~| JARED BLUMENFELD
seCRETARY FOR

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

Colusa County
Community Development Department
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95932
lucker ntyofcolusa.com

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT REPORT, JANUS SOLAR PROJECT, SCH#2020070577,
COLUSA COUNTY

Pursuant to the State Clearinghouse's 15 October 2021 request, the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board (Central Valley Water Board) has reviewed the
Request for Review for the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar
Project, located in Colusa County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and

groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding

those issues.

l. Regulatory Setting
Basin Plan
The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for
all areas within the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne
Water Quality Control Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to
ensure the reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of
implementation for achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal
regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public
health or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean
Water Act. In California, the beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and the
Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality standards. Water quality
standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.36,
and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin
Plans were adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as
required, using Basin Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has
adopted a Basin Plan amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by
the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board), Office of

KARL E. LONGLEY SCD, P.E., CHAIR | PATRICK PULUPA, ESQ., EXECUTIVE OFFICER

3.1.b

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 59




Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

Janus Solar Project
Colusa County

Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA). Basin Plan amendments only become effective after
they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA. Every three
(3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness
of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues. For more
information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San Joaquin
River Basins, please visit our website:

Antidegradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water
Board Resolution 68-16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in
the Basin Plan. The Antidegradation Implementation Policy is available on page 74
at:

05.pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment
or control not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but
also to maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum
benefit to the people of the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential
impacts of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background
concentrations and applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements
(WDRs) permitting processes. The environmental review document should evaluate
potential impacts to both surface and groundwater quality.

Permitting Requirements

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects
disturb less than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that
in total disturbs one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the
General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction and Land
Disturbance Activities (Construction General Permit), Construction General Permit
Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to this permit includes
clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or
excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to restore
the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Plan (SWPPP). For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the
State Water Resources Control Board website at:

I l ) I I : . : : : its. st
m

3.1.b

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 60




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31P

Janus Solar Project
Colusa County

Phase ] and Il Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits'

The Phase |and Il MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff
flows from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices
(BMPs) to the maximum extent practicable (MEP). MS4 Permittees have their own
development standards, also known as Low Impact Development (L1D)/post-
construction standards that include a hydromodification component. The MS4
permits also require specific design concepts for LID/post-construction BMPs in the
early stages of a project during the entittement and CEQA process and the
development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase | MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water  issues/storm water/municipal p
ermits/

For more information on the Phase Il MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the
State Water Resources Control Board at:

hitp:// I | . / f of i .
pal.shtml|

Industrial Storm Water General Permit

Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the
regulations contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-
0057-DWQ. For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca _.gov/centralva lley/water issues/storm water/ind ustrial ge
neral permits/index.shtml

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters
or wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be
needed from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). If a Section 404
permit is required by the USACE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the
permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate water quality standards. If
the project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to
contact the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration
Permit requirements. If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act
Section 404 permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento
District of USACE at (916) 557-5250.

If an USACE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit,
Letter of Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic

1 Municipal Permits = The Phase | Municipal Separate Storm Water System (MS4)
Permit covers medium sized Municipalities (serving between 100,000 and 250,000
people) and large sized municipalities (serving over 250,000 people). The Phase Il
MS4 provides coverage for small municipalities, including non-traditional Small MS4s,
which include military bases, public campuses, prisons and hospitals.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 61




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31P

Janus Solar Project
Colusa County

General Permit), or any other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and
Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United States Coast Guard), is required for this
project due to the disturbance of waters of the United States (such as streams and
wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from the Central
Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for
401 Water Quality Certifications. For more information on the Water Quality
Certification, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

I ] I | vall . : I ificati
n/

Waste Discharge Requirements - Discharges to Waters of the State

If USACE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., "non-
federal" waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed
project may require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by
Central Valley Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other
waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to
State regulation. For more information on the Waste Discharges to Surface Water
NPDES Program and WDR processes, visit the Central Valley Water Board website
athttps/Iwww.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water  issues/waste fo surface wat

er/

Projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400
linear feet of non-jurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging
activities impacting less than 50 cubic yards of non-jurisdictional waters of the state
may be eligible for coverage under the State Water Resources Control Board Water
Quality Order No. 2004-0004-DWQ (General Order 2004-0004). For more
information on the General Order 2004-0004, visit the State Water Resources
Control Board website at:

4/wqo/wq02004-0004,  pdf

D teri P it

If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be
discharged to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board
General Water Quality Order (Low Threat General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central
Valley Water Board's Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge
Requirements (Low Threat Waiver) R5-2018-0085. Small temporary construction
dewatering projects are projects that discharge groundwater to land from excavation
activities or dewatering of underground utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage
under the General Order or Waiver must file a Notice of Intent with the Central
Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board decisions/adopted = orders/water quality/2003/
wqo/wq02003-0003.pdf

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 62




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31P

Janus Solar Project
Colusa County

For more information regarding the Low Threat Waiver and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

ers/r5-2018-0085 pdf

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to
discharge the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will
require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
permit. Dewatering discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to
water quality and may be covered under the General Order for Limited Threat
Discharges to Surface Water (Limited Threat General Order). A complete Notice of
Intent must be submitted to the Central Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under
the Limited Threat General Order. For more information regarding the Limited
Threat General Order and the application process, visit the Central Valley Water
Board website at:

https ://www .waterboards.ca .gov/centralvalley/boa rd decisio ns/ad opted orders/gene
ral orders/r5-20 16-0076-0 1.pdf

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface
waters of the State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project
will require coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permit. A complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the
Central Valley Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit. For more information
regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the Central Valley

Water Board website at: hitps:l/www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/help/permitl
If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 464-4684

or Peter.Minkel2@waterboards.ca.gov.

P.u$;gl~

Peter G. Minkel
Engineering Geologist

cc: State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research,
Sacramento

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 63




Exhibit "A" Af&iﬁ@fﬁ?ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ; 3.1.b

NOVEMBER 16, 2021 Letter I

VIA EMAIL: GPLUCKER@COUNTYOFCOLUSA.COM
Greg Plucker

County of Colusa

1213 Market Street

Colusa, CA 95932

Dear Mr. Plucker:

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE JANUS SOLAR PROJECT,
SCH#2020070577

The Department of Conservation’s (Department) Division of Land Resource Protection
(Division) has reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar
Project (Project). The Division monitors farmland conversion on a statewide basis,
provides technical assistance regarding the Wiliamson Act, and administers various
agricultural land conservation programs. We offer the following comments and
recommendations with respect to the project’s potential impacts on agricultural land
and resources.

Project Description

Janus Solar PV, LLC has applied to the Colusa County Community Development
Department for a Use Permit to construct, operate, maintain, and decommission a
photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility, with a battery energy storage system
(BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure, to be known as the Janus Solar
Project.

The Project would generate and store up to 80 megawatts alternating current on an
approximately 1,024-acre site, owned by a private landowner in unincorporated
western Colusa County. To avoid environmental constraints, an estimated 768 acres of
the 1,024-acre site would be used for the Project. The proposed battery energy storage
system (BESS) would extend the period of time each day that the Project could
contribute PV-generated energy to the electrical grid. The Project would connect to
the electrical grid at the existing Cortina Substation, which is owned and operated by
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 4 miles northeast of the
Project site. The entirety of the Project site is included in a Wiliamson Act contract.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

State of California Natural Resources Agency | Department of Conservation
801 K Street, MS 14-15, Sacramento, CA 95814

conservation.ca.gov | T: (916) 324-0850 | F: (916) 327-3430
| PacketPg.64 |




Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

Department Comments

The conversion of agricultural land represents a permanent reduction and significant
impact to California’s agricultural land resources. CEQA requires that all feasible and
reasonable mitigation be reviewed and applied to projects. Under CEQA, a lead
agency should not approve a project if there are feasible alternatives or feasible
mitigation measures available that would lessen the significant effects of the project.

All mitigation measures that are potentially feasible should be included in the project’s
environmental review. A measure brought to the attention of the lead agency should
not be left out unless it is infeasible based on its elements.

Consistent with CEQA Guidelines, the Department recommends the County consider
agricultural conservation easements, among other measures, as potential mitigation.
(See Cal. Code Regs,, tit. 14, § 15370 [mitigation includes “compensating for the impact
by replacing or providing substitute resources or environments, including through
permanent protection of such resources in the form of conservation easements.”])

Mitigation through agricultural easements can take at least two forms: the outright
purchase of easements or the donation of mitigation fees to a local, regional, or
statewide organization or agency whose purpose includes the acquisition and
stewardship of agricultural easements. The conversion of agricultural land should be
deemed an impact of at least regional significance. Hence, the search for
replacement lands should not be limited strictly to lands within the project’s surrounding
area.

A helpful source for regional and statewide agricultural mitigation banks is the
California Council of Land Trusts. They provide helpful insight into farmland mitigation
policies and implementation strategies, including a guidebook with model policies and
a model local ordinance. The guidebook can be found at:

https://www.calandtrusts.org/resources/conserving-californias-harvest/

Of course, the use of conservation easements is only one form of mitigation that should
be considered. Any other feasible mitigation measures should also be considered.
Indeed, the recent judicial opinion in King and Gardiner Farms, LLC v. County of Kern
(2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 814 (“KG Farms”) holds that agricultural conservation easements
on a 1to 1ratio are not alone sufficient to adequately mitigate a project’s conversion
of agricultural land. KG Farms does not stand for the proposition that agricultural
conservation easements are irrelevant as mitigation. Rather, the holding suggests that
to the extent they are considered, they may need to be applied at a greater than 1 to
1 ratio, or combined with other forms of mitigation (such as restoration of some land not
currently used as farmland).

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Page 2 of 3

Packet Pg. 65




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Conclusion

The Department recommends further discussion of the following issues:

e The Projects compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands
within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Williamson Act contract.

¢ If applicable, notification of Wililamson Act contract non-renewal and/or
cancellation.

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact
Report for the Janus Solar Project. Please provide this Department with notices of any
future hearing dates as well as any staff reports pertaining to this project. If you have
any questions regarding our comments, please contact Farl Grundy, Associate
Environmental Planner via email at Farl. Grundy@conservation.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Monique Wilber

Conservation Program Support Supervisor

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Page 3 of 3
Packet Pg. 66




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project

Responses to Public Comments

February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 67




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

A VANCE BOYES

A-1

Comment Summary:

Since the project will have major impact on the road. | believe the road needs to be paved,
especially since the county will not have any major tax revenue, at minimum.

Response:

The Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) analyzed the potential impacts of additional
construction and operation trips on local roads in Chapter 4, Section 4.17. The estimated total
number of vehicles during the peak hours would be 230, based on land use, road connectivity,
and the nearest location where traffic counts were available. A conservative range of 230 to 310
vehicles was used for analysis in the DEIR. The estimated 230 to 310 vehicles during the peak
hour is far below the capacity of the infrastructure, and the roadways surrounding the Project
site would still function desirably during Project construction. The Level of Service calculation for
Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road is provided as part of Appendix J of the DEIR and yields a
Level of Service A during peak construction (DEIR page [p.] 4.17-6).

Direct access to the Project site would be on Spring Valley Road, which is an unpaved, rural road
currently typically used by agricultural equipment and rural residents to access their properties.
As discussed in the DEIR, the Project would introduce short-term construction traffic for truck
deliveries and worker trips over a period of approximately 11 months.

Application of dust suppressant would include pre-Project road conditioning that would grade
and level the road prior to its application. In addition, to ensure that Project construction traffic
does not negatively impact surrounding roads, the Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been
developed requiring a pre-Project inspection and a post-Project inspection of road conditions to
ensure that access roads are not negatively impacted by the additional traffic associated with the
Project.

“TRANS-1: Road Inspection and Repairs

Prior to construction activities beginning and building permit issuance, the
Applicant shall conduct a pre-Project inspection of the construction access routes
approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director. This inspection shall
document through photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes,
shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the pre-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works
Director.

Following completion of the construction activities, the Applicant shall conduct a
post-Project inspection of the construction access routes approved by the Colusa
County Public Works Director. This inspection shall document through

Colusa County 1

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 68




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes, shall be conducted
with County Public Works staff, and following the completion of the post-Project
inspection _documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by Project construction traffic shall be
repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection requirements detailed herein shall also
be performed just before and immediately after Project decommissioning to
address any road damage as a result of decommissioning construction traffic.”

Chapter 4, Section 4.2 of the DEIR analyzes air pollutant emissions associated with the Project,
such as emissions from construction related activities including equipment exhaust, vehicle travel
on paved and unpaved roads, and fugitive dust (PM1o) from soil disturbance activities. Mitigation
Measure AQ-1 would be required to reduce dust emissions. Based on the Butte County Air Quality
Management District recommended thresholds (on which the Colusa County Air Pollution
Control District relies), the Project would result in a significant contribution to localized ambient
air quality if daily emissions exceeded 80 pounds per day of PMio during either construction or
operation. Daily PM1o emissions will be well below this threshold for both construction and
operation (DEIR p. 4.2-16). Detailed emissions calculations are provided in Appendix C of the
DEIR.

In June 2022, the Applicant commissioned a field study (Janus Solar Project Dust Suppressant
Effectiveness Study) to observe the degree of effectiveness of the dust suppressant that the
County has historically used on an unpaved, rural road in Colusa County that was representative
of Spring Valley Road and located nearby several nut orchards. The study was performed out of
concern regarding the effects of potential dust emissions during use of Spring Valley Road during
construction.

A liquid magnesium chloride dust suppressant commercially known as “Dust-Off” was applied to
a portion of King Road, an unpaved roadway in rural Colusa County which borders orchards. A
section of the roadway was also left untreated. The dust suppressant was applied at a rate of 0.5
gallons per square yard.

A triple-axle truck, fully loaded with 79,000 pounds of equipment, was driven at various speeds
on the treated and untreated portions of the unpaved roadway. The study concluded that the
application of dust suppressant was extremely effective in mitigating dust generation. As shown
in Appendix C to the Final EIR, the effectiveness of the mitigation was observed at all speeds at
which the treated portion of the road was driven.

Due to the observed effectiveness of application of the dust suppressant, its use was
recommended as part of Mitigation Measure AQ-1. To address the concern raised in this
comment, the following additions to Mitigation Measure AQ-1 are proposed:

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

“AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

During construction of the Project, the primary construction contractor shall implement
the following practices:

Colusa County 2

Packet Pg. 69




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

All disturbed areas, including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and unpaved
roads, shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible covered
and enclosed.

When materials are transported offsite, they shall be wetted and covered securely and
at least 2 feet of freeboard shall be maintained.

Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour.

Apply dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project
site, before and during the construction period as needed to reduce dust associated
with truck traffic.

Curtail construction activities when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 150.

Vehicle travel distances and total traffic amounts on roads at the Project site and
accessing the Project site shall be minimized through efficient planning and
management. Special consideration must be given to minimizing the travel distances
of heavy or heavily laden vehicles, particularly during the construction period.

During anticipated peak truck trip periods of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries,
a traffic control flagger shall be present on Spring Valley Road. The traffic flagger shall
enforce the 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles on unpaved roads and shall
monitor and log dust conditions, per the requirements outlined below.

Signage will be placed on Spring Valley Road describing the 15 mile per hour speed
limit for heavy vehicles.

The construction contractor is the designated dust control site coordinator and is
responsible for implementing dust control. It is the dust control site coordinator’s
responsibility to:

O Read and understand applicable mitigation measures and have them available at
the job site

0 Implement the mitigation measures and ensure that all employees, workers, and
subcontractors know their dust control responsibilities

0 Use contingency control measures when primary controls are ineffective
O Monitor the worksite for compliance with the dust control mitigation measures

O Maintain a daily log monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of the
control measures, including offsite emissions due to material transport and other
activities.

Each day during construction, the construction contractor shall keep a daily log of dust
conditions that includes the following information:

O Date

o Time

0 Wind speed
(0]

Temperature

Colusa County 3

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 70




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

0 Minutes offsite visible emissions were observed darker than 20 percent opacity,
including date, time, location, and work activity

0 Soil conditions (damp, dry, etc.)

0 Corrective actions taken, if needed”
In addition to the application of the dust suppressant during the construction of the Project, in
order to ensure that the minimal traffic that would be generated once the Project has been

constructed and is operation, Mitigation Measure AQ-3 has been included to require the
application of dust suppressant once a year to Spring Valley Road for the life of the Project.

“AQ-3: Long-Term Dust Control

Once a year generally in late spring the Project Owner shall be responsible for the
application of dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the
Project site. _The dust suppressant shall be applied on Spring Valley Road from the
intersection with Walnut Drive to the entrance to the Project site. The timing of the
application and the rate of application shall be to the satisfaction of the Public Works
Director.”

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not require the DEIR to determine the long-
and short-term economic impacts of a project on the economic welfare of the County or its
residents. However, promoting the economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a
paramount concern of the Colusa County Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life
of the Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project
is decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is
voided by the County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 15t of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

O The PSMF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee
will be applied.

Colusa County 4

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 71




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery
components become operational in phases throughout the year and/or
for being operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of $110,000 which shall be paid directly to the
County of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations
and a $15,000 payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation
Distict, a $15,000 payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall
be used to support activities in the Park and Recreation Department, and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation
District.”

A-2

Comment Summary:

| feel looking at rolling hills is esthetically better than solar panels.

Response:

Impacts to visual resources are discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.3 of the DEIR. An additional
visual simulation was completed depicting the view from the gate of the commenter and is
provided as Appendix D to the Final EIR. This visual simulation is from Key Observation Point
(KOP) 6.

KOP 6 is located near Spring Valley Road, approximately 0.2 miles north of the Project site. KOP 6,
Orientation 2 depicts views oriented southwest toward the Project site. As shown in Appendix D
of the Final EIR, the existing landscape setting is characterized by agricultural land with relatively
flat terrain. Existing structural features include a residence and fencing in the foreground.
Vegetation includes grasses and trees. Dominant colors for the landscape are green-brown, tan,
and green while the structures are gray, brown, and white. The vegetation consists of irregular,
organic forms of contiguous grasses and trees. The linear and horizontal lines associated with the
structures are visible and prominent from this viewpoint. This KOP provides a typical view for
drivers traveling along Spring Valley Road. Considering the short duration of viewing, viewers
would have a low viewer sensitivity to the visual changes in the area. This KOP also provides a
typical view for the occupants of the residence west of Spring Valley Road. Considering the
frequent viewing by local residents, viewers would have a moderate sensitivity to the visual
changes in the area.

The Project would introduce dark gray color, geometric shapes, and horizontal lines into the
landscape setting and would be visible from this location by a casual observer. The colors, regular
geometric forms and horizontal lines associated with the solar arrays and associated
infrastructure would result in a visual contrast with the irregular, organic forms and colors of the
existing landform and vegetation. However, the structures in the vicinity also possess gray color
and horizontal and vertical lines (fencing). This viewpoint reflects the views of drivers traveling
along Spring Valley Road. These impacts would be short term for travelers because they would
only be approaching or paralleling the Project site for a limited time and their focus would be on

Colusa County 5

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 72




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

the road ahead. This viewpoint also reflects the views of the occupants of the residence west of
Spring Valley Road. For views from residence, while appearing as new and visible features, the
Project infrastructure would be consistent with other horizontal and vertical lines and geometric
shapes visible throughout the landscape. As the Project would attract attention to the casual
observer and the portion of the Project that would be visible would co-dominate the landscape,
the contrast would be considered moderate. However, the Project would not block views of the
surrounding agricultural open space or the trees in the middleground. Therefore, the impacts
would be less than significant.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County 6

Packet Pg. 73




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

B LEO LAGRANDE

B-1

Comment Summary:

High [unreadable (concern?)] using Spring Valley Rd (gravel) in regards to damaging tree crops
and livestock forage.

Defoliation and loss of crop or crops occur when excess dust is present.

Defoliation of an orchard would also effect crop yields the following year.

Response:

Chapter 4, Section 4.2 of the DEIR analyzes air pollutant emissions associated with the Project,
such as emissions from construction related activities including equipment exhaust, vehicle travel
on paved and unpaved roads, and PMio from soil disturbance activities. Mitigation Measure AQ-1
would be required to reduce dust emissions. Based on the Butte County Air Quality Management
District recommended thresholds (on which the Colusa County Air Pollution Control District
relies), the Project would result in a significant contribution to localized ambient air quality if daily
emissions exceeded 80 pounds per day of PMio during either construction or operation. Daily
PMio emissions will be well below this threshold for both construction and operation (DEIR
p. 4.2-16). Detailed emissions calculations are provided in Appendix C of the DEIR.

In June 2022, the Applicant commissioned a field study (Janus Solar Project Dust Suppressant
Effectiveness Study) to observe the degree of effectiveness of the dust suppressant that the
County has historically used on an unpaved, rural road in Colusa County that was representative
of Spring Valley Road and located nearby several nut orchards. The study was performed out of
concern regarding the effects of potential dust emissions during use of Spring Valley Road during
construction.

A liquid magnesium chloride dust suppressant commercially known as “Dust-Off” was applied to
a portion of King Road, an unpaved roadway in rural Colusa County which borders orchards. A
section of the roadway was also left untreated. The dust suppressant was applied at a rate of 0.5
gallons per square yard.

A triple-axle truck, fully loaded with 79,000 pounds of equipment, was driven at various speeds
on the treated and untreated portions of the unpaved roadway. The study concluded that the
application of dust suppressant was extremely effective in mitigating dust generation. As shown
in Appendix C of the Final EIR, the effectiveness of the mitigation was observed at all speeds at
which the treated portion of the road was driven

A triple-axle truck, fully loaded with 79,000 pounds of equipment, was driven at various speeds
on the treated and untreated portions of the unpaved roadway. The study concluded that the
application of dust suppressant was extremely effective in mitigating dust generation. The
effectiveness of the mitigation was observed at all speeds at which the treated portion of the

Colusa County 7

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 74




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

road was driven. Due to the observed effectiveness of application of the dust suppressant, its use
was recommended as part of Mitigation Measure AQ-1. To address the concern raised in this
comment, the following additions to Mitigation Measure AQ-1 are proposed:

“AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

During construction of the Project, the primary construction contractor shall implement
the following practices:

e All disturbed areas, including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and unpaved
roads, shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible covered
and enclosed.

e When materials are transported offsite, they shall be wetted and covered securely and
at least 2 feet of freeboard shall be maintained.

e Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour.

e Apply dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project
site, before and during the construction period as needed to reduce dust associated
with truck traffic.

e Curtail construction activities when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 150.

e Vehicle travel distances and total traffic amounts on roads at the Project site and
accessing _the Project site shall be minimized through efficient planning and
management. Special consideration must be given to minimizing the travel distances
of heavy or heavily laden vehicles, particularly during the construction period.

e During anticipated peak truck trip periods of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries,
a traffic control flagger shall be present on Spring Valley Road. The traffic flagger shall
enforce the 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles on unpaved roads and shall
monitor and log dust conditions, per the requirements outlined below.

e Signage will be placed on Spring Valley Road describing the 15 mile per hour speed
limit for heavy vehicles.

e The construction contractor is the designated dust control site coordinator and is
responsible for implementing dust control. It is the dust control site coordinator’s
responsibility to:

O Read and understand applicable mitigation measures and have them available at
the job site

0 Implement the mitigation measures and ensure that all employees, workers, and
subcontractors know their dust control responsibilities

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

0 Use contingency control measures when primary controls are ineffective

O Monitor the worksite for compliance with the dust control mitigation measures

O Maintain a daily log monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of the
control measures, including offsite emissions due to material transport and other
activities.

Colusa County 8

Packet Pg. 75




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

e Fach day during construction, the construction contractor shall keep a daily log of dust
conditions that includes the following information:

0 Date

Time

Wind speed
Temperature

Minutes offsite visible emissions were observed darker than 20 percent opacity,
including date, time, location, and work activity

o O O o

Soil conditions (damp, dry, etc.)

Corrective actions taken, if needed”

In addition to the application of the dust suppressant during the construction of the Project, in
order to ensure that the minimal traffic that would be generated once the Project has been
constructed and is operation, Mitigation Measure AQ-3 has been included to require the
application of dust suppressant once a year to Spring Valley Road for the life of the Project.

“AQ-3: Long-Term Dust Control

Once a year generally in late spring the Applicant shall be responsible for the application
of dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project site.
The dust suppressant shall be applied on Spring Valley Road from the intersection with
Walnut Drive to the entrance to the Project site. The timing of the application and the rate
of application shall be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.”

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the
economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the Colusa County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into _a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by
the County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 15 of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

Colusa County 9

Packet Pg. 76




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

O The PSMF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will
be applied.

O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components
become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of $110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County
of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation Distict, and
a $15,000 payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used to
support_activities in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County

10

Packet Pg. 77




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

C BOB AND CINDY FREED

C-1

Comment Summary:

Our home is located on East Camp Road, which apparently would be a main thoroughfare for
construction and maintenance of the project. With this in mind, we are adamantly opposed to
the project. We are aware of several injury accidents, as well as fatalities, at the intersection of
Highway 20 and East Camp Road -- there is no turn lane on either roadway, making it a very
dangerous area. In addition, East Camp Road is known to flood, closing the roadway in both
directions (I've attached photos of from this year). With the proposed construction, more
vehicles and trucks will be utilizing Highway 20 and East Camp Road, creating more traffic and
likely more accidents. Furthermore, the additional wear and tear of the already rough East Camp
Road will only add more maintenance required on said roadway.

Response:

The DEIR analyzed the potential impacts of additional construction and operation trips on local
roads in Chapter 4, Section 4.17. The estimated total number of vehicles during the peak hours
would be 230, based on land use, road connectivity, and the nearest location where traffic counts
were available. A conservative range of 230 to 310 vehicles was used for analysis in the DEIR. The
estimated 230 to 310 vehicles during the peak hour is far below the capacity of the infrastructure,
and the roadways surrounding the Project site would still function desirably during Project
construction. The Level of Service calculation for Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road is provided
as part of Appendix J of the DEIR and yields a Level of Service A during peak construction (DEIR
p. 4.17-6).

The Transportation Injury Mapping System! data was reviewed for the years 2015 through 2020
(the last year which data was available). During those 5 years, 7 accidents were reported within
2 miles of the Project site, which includes: 2 accidents where driver or passenger had a complaint
of pain, 3 minor injuries, 1 serious injury accident, and 1 fatality. Construction traffic will
approach the Project site from Highway 20 to East Camp Road to Walnut Drive to Spring Valley
Road. Three of the accidents recorded between 2015 and 2020 occurred at the intersection of
Highway 20 and East Camp Road, including one minor injury accident in 2019, two minor
accidents with complaints of pain in 2015 and 2016. The line of sight on Highway 20 at East Camp
Road is approximately 1 mile in length, and the Project traffic is not anticipated to contribute to
a greater accident rate.

Direct access to the Project site would be on Spring Valley Road, which is an unpaved, rural road
currently typically used by agricultural equipment and rural residents to access their properties.

! Transportation Injury Management System. TIMS - Transportation Injury Mapping System (berkeley.edu).
Accessed on January 9, 2023.

Colusa County 11

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 78




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

As discussed in the DEIR, the Project would introduce short-term construction traffic for truck
deliveries and worker trips over a period of approximately 11 months.

Application of dust suppressant would include pre-Project road conditioning that would grade
and level the road prior to its application. In addition, to ensure that Project construction traffic
does not negatively impact surrounding roads, the Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been
developed requiring a pre-Project inspection and a post-Project inspection of road conditions to
ensure that access roads are not negatively impacted by the additional traffic associated with the
Project.

“TRANS-1: Road Inspection and Repairs

Prior to construction acitivies beginning and building permit issuance, the Project
Owner shall conduct a pre-Project inspection of the construction access routes
approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director. _This inspection shall
document through photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes,
shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the pre-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works
Director.

Following completion of the construction activities, the Project Owner shall
conduct a post-Project inspection of the construction access routes approved by
the Colusa County Public Works Director. This inspection shall document through
photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes, shall be conducted
with County Public Works staff, and following the completion of the post-Project
inspection _documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by Project construction traffic shall be
repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection requirements detailed herein shall
also be performed just before and immediately after Project decommissioning to
address any road damage as a result of decommissioning construction traffic.”

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County 12

Packet Pg. 79




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

D CLARK & NELSON, ATTORNEYS AT LAW

D-1

Comment Summary:

The proposed project seeks to convert 1,024 acres of real property from its historical use of cattle
grazing and sheep grazing to a totally different use of an industrial/commercial utility use. This
significant alteration of the use of this real property is sought to be done by means of a use
permit. While it is recognized that the Colusa County Zoning Ordinance permits an energy
production overlay zone within the Foothill/Agricultural Zoning Classification, it is difficult to
believe that the decision makers who adopted the current zoning ordinance contemplated a
project in the Foothill/Agricultural zone of this magnitude. The conversion of more than 1,000
acres, from its historical farm and grazing use, to an industrial use, should be attempted only by
means of a general plan amendment and rezoning of the property. The potential impacts and
changes that would result if this project is built cannot be properly contemplated nor fully
understood as a project of this type and of this size has never been developed in Colusa County.
Colusa County should not permit and convert more than 1,000 acres from an agricultural use to
an industrial use on the hope and expectation that unknown and undiscovered impacts will not
occur. The development of this project will change the nature and use of not only the project
area but also the surrounding agricultural areas. Solar projects of much smaller size should be
considered in agricultural areas to determine what the long-term impacts can be before
undertaking a project of more than 1,000 acres.

Response:

As stated in Chapter 4, Section 4.11.2.4 of the DEIR, the County's Zoning Code allows for energy
production in areas zoned as Foothill Agriculture and Exclusive Agriculture with a Use Permit, or
a Minor Use Permit if the project site is located in an Energy Production Overlay Zone. The County
has determined that a Use Permit is required for the Project. Colusa County General Plan Policy
AG 2-1 states that alternative energy is permitted on agricultural land. In support of alternative
energy, Policy AG 2-5 describes that solar facilities should be encouraged.

“Policy AG 2-1: Agricultural-related industrial support operations shall be permitted on
agricultural lands. Such uses may include, but are not limited to, processing, assembly,
distribution and warehousing of agricultural materials and commodities and alternative
energy systems that provide energy for on-site uses. These uses should be permitted on
agricultural lands as principal permitted uses subjected to the standards of the Zoning
Ordinance provided the following findings are made:

a. The use provides a needed service to the surrounding agricultural area which cannot be
provided more efficiently within designated industrial or commercial areas or which
requires location in a non-urban area because of unusual site requirements, operational
characteristics, or proximity to agricultural goods and products.

b. The use avoids prime agricultural lands to the greatest extent feasible.

Colusa County 13

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 80




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

c. If the use is sited on productive agricultural lands, less productive agricultural lands are
not available in the vicinity.

d. The operational or physical characteristics of the use will not have a significant adverse
impact on water resources or the use or management of surrounding agricultural
properties within at least one-quarter (1/4) mile radius.

e. The use supports local agricultural productions.

f.  The use is compatible with existing uses in the area.

g. The use will not adversely affect agricultural production in the area.

h. The use will not result in significant adverse traffic or air quality impacts.

Policy AG 2-5: Encourage and support the development of new agricultural related industries
featuring alternative energy, utilization of agricultural waste, biofuels, and solar or wind
farms.

The Land Use section in the Colusa County General Plan includes Table LU-1 which outlines
the minimum parcel size, maximum dwelling density and allowed uses for each of the land
use designations. Categories for the allow uses under Agricultural Upland which the project
site is designated as, includes cultivated agriculture, agricultural industrial, livestock and
animal keeping, agricultural commercial, agricultural-base tourism, low-intensity recreation,
resource production, energy production, single family residential, and farmworker housing.
Energy Production under Agriculture Upland states that solar facilities are permitted as
allowed uses.”

D-2

Comment Summary:

Furthermore, approval of this project will prohibit the future expansion of prime agricultural
property should future water sources be found for the property (Sites Reservoir perhaps). This
conversion of agricultural property to an industrial use conflicts with the overriding policy set
forth in the General Plan that favors and protects the County's agricultural heritage.

Response:

The Project site is located in the Westside Water District which supplies water for agricultural
irrigation. An adequate baseline for agricultural impacts is provided in the DEIR. As described in
Section 15125(a) of the CEQA Guidelines, the environmental setting will normally constitute the
baseline physical conditions by which a lead agency determines whether an impact is significant.
Under the current environmental setting, the Project site does not contain irrigation
infrastructure or an irrigation system connection to the Westside Water District and to assume
future access to irrigation infrastructure would be highly speculative. Due to lack of irrigation
water, the current use on the Project site is cattle ranching.

Colusa County 14

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 81




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

CEQA recognizes that the conversion of prime, unique, or farmland of statewide importance can
result in a significant impact on agricultural resources (CEQA Guidelines, Appendix G). In this case,
the Project site is grazing land (DEIR at 4.1-1) and is not considered prime, unique, or farmland
of statewide importance (DEIR p. 4.1-5). Based on information from the United States
Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service, there are three soil types
found on the Project that may be considered prime farmland when irrigated: Capay clay
(approximately 23 percent of the Project site), Clear Lake Clay (approximately 6 percent of the
Project site), and Corval loam (approximately 5 percent of the Project site). As stated previously,
the property does not have irrigation infrastructure or an existing agreement or connection with
the Westside Water District that would supply irrigation water. Therefore, the availability of
irrigation water in the future is highly speculative, and conversion of the land from grazing uses
to uses for renewable energy production and energy storage is not a significant adverse impact
on agricultural resources due to the conversion of prime, unique, or farmland of statewide
importance (DEIR p. 4.1-5).

D-3

Comment Summary:

The DEIR indicates that there will not be any significant impact from drainage in that the water
will drain from the property after the project is built in the same way that is does presently.
However, the DEIR fails to consider the potential for the accelerated and increased offsite
drainage flows, especially those related to peak flows during a storm event. The project
contemplates placing 196,000 solar panels over 738 acres of the project site. While currently
there are not improvements that would prevent water from rains to permeate into the soil and
pond upon the property, the 196,000 solar panels will be impermeable, and the rainwater will
accelerate off of the panels and quite likely create a significant increase in downstream drainage.
The criteria of the Energy Production Overlay Zone provide in Section E(g) the following: "there
shall be no net increase in offsite drainage flows, including peak flows during a storm event." Our
clients contend that there is a great likelihood of a significant increase in offsite drainage which
must be analyzed and mitigated within the DEIR.

Response:

The 196,000 solar panels would not introduce impervious ground surfaces with the exception of
those surfaces required for the battery energy storage system (BESS) foundations, the substation,
the operations and maintenance building, tracking assembly piles and inverter foundations.
These features would introduce a proportionately small amount of impervious surfaces to the
1,024-acre site. The Project will minimize grading by using portions of the site that are flat and
will not significantly alter the existing drainage patterns. As discussed in the DEIR, the Project is
not within a flood zone and would include minimal new impervious surfaces. Solar panel posts,
fences, generation-tie (gen-tie) line poles, the BESS, the operations and maintenance building,
and the substation would not prevent stormwater flow, and the Project’s design would follow
the natural drainage of the site (DEIR p. 4.10-9).

Colusa County 15

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 82




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Under Section 402 of the Clean Water Act, a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) General Permit would be required for the Project because it would disturb more than
1 acre of soil with the potential to discharge to the waters of the United States. The NPDES permit
would regulate any stormwater discharge associated with construction, and would require the
development and implementation of a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan that would include
Best Management Practices designed to prevent sediment and other pollutants from reaching
receiving waters. Additionally, the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan would be required to
contain visual and chemical monitoring programs for non-visable pollutants (DEIR p. 4.10-3).

Section 44-2.20.20 of the Colusa County Code, states that “there shall be no net increases in off-
site drainage flows, including peak flows during a storm event, and water quality measures shall
be implemented to reduce stormwater pollutants.” The Project would be required to be built
compliant with the Colusa County Code.

D-4

Comment Summary:

The DEIR references that dust will be created as part of the construction of the Project. The dust
will occur not only on the Project site itself but along unpaved portions of Spring Valley Road
which will serve as the primary means of ingress and egress to the Project site. The DEIR proposed
that the dust issue be mitigated by watering dust producing areas twice a day by water truck. The
DEIR fails to analyze the potentially significant impact upon neighboring almond orchards. It is
common knowledge within almond growing districts that the creation of dust near orchards
significantly increases the infestation of mites that are detrimental to almond trees and can cause
significant and long-lasting impacts to the trees and their production capabilities. The DEIR needs
to fully analyze the potential for damage from dust mites and provide mitigation measures that
will be more significant than watering twice a day.

Response:

Chapter 4, Section 4.2 of the DEIR analyzes air pollutant emissions associated with the Project,
such as emissions from construction related activities including equipment exhaust, vehicle travel
on paved and unpaved roads, and fugitive dust (PM1o) from soil disturbance activities. Mitigation
Measure AQ-1 would be required to reduce dust emissions. Based on the Butte County Air Quality
Management District recommended thresholds (on which the Colusa County Air Pollution
Control District relies), the Project would result in a significant contribution to localized ambient
air quality if daily emissions exceeded 80 pounds per day of PMig during either construction or
operation. Daily PM1o emissions will be well below this threshold for both construction and
operation (DEIR p. 4.2-16). Detailed emissions calculations are provided in Appendix C of the
DEIR.

In June 2022, the Applicant commissioned a field study (Janus Solar Project Dust Suppressant
Effectiveness Study) to observe the degree of effectiveness of the dust suppressant that the
County has historically used on an unpaved, rural road in Colusa County that was representative
of Spring Valley Road and located nearby several nut orchards. The study was performed out of

Colusa County 16

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 83




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

concern regarding the effects of potential dust emissions during use of Spring Valley Road during
construction.

A liquid magnesium chloride dust suppressant commercially known as “Dust-Off” was applied to
a portion of King Road, an unpaved roadway in rural Colusa County which borders orchards. A
section of the roadway was also left untreated. The dust suppressant was applied at a rate of 0.5
gallons per square yard.

A triple-axle truck, fully loaded with 79,000 pounds of equipment, was driven at various speeds
on the treated and untreated portions of the unpaved roadway. The study concluded that the
application of dust suppressant was extremely effective in mitigating dust generation. As shown
in Appendix C of the Final EIR, the effectiveness of the mitigation was observed at all speeds at
which the treated portion of the road was driven.

Due to the observed effectiveness of application of the dust suppressant, its use was
recommended for as part of Mitigation Measure AQ-1. To address the concern raised in this
comment, the following additions to Mitigation Measure AQ-1 are proposed:

“AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

During construction of the Project, the primary construction contractor shall implement
the following practices:

e All disturbed areas, including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and unpaved
roads, shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible covered
and enclosed.

e When materials are transported offsite, they shall be wetted and covered securely and
at least 2 feet of freeboard shall be maintained.

e Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour.

e Apply dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project
site, before and during the construction period as needed to reduce dust associated
with truck traffic.

e Curtail construction activities when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 150.

e Vehicle travel distances and total traffic amounts on roads at the Project site and
accessing the Project site shall be minimized through efficient planning and
management. Special consideration must be given to minimizing the travel distances
of heavy or heavily laden vehicles, particularly during the construction period.

e During anticipated peak truck trip periods of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries,
a traffic control flagger shall be present on Spring Valley Road. The traffic flagger shall
enforce the 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles on unpaved roads and shall
monitor and log dust conditions, per the requirements outlined below.

e Signage will be placed on Spring Valley Road describing the 15 mile per hour speed
limit for heavy vehicles.

Colusa County 17

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 84




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

e The construction contractor is the designated dust control site coordinator and is

responsible for implementing dust control. It is the dust control site coordinator’s

responsibility to:

(0]

Read and understand applicable mitigation measures and have them available at
the job site

Implement the mitigation measures and ensure that all employees, workers, and
subcontractors know their dust control responsibilities

Use contingency control measures when primary controls are ineffective

Monitor the worksite for compliance with the dust control mitigation measures

Maintain a daily log monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of the
control measures, including offsite emissions due to material transport and other
activities.

e Fach day during construction, the construction contractor shall keep a daily log of dust

conditions that includes the following information:

(0}

0O O O O

Date

Time

Wind speed
Temperature

Minutes offsite visible emissions were observed darker than 20 percent opacity,
including date, time, location, and work activity

Soil conditions (damp, dry, etc.)

Corrective actions taken, if needed”

In addition to the application of the dust suppressant during the construction of the Project, in
order to ensure that the minimal traffic that would be generated once the Project has been
constructed and is operation, an additional Mitigation Measure AQ-3 has been recommended
that the application be required to apply the dust suppressant once a year in for the life of the

Project.

“AQ-3: Long-Term Dust Control

Once a year generally in late spring the Project Owner shall be responsible for the

application of dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing

the Project site. The dust suppressant shall be applied on Spring Valley Road from

the intersection with Walnut Drive to the entrance to the Project site. The timing

of the application and the rate of application shall be to the satisfaction of the

Public Works Director.”

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the

Colusa County

18

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 85




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the Colusa County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into _a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by the
County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 15 of each year following the building permit
final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

O The PSMEF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will
be applied.
O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components

become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of 5$110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County of Colusa
for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a 515,000 payment shall be
paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, and a 515,000 payment shall be paid to
the City of Williams which shall be used to support activities in the Williams Park and
Recreation Department, and a 515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and
Recreation District.”

D-5

Comment Summary:

The DEIR recognizes that there will be numerous transmission poles located in the county road
right of way from the project site down Spring Valley Road and then along Walnut Drive to the
PG&E substation. The DEIR further advises that these transmission poles will be as high as 80
feet. That results in the poles and transmission cables being some 20 to 40 feet higher than the
existing power poles along Spring Valley Road and Walnut Drive. This increase in the number of
poles and the height of the poles could have a significant impact upon agricultural aerial
applications servicing the orchard and open ground in the area. Poles and wires are a significant
hazard to both fixed wing aircraft and helicopters used in agricultural application. Increasing the
height of the poles and wires to 80 feet will result in a greater safety hazard for the applicators
and may result in aerial application not being feasible in close proximity to the poles and wires.

Colusa County 19

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 86




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Alternatives to the proposed transmission lines, such as underground lines, should be
considered.

Response:

Some of the existing transmission lines in the vicinity of the Project exceed 80 feet in height, such
that the Project would not introduce pole heights taller than those that exist in the area.
Additionally, the gen-tie line for the Project would be built entirely within the public right-of-way
and would not intersect private property. As discussed in Chapter 2, Project Description of the
DEIR, the new 4.1-mile-long overhead, 60 kilovolt gen-tie line would be partially located on the
County’s right-of-way on Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road and partially on land administered
by the United States Bureau of Reclamation, from the Project site to the point of interconnection
at the Cortina Substation (DEIR p. 2-1).

To further address this comment, additional visual simulations were prepared, including a
simulation of the gen-tie line at Spring Valley Road and Beauchamp/Walnut Drive. This KOP is
KOP 2, approximately 1.3 miles north of the Project site, as shown in Appendix D of the Final EIR.
KOP 2, Orientation 2 depicts views oriented south toward the Project site. As shown in Appendix
D of the Final EIR, the existing landscape setting is characterized by agricultural land with gently
rolling terrain to steep terrain in the background. Existing structural features include Spring Valley
Road, fencing, a utility line in the foreground, and transmission lines in the middleground.
Vegetation includes trees. Dominant colors for the landscape are green while the structures are
gray and brown. The vegetation consists of the irregular, organic forms of grasses and trees. The
linear and horizontal lines associated with the structures are visible and prominent from this
viewpoint. This KOP provides a typical view for drivers traveling along Beauchamp/Walnut Drive
and Spring Valley Road. Considering the short duration of viewing, viewers would have a low
viewer sensitivity to the visual changes in the area.

Most of the Project solar facility components, such as the solar photovoltaic (PV) generating
components, substation, and BESS, would not be visible from KOP 2, Orientation 2 because of
the screening of the Project site by rolling terrain, see Appendix D of the Final EIR. The Project
gen-tie line would introduce brown and gray colors and regular vertical and horizontal lines into
the landscape setting; and would be visible from this location as a portion of the gen-tie line
would extend from the northeast corner of the Project site within the County’s right-of-way on
Spring Valley Road.

A second visual simulation was prepared looking west on Walnut Drive, just west of the Cortina
Substation. KOP 6 depicts views oriented west toward Spring Valley Road, approximately 1.9
miles west. As shown in Appendix D of the Final EIR, the existing landscape setting is
characterized by agricultural land with flat terrain to steep terrain in the background. Existing
structural features include Walnut Drive, transmission and utility lines, and agricultural
equipment. Vegetation includes trees. Dominant colors for the landscape are green, brown, and
tan while the structures are gray, brown, and white. The vegetation consists of the irregular,
organic forms of grasses and trees. The linear and horizontal lines associated with the structures
are visible and prominent from this viewpoint. This KOP provides a typical view for drivers

Colusa County 20

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 87




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

traveling west along Beauchamp Drive. Considering the short duration of viewing, viewers would
have a low viewer sensitivity to the visual changes in the area.

Most of the Project solar facility components, such as the solar PV generating components,
substation, and BESS, would not be visible from this location because of the screening of the
Project site by vegetation, see Appendix D of the Final EIR. The Project gen-tie line would
introduce brown and gray colors and regular vertical and horizontal lines into the landscape
setting; and would be visible from this location as a portion of the gen-tie line would extend along
Walnut Drive from Spring Valley Road to the Cortina Substation.

The colors and the vertical and horizontal lines associated with the gen-tie line would result in a
visual contrast with the irregular, organic forms and colors of the existing landform and
vegetation. However, the gen-tie line will appear very similar to the structures visible from this
location, that also possess brown and gray colors and horizontal and vertical lines (utility and
transmission lines). This viewpoint reflects the views of drivers traveling west along Walnut Drive
and would be short term because travelers would only be paralleling the Project gen-tie line for
a limited time. While appearing as a new and visible feature to the casual observer, the Project
gen-tie would be consistent with other horizontal and vertical lines and visible throughout the
landscape and would be a subordinate feature in the landscape setting. The Project gen-tie would
not block views of the surrounding agricultural open space or the foothills of the Coast Ranges.
As the contrast is anticipated to be weak from Viewpoint 2B, the visual impacts are considered
minor and less than significant.

A third visual simulation was prepared for KOP 7, further south on Spring Valley Road, as shown
in Appendix D of the Final EIR. KOP 7 is located on Spring Valley Road, approximately 0.25 miles
north of the Project site. KOP 7 depicts views oriented northeast away from the Project site. As
shown in Appendix D of the Final EIR, the existing landscape setting is characterized by
agricultural land with gently rolling terrain to hilly terrain in the foreground/middleground and
steeper terrain associated with the foothills of the Coast Ranges in the background. Existing
structural features include Spring Valley Road, fencing, a utility line in the foreground, and
transmission lines in the middleground. Vegetation includes grasses and trees. Dominant colors
for the landscape are tan and green while the structures are gray and brown. The vegetation
consists of the irregular, organic forms of grasses and trees. The linear and horizontal lines
associated with the structures are visible and prominent from this viewpoint. This KOP provides
a typical view for drivers traveling along Spring Valley Road. As the orientation of KOP 7 is directed
away from the Project site, most of the Project solar facility components, such as the solar PV
generating components, substation, and BESS, would not be visible from this location, see
Appendix D of the Final EIR.

For both KOP 2 and KOP 7, the colors and the vertical and horizontal lines associated with the
gen-tie line would result in a visual contrast with the irregular, organic forms and colors of the
existing landform and vegetation. However, the gen-tie line would appear very similar to the
structures visible from this location that also possess brown and gray colors and horizontal and
vertical lines (fencing, utility line, transmission lines). These impacts would be short-term for
travelers because they would only be approaching or paralleling the Project gen-tie line for a

Colusa County 21

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 88




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

limited time. While appearing as a new and visible feature to the casual observer, the Project
gen-tie line would be consistent with other horizontal and vertical lines and visible throughout
the landscape and would be a subordinate feature in the landscape setting. The Project gen-tie
line would not block views of the surrounding agricultural open space or the foothills of the Coast
Ranges. As the contrast is anticipated to be weak from KOP 2 and KOP 7, the visual impacts are
considered minor and less than significant. Regarding aerial agricultural pesticide applications,
based on information obtained from the Colusa County Agricultural Commissioner’s office?, there
are nine growers with a total of 15 permitted sites adjacent to the proposed gen-tie line. These
sites include orchards and field crops. Based on data available for the last three years, there were
27 aerial pesticide applications in 2019, five aerial pesticide applications in 2020, and one aerial
pesticide application in 2021. The pole heights proposed as part of the Project are similar to
existing obstacles for aerial applicators.

D-6

Comment Summary:

As property owners and residents of the area in question, our clients are very familiar with the
local roads and have concerns with regard to the impacts this project would have on the local
roads. With Spring Valley Road being unimproved it may not be adequate in its current condition
to accommodate the traffic flows during construction, nor for emergency vehicle access to the
project site both during construction and afterwards. As mentioned, Spring Valley Road is in large
part unpaved and does not have adequate or appropriate drainage facilities. As a result, in times
of rain events, the road becomes either unpassable or dangerous to travel upon. While Spring
Valley Road presents transportation impacts the additional surrounding roadways will also be
impacted. The DEIR acknowledges that Walnut Drive and East Camp Road will also be major
routes to access the project site. While traffic will be greatly increased, particularly during
construction, safety concerns must be addressed at both the intersection of Highway 20 and East
Camp Road where there are no turn lanes as well as at the intersection of Highway 20 and Walnut
Drive where again there are no turn lanes. The DEIR is silent with regard to traffic safety concerns.

Response:

The DEIR analyzed the potential impacts of additional construction and operation trips on local
roads in Chapter 4, Section 4.17. The estimated total number of vehicles during the peak hours
would be 230, based on land use, road connectivity, and the nearest location where traffic counts
were available. A conservative range of 230 to 310 vehicles was used for analysis in the DEIR. The
estimated 230 to 310 vehicles during the peak hour is far below the capacity of the infrastructure,
and the roadways surrounding the Project site would still function desirably during Project
construction. The Level of Service calculation for Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road is provided
as part of Appendix J of the DEIR and yields a Level of Service A during peak construction (DEIR
p. 4.17-6).

2 Data request response from the Colusa County Agricultural Commissioner’s office. January 7, 2022.

Colusa County 22

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 89




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

The Transportation Injury Mapping System? data was reviewed for the years 2015 through 2020
(the last year which data was available). During those 5 years, 7 accidents were reported within
2 miles of the Project site, which includes: 2 accidents where driver or passenger had a complaint
of pain, 3 minor injuries, 1 serious injury accident, and 1 fatality. Construction traffic will
approach the Project site from Highway 20 to East Camp Road to Walnut Drive to Spring Valley
Road. Three of the accidents recorded between 2015 and 2020 occurred at the intersection of
Highway 20 and East Camp Road, including one minor injury accident in 2019, two minor
accidents with complaints of pain in 2015 and 2016. The line of sight on Highway 20 at East Camp
Road is approximately 1 mile in length, and the Project traffic is not anticipated to contribute to
a greater accident rate.

Direct access to the Project site would be on Spring Valley Road, which is an unpaved, rural road
currently typically used by agricultural equipment and rural residents to access their properties.
As discussed in the DEIR, the Project would introduce short-term construction traffic for truck
deliveries and worker trips over a period of approximately 11 months.

Application of dust suppressant would include pre-Project road conditioning that would grade
and level the road prior to its application. In addition, to ensure that Project construction traffic
does not negatively impact surrounding roads, Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been developed
requiring a pre-Project inspection and a post-Project inspection of road conditions to ensure that
access roads are not negatively impacted by the additional traffic associated with the Project.

“TRANS-1: Road Inspection and Repairs

Prior to construction acitivies beginning and building permit issuance, the
Applicant shall conduct a pre-Project inspection of the construction access routes
approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director. _This inspection shall
document through photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes,
shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the pre-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works
Director.

Following completion of the construction activities, the Applicant shall conduct a
post-Project inspection of the construction access routes approved by the Colusa
County Public Works Director. _ This inspection shall document through
photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes, shall be conducted
with County Public Works staff, and following the completion of the post-Project
inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by Project construction traffic shall be
repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

3 Transportation Injury Management System. TIMS - Transportation Injury Mapping System (berkeley.edu).
Accessed on January 9, 2023.

Colusa County 23

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 90




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection requirements detailed herein shall also
be performed just before and immediately dafter Project decommissioning to
address any road damage as a result of decommissioning construction traffic.”

D-7

Comment Summary:

Furthermore, the number of truck trips is vastly understated. The DEIR references that during
construction there will be a need of 15,000,000 gallons of water that would be trucked to the
site. Projecting that a water truck can carry 4,000 gallons per load, that equates to 7,500 truck
trips during construction. The most likely route for the water trucks would be Highway 20 to East
Camp Road to Walnut Drive to Spring Valley Road. That the number of trucks making turns on
the State Highway and County Roads without turn lanes creates significant safety issues. The
actual number of truck trips will also impact the need for additional road maintenance.

Response:

Use of 4,000-gallon capacity water delivery trucks would result in 3,750 round trips or 7,500 one
way trips to deliver 15,000,000 gallons of water during construction. The vendor and hauling trips
described in Table 4.2-5 Construction Scenario Assumptions, account for these truck trips. Water
use for dust control would be significantly reduced due to the use of additional dust suppressant
control measures; however, the maximum, reasonable number of trips is included for a
conservative analysis.

As discussed in the DEIR, the Project would introduce short-term construction traffic for truck
deliveries and worker trips over a period of approximately 11 months. Table 4.2-4 of the DEIR
describes five main phases of construction, which include preparation, excavation, utilities/sub-
grade, construction, and paving. The shortest phase would be 9 days for preparation and the
longest phase would consist of 233 days for construction. During peak construction it is estimated
that approximately 200 workers would be commuting to the Project site as seen in Table 4.17-1
of the DEIR, with 25 percent participating in carpools.

The Transportation Injury Mapping System* data was reviewed for the years 2015 through 2020
(the last year which data was available). During those 5 years, 7 accidents were reported within
2 miles of the Project site, which includes: 2 accidents where driver or passenger had a complaint
of pain, 3 minor injuries, 1 serious injury accident, and 1 fatality. Construction traffic will
approach the Project site from Highway 20 to East Camp Road to Walnut Drive to Spring Valley
Road. Three of the accidents recorded between 2015 and 2020 occurred at the intersection of
Highway 20 and East Camp Road, including one minor injury accident in 2019, two minor
accidents with complaints of pain in 2015 and 2016. The line of sight on Highway 20 at East Camp
Road is approximately 1 mile in length, and the Project traffic is not anticipated to contribute to
a greater accident rate.

4 Transportation Injury Management System. TIMS - Transportation Injury Mapping System (berkeley.edu).
Accessed on January 9, 2023.

Colusa County 24

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 91




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Direct access to the Project site would be on Spring Valley Road, which is an unpaved, rural road
currently typically used by agricultural equipment and rural residents to access their properties.
As discussed in the DEIR, the Project would introduce short-term construction traffic for truck
deliveries and worker trips over a period of approximately 11 months. Per Mitigation Measure
AQ-1, a flagger would be located on Spring Valley Road during peak truck trip periods to manage
traffic.

In addition, to ensure that Project construction traffic does not negatively impact surrounding
roads, Mitigation Measure TRANS-1 has been developed requiring a pre-Project inspection and
a post-Project inspection of road conditions to ensure that access roads are not negatively
impacted by the additional traffic associated with the Project.

“TRANS-1: Road Inspection and Repairs

Prior to construction acitivies beginning and building permit issuance, the
Applicant shall conduct a pre-Project inspection of the construction access routes
approved by the Colusa County Public Works Director. This inspection shall
document through photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes,
shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the pre-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works
Director.

Following completion of the construction activities, the Applicant shall conduct a
post-Project inspection of the construction access routes approved by the Colusa
County Public_Works Director. __This inspection shall _document through
photographs and/or video the conditions of said access routes, shall be conducted
with County Public Works staff, and following the completion of the post-Project
inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by Project construction traffic shall be
repaired to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection requirements detailed herein shall also
be performed just before and immediately after Project decommissioning to
address any road damage as a result of decommissioning construction traffic.”

D-8

Comment Summary:

The DEIR references that the project will include a battery energy storage system. Batteries are
known to have hazardous waste and toxic materials associated with them and have the ability to
leak, burn and/or explode. The DEIR fails to adequately analyze what threats the battery energy
storage system as proposed will create for both humans, wildlife, and the environment. The DEIR
further fails to adequately discuss whether local emergency personnel are capable of responding
to an accident at the project site and if not, what training will be necessary.

Colusa County 25

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 92




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Response:

As discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials of the DEIR, Section 608
of the International Fire Code has been adopted by the state of California to minimize risk of fire
from stationary battery storage systems and to contain fire in the event of such an incident.
Compliance with Article 480 of the National Electrical Code, which identifies insulation and
venting requirements for stationary storage batteries, reduces potential fire risk. Colusa County
has adopted the California Fire Code in its Municipal Code as part of its building and construction
regulations (Title 15, Chapter 15.10).

As discussed in the DEIR, all battery components for the BESS would be installed on concrete
pads and contained within an enclosure to minimize the potential for sparks or ignition. All such
enclosures would be equipped with a fire suppression system. Therefore, the proposed Project
is not expected to expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires (DEIR p. 4.9-17).

Wildfire impacts are discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.20 of the DEIR. The risk of wildfire due to
operation of the BESS component of the Project was analyzed and determined to be a less than
significant impact because each BESS used on-site would be designed, operated, and ultimately
disposed of in compliance with all applicable requirements including the California Fire Code,
Section 608 of the International Fire Code and Article 480 of the National Electrical Code, which
identifies insulation and venting requirements for stationary storage batteries to further reduce
potential fire risk. Additionally, the BESS would include fire protection systems (DEIR p. 4.20-9).

The Project would include four federally required fire safety elements set forth by the National
Fire Protection Association (NFPA):

1. There would be separation requirements which would include larger spacing than
required.

2. Software limits and alarms would be installed in state-of-the-art operating systems based
on regulations, operational experience, and supplier recommendations.

3. Thermal runaway protection would be tested in accordance with UL9540a.

4. Explosion control for the BESS would include mechanical deflagration prevention
ventilation per NFPA 69.

The following fire prevention design measures are included in the Project:

e Fire breaks around the Project site boundary.

e Vegetation and agricultural products located on and around the Project site would be
managed.

e Perimeter roads would be 18 feet wide and interior roads would be 9 feet wide to allow
access by emergency vehicles.

Colusa County 26

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 93




Janus Solar Project

Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Responses to Public Comments

e An Emergency Response Plan would be prepared in consultation with the Fire
Department and BESS supplier, and local emergency response staff would be trained and
oriented at the Project site.

e Infrared cameras would be used to monitor the temperature of enclosed areas.

e Smoke and fire protection where smoke detectors would be provided.

e Gas detection where gas detectors would be provided.

e Fire control and suppression where the BESS would have open sprinkler heads inside the
cabinet enclosures with fire department connections outside the fenced area to ensure

firefighter safety.

Additionally, over the last year, the Applicant, Chief Gilbert of the Williams Fire Protection
Authority (WFPA), and WFPA’s consultant have worked together to develop the following

Mitigation Measure FIRE-1, to be included in Chapter 4, Section 4.20 Wildfire in the EIR:

“FIRE-1: Wildfire Protection Measures

Prior to building permit issuance, a Wildland Fire Management Plan shall
be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for review and approval. This
Wildland Fire Management Plan shall detail implementation measures to
control _and maintain the vegetation throughout the Project site to
eliminate wildland fire hazards to a level determined satisfactory by the
Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief. Said implementation measures may
include but not be limited to maintaining the height of the vegetation
below a prescribed level, the installation of access roads/fire breaks
throughout the Project site area, and/or the installation of sprinkler heads
where determined necessary.

Prior to any building permit issuance, a Battery Storage Fire Management
Plan shall be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for review and
approval. This Battery Storage Fire Management Plan shall detail the
specific details of the fire suppression protection measures that will be
implemented in the battery storage facility to eliminate battery storage fire
hazards to the satisfaction of the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief. Such
measures shall include but not be limited to the following as required by
the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief:

O On-site water storage shall include a 50,000-gallon water storage
tank with hose and truck hook-ups connections compatible with
responding fire apparatus. The source and supply for the water
shall be clearly identified.

O Battery container spacing shall be determined based on UL 9540A
test data, manufacturer recommended separations, and potentially
a heat flux analysis utilizing computational fluid dynamic modeling
software. The computational fluid dynamic_modeling shall be
submitted for review and approval.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County

27

Packet Pg. 94




Janus Solar Project

Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Responses to Public Comments

O The battery containers shall receive a UL 9540 certification. If a UL

9540 certification cannot be provided, a Nationally Recognized
Testing Laboratory, approved by the Williams Fire Authority and
qualified to conduct the field testing, shall conduct a field
evaluation of one typical system utilizing the field evaluation
procedures detailed by that testing laboratory, as approved by the
Williams Fire Authority. Upon passing the field test, the testing
laboratory shall provide a label certifying that the system has been
evaluated to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds these
standards. The Project Owner is responsible for making any and all
required changes to the battery storage units to obtain the UL 9540
certification or the testing equivalent to the satisfaction of the
Williams Fire Authority. Should the Project Owner place on the site
more than one battery storage prior to obtaining approval of the
Williams Fire Authority of the UL 9540 certification or the testing
equivalent, it does so at its own risks and no battery storage unit
shall be connected, operational, and/or energized in any way until
such _certification _approval _is obtained and any required
modifications have been made to the satisfaction of the Williams
Fire Authority. Should the test battery storage unit require being
connected and/or _energized to perform the field certification
testing, the Williams Fire Authority may approve said connection
and/or _energization based on its sole discretion subject to any
additional requirements.

e Compliance with all provisions of 2022 California Fire Code, Section 1207,

including the preparation of a hazard mitigation analysis.

e As part of the siting of the battery storage system, adequate setback shall

be provided to prevent Spring Valley Road from being closed to two-way

through traffic in the event of an emergency response at the Project site.

Prior to fire permit issuance, the setback and access shall be reviewed and

approved by the Fire Chief.”

D-9

Comment Summary:

It does not appear that the project will provide any significant revenue source to either the
County of Colusa or to the City of Williams. However, it goes without saying that the project will
have impacts to county or city roadways, fire and emergency responders, drainage
improvements, law enforcement among others. There is no analysis as to the economic benefits
that would come to the County of Colusa or the City of Williams, nor is there any analysis of the

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

economic costs to the County of Colusa or the City of Williams. The citizens of Colusa County and
the decision makers should be fully advised of impacts upon public agencies and particularly the
fiscal impacts that will result from this project.

Colusa County

28

Packet Pg. 95




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Response:

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the
economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“ PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into _a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by
the County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 1% of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

O The PSMEF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will
be applied.

O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components
become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of 5110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County
of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District,
and a 515,000 payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used
to support activities in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

D-10

Comment Summary:

As the owners of adjacent and neighboring agricultural property, our clients have concerns over
what impact a project of this size and nature will have upon their farming operations and the
value of their agricultural realty. The DEIR does not address what impacts a 1,000-acre industrial
utility complex will have upon current and future neighboring agricultural properties and the
extensive cattle and sheep grazing that occur in the area. The potential impacts include changes
to the vistas, potential acceleration of drain waters, roadway impacts, hazardous material
exposure, altering the safety and availability of aerial agricultural applications and potential

Colusa County 29

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 96




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

impacts to local wildlife. The DEIR should address and adequately review what these cumulative
impacts will have upon nearby property owners, their workers and their property.

Response:

In the DEIR, impacts to agricultural resources are addressed in Chapter 4, Section 4.1, impacts to
visual resources are addressed in Chapter 4, Section 4.3, impacts to hydrology and water quality
resources are discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.10, impacts to transportation are included in
Chapter 4, Section 4.17, hazards and hazardous materials impacts are discussed in Chapter 4,
Section 4.9, and impacts to biological resources are addressed in Chapter 4, Section 4.4.
Cumulative impacts to each of these resources are discussed in their respective sections.

Given the prevalence of existing transmission lines in the vicinity of the Project which exceed 80
feetin height, the gen-tie line for the Project would not introduce a new element to the area with
which aerial applicators are not currently encountering. Additionally, the gen-tie line for the
Project would be built entirely within the public right-of-way and would not intersect private
property. As discussed in Chapter 2, Project Description of the DEIR, the new 4.1-mile-long
overhead, 60 kilovolt gen-tie line would be partially located on the County’s right-of-way on
Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road and partially on land administered by the United States
Bureau of Reclamation, from the Project site to the point of interconnection at the Cortina
Substation (DEIR p. 2-1).

As mentioned in comment D-4, a dust suppressant study was conducted to measure the amount
of dust picked up by vehicles during construction using a dust suppressant such as “Dust-Off.”
Mitigation Measure AQ-1 would reduce the potential impacts dust may have on the surrounding
environment.

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the
economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the Colusa County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by
the County of Colusa.

Colusa County 30

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 97




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 1% of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

O The PSMEF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will
be applied.

O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components
become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of 5110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County
of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District,
and a 515,000 payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used
to support activities in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

D-11

Comment Summary:

Could the creation of a 1,000 acre industrial utility complex lead to additional expansion of this
type of use in the area? If so, the DEIR should review what the potential cumulative and future
impacts could be to agricultural properties similarly situated within the County of Colusa.
Cumulative impacts could be in conflict with Colusa County's General Plan that seeks to preserve
and expand the County's agricultural heritage.

Response:

The Land Evaluation and Site Assessment (LESA; Appendix B to the DEIR) addresses potential
impacts on agricultural production on the Project site and a Zone of Influence. This study and the
Agricultural Resources section of the DEIR (Chapter 4, Section 4.1) provide analysis that
demonstrates the Project would have a less than significant impact on agricultural resources on
the Project site and in adjacent areas.

The Colusa County General Plan includes the following policies related to agricultural land and
energy development:

Policy AG 1-2: Lands designated for agricultural use shall remain designated for agriculture and
not be rezoned or redesignated to an urban use unless all of the following criteria are met:

a. The lot(s) for which conversions is requested is adjacent to agriculture or agricultural
support uses (e.g., receiving plants, hulling plants, warehousing, trucking, distribution,
and other related activities)

b. Conversion will not be detrimental to existing agricultural operations

c. The conversion land is within 500 feet of existing urban infrastructure (e.g., water supply
lines and sewer lines) and conversion will constitute a logical contiguous extension of
designated urban area

Colusa County 31

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 98




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

d. The lot(s) proposed for conversion include a buffer at the agricultural/urban transition
zone to protect future users of conservation lands from nuisances associated with typical
agricultural practices

e. No feasible alternative location (e.g., non-agricultural lands or less productive agricultural
lands) exists.

f.  The use would not have a significant adverse effect on existing or potential agricultural
activities on surrounding

Policy AG 2-5: Encourage and support the development of new agricultural related industries
featuring alternative energy, utilization of agricultural waste, biofuels, and solar or wind farms.

Policy LU 2-11: Develop accommodations for the development of large-scale commercial energy
production, such as solar, on agricultural parcels. Such parcels shall require the following:

e A Use Permit.
e An Energy Production (EP) Overlay Zone.

e Detailed and rigorous site planning and development.

Such projects shall only be located on agricultural parcels with marginal or poor farmland. Prime
farmlands are not appropriate for this type of development.

The Community Development Department was informally approached in October 2022 by a
developer interested in potentially developing a parcel in the County south of the project site, or
more preferably near the Cortina Substation as a battery energy storage project. This undefined,
potentially future project is known as the Beauchamp Project. The technology, footprint, and
specific location are undefined and thus unknown at this time, but are anticipated to include
battery storage within 1 mile of the Cortina Substation. The Community Development
Department had not received a Use Permit application for the Beauchamp Project at the time of
the publication of the Notice of Preparation or at the time of publication of the Draft EIR and still
has not received a Use Permit application to date, as the project applicant is still defining the
project site, which is anticipated to be less than 25-acres and limited to approximately 30 battery
storage units. Project proponents have stated that any such project would feature screening and
appropriate setbacks to minimize any change in the visual character of the area._Environmental
impacts would be analyzed as part of the application process, should the currently undefined
project be proposed through a Use Permit application.

The Community Development Department is interested in maintaining the agricultural character
of the area and intends to site future, potential projects to avoid cumulative impacts to
agriculture in the area. Given that the scope of the Beauchamp Project is unknown at this time,
it would be speculative for the County to attempt to analyze its cumulative impacts, such that it
is not considered a probable, future project and it is not included in the cumulative projects
evaluated in the EIR.

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the

Colusa County 32

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 99




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the Colusa County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of
the Project, Project proponents shall enter into _a Public Service Mitigation
Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by the
County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 15 of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

O The PSMF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will be
applied.

O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components
become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of 5$110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County of
Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a 515,000
payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, and a 515,000
payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used to support
activities in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a 515,000 payment
shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County 33

Packet Pg. 100




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

E VANN BROS, VANN FAMILY ORCHARDS

E-1

Comment Summary:

We have had our fill of power lines and disruptions in our agricultural operations related to power
lines going through many of our properties. We have already had our easement agreements
broken by PG&E and Western Power. Our original agreements allowed us to farm under the
power lines. Then the lawyers got ahold of it and found loopholes to make us quit farming, below
the transmission wires. We will vigorously resist any attempt to build this facility.

Response:

Thank you for providing context for your previous experience with transmission lines. Existing
transmission lines in the vicinity of the Project exceed 80 feet in height, such that the Project
would not introduce pole heights taller than those that exist in the area.

The gen-tie line for the Project would be built entirely within public right-of-way. As discussed in
Chapter 2, Project Description of the DEIR, the new 4.1-mile-long overhead, 60 kilovolt gen-tie
line would be partially located on the County’s right-of-way on Walnut Drive and Spring Valley
Road and partially on land administered by the United States Bureau of Reclamation, from the
Project site to the point of interconnection at the Cortina Substation (DEIR p. 2-1).

Most of the Project solar facility components, such as the solar PV generating components,
substation, and BESS, would not be visible from this location because of the Project site screening
by vegetation (Appendix D of the Final EIR). The Project gen-tie line would introduce brown and
gray colors and regular vertical and horizontal lines into the landscape setting; and would be
visible from this location as a portion of the gen-tie line would extend along Walnut Drive from
Spring Valley Road to the Cortina Substation.

The colors and the vertical and horizontal lines associated with the gen-tie line would result in a
visual contrast with the irregular, organic forms and colors of the existing landform and
vegetation. However, the gen-tie line will appear very similar to the structures visible from this
location, that also possess brown and gray colors and horizontal and vertical lines (utility and
transmission lines). This viewpoint reflects the views of drivers traveling west along Walnut
Drive. These impacts would be short term for travelers because they would only be paralleling
the Project gen-tie line for a limited time. While appearing as a new and visible feature to the
casual observer, the Project gen-tie line would be consistent with other horizontal and vertical
lines and visible throughout the landscape and would be a subordinate feature in the landscape
setting. The Project gen-tie line would not block views of the surrounding agricultural open space
or the foothills of the Coast Ranges. As the contrast is anticipated to be weak from Viewpoint 2B,
the visual impacts are considered minor and less than significant.

A third visual simulation was prepared for KOP 7, further south on Spring Valley Road, as shown
in Appendix D of the Final EIR. KOP 7 is located on Spring Valley Road, approximately 0.25 miles

Colusa County 34

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 101




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

north of the Project site. KOP 7 depicts views oriented northeast away from the Project site. As
shown in Appendix D of the Final EIR, the existing landscape setting is characterized by
agricultural land with gently rolling terrain to hilly terrain in the foreground/middleground and
steeper terrain associated with the foothills of the Coast Ranges in the background. Existing
structural features include Spring Valley Road, fencing, a utility line in the foreground, and
transmission lines in the middleground. Vegetation includes grasses and trees. Dominant colors
for the landscape are tan and green while the structures are gray and brown. The vegetation
consists of the irregular, organic forms of grasses and trees. The linear and horizontal lines
associated with the structures are visible and prominent from this viewpoint. This KOP provides
a typical view for drivers traveling along Spring Valley Road. As the orientation of KOP 7 is directed
away from the Project site, most of the Project solar facility components, such as the solar PV
generating components, substation, and BESS, would not be visible from this location, see
Appendix D of the Final EIR.

For both KOP 2 and KOP 7, the colors and the vertical and horizontal lines associated with the
gen-tie line would result in a visual contrast with the irregular, organic forms and colors of the
existing landform and vegetation. However, the gen-tie line would appear very similar to the
structures visible from this location, that also possess brown and gray colors and horizontal and
vertical lines (fencing, utility line, transmission lines). These impacts would be short-term for
travelers because they would only be approaching or paralleling the Project gen-tie line for a
limited time. While appearing as a new and visible feature to the casual observer, the Project
gen-tie line would be consistent with other horizontal and vertical lines and visible throughout
the landscape and would be a subordinate feature in the landscape setting. The Project gen-tie
line would not block views of the surrounding agricultural open space or the foothills of the Coast
Ranges. As the contrast is anticipated to be weak from KOP 2 and KOP 7, the visual impacts are
considered minor and less than significant.

Colusa County 35

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 102




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

F ELIZABETH KATSARIS

F-1

Comment Summary:

Keeping in mind the threat to public health and safety in the event of a fire, will firefighting
equipment for the Fire Department be kept on site? If so what type?

Response:

As discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials of the DEIR, Section 608
of the International Fire Code has been adopted by the state of California to minimize risk of fire
from stationary battery storage systems and to contain fire in the event of such an incident.
Compliance with Article 480 of the National Electrical Code, which identifies insulation and
venting requirements for stationary storage batteries, reduces potential fire risk. Colusa County
has adopted the California Fire Code in its Municipal Code as part of its building and construction
regulations (Title 15, Chapter 15.10).

As discussed in the DEIR, all battery components for the BESS would be installed on concrete
pads and contained within an enclosure to minimize the potential for sparks or ignition. All such
enclosures would be equipped with a fire suppression system. Therefore, the proposed Project
is not expected to expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of
loss, injury or death involving fires (DEIR p. 4.9-17).

Training sessions with the local fire department will be conducted at the facility so that local
firefighting personnel can become familiar with the facility equipment and appropriate
emergency procedures.

The Project would include four federally required fire safety elements set forth by the NFPA:

1. There would be separation requirements which would include larger spacing than
required.

2. Software limits and alarms would be installed in state-of-the-art operating systems based
on regulations, operational experience, and supplier recommendations.

3. Thermal runaway protection would be tested in accordance with UL9540a.

4. Explosion control for the BESS would include mechanical deflagration prevention
ventilation per NFPA 69.

The following fire prevention design measures are included in the Project:

e Fire breaks around the Project site boundary.

e Vegetation and agricultural products located on and around the Project site would be
managed.

Colusa County 36

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 103




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Perimeter roads would be 18 feet wide and interior roads would be 9 feet wide to allow
access by emergency vehicles.

An Emergency Response Plan would be prepared in consultation with the Fire
Department and BESS supplier, and local emergency response staff would be trained and
oriented at the Project site.

Infrared cameras would be used to monitor the temperature of enclosed areas.
Smoke and fire protection where smoke detectors would be provided.
Gas detection where gas detectors would be provided.

Fire control and suppression where the BESS would have open sprinkler heads inside the
cabinet enclosures with fire department connections outside the fenced area to ensure
firefighter safety.

Additionally, over the last year, the Applicant, Chief Gilbert of the Williams Fire Protection
Authority (WFPA), and WFPA’s consultant have worked together to develop the following
Mitigation Measure FIRE-1, to be included in Chapter 4, Section 4.20 Wildfire in the EIR:

“FIRE-1: Wildfire Protection Measures

e Prior to building permit issuance, a Wildland Fire Management Plan shall
be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for review and approval. This
Wildland Fire Management Plan shall detail implementation measures to
control and maintain _the vegetation throughout the Project site to
eliminate wildland fire hazards to a level determined satisfactory by the
Williams _Fire Authority Fire Chief. Said implementation measures may
include but not be limited to maintaining the height of the vegetation
below a prescribed level, the installation of access roads/fire breaks
throughout the Project site area, and/or the installation of sprinkler heads
where determined necessary.

e Prior to any building permit issuance, a Battery Storage Fire Management
Plan shall be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for review and
approval. This Battery Storage Fire Management Plan shall detail the
specific details of the fire suppression protection measures that will be
implemented in the battery storage facility to eliminate battery storage fire
hazards to the satisfaction of the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief. Such
measures shall include but not be limited to the following as required by
the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief:

O On-site water storage shall include a 50,000-gallon water storage
tank with hose and truck hook-ups connections compatible with
responding fire apparatus. The source and supply for the water
shall be clearly identified.

O Battery container spacing shall be determined based on UL 9540A
test data, manufacturer recommended separations, and potentially
a heat flux analysis utilizing computational fluid dynamic modeling

Colusa County 37

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 104




Janus Solar Project

Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Responses to Public Comments

software. The computational fluid dynamic modeling shall be
submitted for review and approval.

The battery containers shall receive a UL 9540 certification. If a UL
9540 certification cannot be provided, a Nationally Recognized
Testing Laboratory, approved by the Williams Fire Authority and
qualified to conduct the field testing, shall conduct a field
evaluation of one typical system utilizing the field evaluation
procedures detailed by that testing laboratory, as approved by the
Williams Fire Authority. Upon passing the field test, the testing
laboratory shall provide a label certifying that the system has been
evaluated to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds these
standards. The Project Owner is responsible for making any and all
required changes to the battery storage units to obtain the UL 9540
certification or the testing equivalent to the satisfaction of the
Williams Fire Authority. Should the Project Owner place on the site
more than one battery storage prior to obtaining approval of the
Williams Fire Authority of the UL 9540 certification or the testing
equivalent, it does so at its own risks and no battery storage unit
shall be connected, operational, and/or energized in any way until
such _certification _approval _is _obtained and any required
modifications have been made to the satisfaction of the Williams
Fire Authority. Should the test battery storage unit require being
connected and/or _energized to perform the field certification
testing, the Williams Fire Authority may approve said connection
and/or _energization based on its sole discretion subject to any
additional requirements.

e Compliance with all provisions of 2022 California Fire Code, Section 1207,

including the preparation of a hazard mitigation analysis.

e As part of the siting of the battery storage system, adequate setback shall

be provided to prevent Spring Valley Road from being closed to two-way

through traffic in the event of an emergency response at the Project site.

Prior to fire permit issuance, the setback and access shall be reviewed and

approved by the Fire Chief.”

F-2

Comment Summary:

Are there any alternative projects with a bigger or smaller scope?

Response:

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

As discussed in Chapters 3 and 5 of the DEIR, four alternatives to the Project were analyzed,
including the No Project Alternative, the Distributed Solar Alternative, the Reduced Acreage
Alternative, and the Northeast Site Alternative.

Colusa County

38

Packet Pg. 105




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

No Project Alternative

In the No Project alternative, the Project site would continue to be used for agricultural grazing
and the existing environmental setting would be maintained. Changes to the setting, including
changes to the landscape (visual resources, habitat, and land use/agriculture); Project related
impacts such as construction noise, traffic, and air emissions would not occur; and potential
ground disturbance impacts to cultural and tribal resources, wildlife habitat would not occur.
Additionally, the environmental benefits of renewable energy generation would not be realized
from solar development of the site.

Distributed Solar Alternative

The Distributed Solar Alternative would develop solar PV systems on the existing rooftops
throughout Colusa County, which would increase energy efficiency and renewable energy
availability. Under this alternative, solar PV panels would be mounted on existing rooftops, such
that no new land would be disturbed. It is anticipated that a similar amount of rooftop acreage
(approximately 768 acres) would be required for the Project’s 80 megawatts (MW) of solar
generating capacity. Similar to the proposed Project, the Distributed Solar Alternative would be
designed to operate year-round using solar PV technology to convert solar energy into direct
current electricity. The energy generated could be used for on-site uses with the potential to be
shared using a community solar arrangement that allows multiple users to share power from a
single local source. No new construction of transmission facilities or electrical substations would
be required for the power generated by distributed solar PV systems.

Reduced Acreage Alternative

Compared to the Project, the Reduced Acreage Alternative would reduce the Project’s impacts
to biological resources, cultural resources, and noise. Though none of these Project impacts are
significant after mitigation, the Reduced Acreage Alternative, by reducing the acres of land
disturbed and the proximity of noise-emitting facilities to offsite receptors, would reduce the
potential for biological, cultural, and noise impacts compared to the Project. The Reduced
Acreage Alternative also entails less surface disturbance, less construction dust, reduced
construction and decommissioning emissions, and reduced demand for water. The Reduced
Acreage Alternative would not meet the Project Objectives to generate 80 MW of electricity at
the point of interconnection (POI) in a cost-effective manner. It would only generate up to 50 MW
of electricity and would not be economically viable to develop or be commercially financeable
due to its reduced capacity, and it would generate less economic benefits to the County.

The Northeast Site Alternative

The Northeast Site Alternative site size is approximately 107 acres smaller than the Project site;
however, it is anticipated that the same amount of acreage would be used for solar and ancillary
facilities as the Project (768 acres) in order to maximize the capacity to generate electricity. Due
to the anticipated set-aside areas for giant garter snake (Thamnophis gigas) along the existing
agricultural canals, solar arrays would be required to be distributed throughout the site rather
than concentrated in a single area. The scattered distribution of solar arrays would result in less
efficient production of electricity and a significant decrease in capacity compared to the Project’s

Colusa County 39

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 106




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

80 MW. Compared to the Project, the Northeast Site Alternative is anticipated to have increased
impacts to agricultural and biological resources, due to its occurrence on prime farmland, and
because it includes habitat for the federally and state threatened giant garter snake.

Section 2.5 (Cumulative Projects) of the Draft EIR discusses other notable projects in the County,
including one solar and 3 non-solar projects. In addition, the Community Development
Department was informally approached in October 2022 by a developer interested in potentially
developing a parcel in the County south of the project site, or more preferably near the Cortina
Substation as a battery energy storage project. This undefined, potentially future project is
known as the Beauchamp Project. The technology, footprint, and specific location are undefined
and thus unknown at this time, but are anticipated to include battery storage within 1 mile of the
Cortina Substation. The Community Development Department had not received a Use Permit
application for the Beauchamp Project at the time of the publication of the Notice of Preparation
or at the time of publication of the Draft EIR and still has not received a Use Permit application
to date, as the project applicant is still defining the project site, which is anticipated to be less
than 25-acres and limited to approximately 30 battery storage units. Project proponents have
stated that any such project would feature screening and appropriate setbacks to minimize any
change in the visual character of the area._Environmental impacts would be analyzed as part of
any application process, should the currently undefined project be proposed through a Use
Permit application.

F-3

Comment Summary:

Is anything about this project going to change?

Response:

The Project is described in Chapter 2, Project Description of the DEIR. According to Section 15064
of the CEQA Guidelines, a new CEQA document would be required if substantial changes are
proposed to the Project that would require major revisions to the DEIR. Substantial changes
might occur if there were new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the
severity of previously identified environmental impacts. Any new CEQA document required due
to substantial changes to the Project would be circulated for public review.

The changes described to the DEIR to address public and agency comments and minor errata,
including the additions to Mitigation Measure AQ-1 and the addition of Mitigation Measures
AQ-3, PS-1, TRANS-1, and PS-1, are not considered substantial changes. The changes do not
result in new significant impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified
environmental impacts, but are intended to further address less than significant impacts and
correct minor editorial issues in the DEIR.

F-4

Comment Summary:

What is the maximum amount of acreage the project could entail?

Colusa County 40

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 107




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Response:

The Project size is described in Chapter 2 of the DEIR. The Project site is 1,024 acres, of which
only an estimated 768 acres would be used for the Project. As discussed in Chapter 3,
Alternatives, the Applicant used a number of criteria to efficiently site the Project (DEIR p. 3-3).
These criteria included the following:

Sufficient incoming solar radiation.
Flat terrain (less than 15 percent slope across the majority of the site).

Minimal environmental constraints, such as significant wetlands, protected species
habitat.

Site devoid of “permanent” structures, including orchard trees.
Enough acreage for desired project size.

Contiguous acreage.

Capacity of point of interconnection.

Distance to point of interconnection.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County 41

Packet Pg. 108




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

G SID LAGRANDE

G-1

Comment Summary:

The proposed solar project on spring valley road is on the western edge of the pacific flyway. My
concern is the migrating ducks and geese will see this reflection and thinking it is water will try
to land on the panels, injuring or killing themselves.

Response:

The potential risks to migrating birds is discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.4, Biological Resources
of the DEIR. Although data from PV solar array-type facilities indicate instances of avian mortality
resulting from collisions, the best available scientific information to date does not indicate a
significant risk of substantial avian mortality occurring at facilities such as the Project. Current
research on the topic indicates that though avian species, and specifically aquatic habitat avian
species, may perceive PV solar facilities as waterbodies, it remains unclear the proportion of
species that might actually land or attempt landing.® Risk of mortality to aquatic birds from
nearby, local waterfowl hunting resulted in 30,555 waterfowl kills during the 2020-2021 season,
which is much higher than that posed by PV solar facilities® ” The DEIR concludes that the Project
operations and maintenance would have no substantial adverse effects on special-status
migratory birds, and the impact would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated (DEIR
p. 4.4-28 and 4.4-29).

G-2

Comment Summary:

Also, this project will not be beneficial to the county local landowners but to serve only one
landowner.

Response:

CEQA does not require the DEIR to determine the long- and short-term economic impacts of a
project on the economic welfare of the County or its residents. However, promoting the
economic prosperity of the County and its residents is a paramount concern of the Colusa County
Community Development Department.

To address potential impacts to public services in Colusa County, Mitigation Measure PS-1 is
proposed to be incorporated:

5 Kosciuch, K.; Riser-Espinoza, D.; Mogqtaderi, C.; Erickson,W. Aquatic Habitat Bird Occurrences at Photovoltaic Solar
Energy Development in Southern California, USA. Diversity 2021, 13, 524. https://doi.org/10.3390/d13110524.

6 Colusa National Wildlife Refuge. Free Roam Hunt Results Season 2020-2021.

7 Sacramento National Wildlife Refuge Complex. Hunt Results Season 2020-2021.

Colusa County 42

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 109




Janus Solar Project

Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [ 31®

Responses to Public Comments

“PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of

the Project, Project proponents shall enter into a Public Service Mitigation

Agreement with the County that contains at least the following provisions subject

to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each year for the life of
the Project or as a lump sum payment for multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided
by the County of Colusa.

The PSMF is due and payable on July 15t of each year following the building
permit final for the solar and/or battery components of the Project.

The PSMF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will be
applied.
O The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components

become operationalin phases throughout the year and/or for being
operational for a portion of the year.

The PSMF shall be a total of 110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County
of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District,
and a 515,000 payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used
to support activities in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a
515,000 payment shall be paid to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Colusa County

43

Packet Pg. 110




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

H CENTRAL VALLEY REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

H-1

Comment Summary:

The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for all areas within
the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act.
Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to ensure the reasonable protection of
beneficial uses, as well as a program of implementation for achieving water quality objectives
with the Basin Plans. Federal regulations require each state to adopt water quality standards to
protect the public health or welfare, enhance the quality of water and serve the purposes of the
Clean Water Act. In California, the beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and the
Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality standards. Water quality standards are also
contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.36, and the California Toxics Rule, 40
CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws, policies,
technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin Plans were adopted in
1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as required, using Basin Plan amendments.
Once the Central Valley Water Board has adopted a Basin Plan amendment in noticed public
hearings, it must be approved by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board),
Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases, the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (USEPA). Basin Plan amendments only become effective after they have been
approved by the OAL and in some cases, the USEPA. Every three (3) years, a review of the Basin
Plan is completed that assesses the appropriateness of existing standards and evaluates and
prioritizes Basin Planning issues. For more information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the
Sacramento and San Joaquin River Basins, please visit our website:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/basin plans/

Antidegradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water Board
Resolution 68-16) and the Antidegradation Implementation Policy contained in the Basin Plan.
The Antidegradation Implementation Policy is available on page 74 at:

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/sacsjr_2018_05.pdf
In part it states:

Any discharge of waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment or control
not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but also to maintain the
highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum benefit to the people of the State.

Colusa County 44

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 111




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential impacts of the
discharge on water quality, as measured by background concentrations and applicable water
quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) permitting
processes. The environmental review document should evaluate potential impacts to both
surface and groundwater quality.

Response:

Applicable water quality plans and regulations are discussed in Chapter 4, Section 4.10 of the
DEIR.

H-2

Comment Summary:

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb less than
one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total disturbs one or more
acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Storm Water Discharges
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Construction General Permit),
Construction General Permit Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to this
permit includes clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as stockpiling, or
excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to restore the original
line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit requires the development
and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). For more information
on the Construction General Permit, visit the State Water Resources Control Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml

Phase | and Il Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits1

The Phase | and || MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff flows from
new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices (BMPs) to the
maximum extent practicable (MEP). MS4 Permittees have their own development standards, also
known as Low Impact Development (L1D)/post-construction standards that include a
hydromodification component. The MS4 permits also require specific design concepts for
LID/post-construction BMPs in the early stages of a project during the entitlement and CEQA
process and the development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase | MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/storm water/municipal permits/

Colusa County 45

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 112




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

For more information on the Phase Il MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the State Water
Resources Control Board at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water issues/programs/stormwater/phase ii municipal.shtml

Industrial Storm Water General Permit

Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the regulations
contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ. For more
information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, visit the Central Valley Water Board
website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca .gov/centralva lley/water issues/storm water/ind ustrial ge neral
permits/index.shtml

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or wetlands,
a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from the United States
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). If a Section 404 permit is required by the USACE, the Central
Valley Water Board will review the permit application to ensure that discharge will not violate
water quality standards. If the project requires surface water drainage realignment, the applicant
is advised to contact the Department of Fish and Game for information on Streambed Alteration
Permit requirements. If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404
permits, please contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACE at (916) 557-
5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit - Water Quality Certification

If an USACE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, Letter of
Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic General Permit), or any
other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 9 from the United
States Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance of waters of the United
States (such as streams and wetlands), then a Water Quality Certification must be obtained from
the Central Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities. There are no waivers for
401 Water Quality Certifications. For more information on the Water Quality Certification, visit
the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/water quality certification

Waste Discharge Requirements - Discharges to Waters of the State

If USACE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., "non-federal" waters
of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed project may require a Waste
Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by Central Valley Water Board. Under the
California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, discharges to all waters of the State,
including all wetlands and other waters of the State including, but not limited to, isolated
wetlands, are subject to State regulation. For more information on the Waste Discharges to

Colusa County 46

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 113




Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

Surface Water NPDES Program and WDR processes, visit the Central Valley Water Board website
at: http://waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water issues/waste to surface water/

Projects involving excavation or fill activities impacting less than 0.2 acre or 400 linear feet of
non-jurisdictional waters of the state and projects involving dredging activities impacting less
than 50 cubic yards of non-jurisdictional waters of the state may be eligible for coverage under
the State Water Resources Control Board Water Quality Order No. 2004-0004-DWQ, (General
Order 2004-0004). For more information on the General Order 2004-0004, visit the State Water
Resources Control Board website at:

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board decisions/adopted orders/water quality/2004/wqgo/
wq02004-0004.pdf

Limited Threat General NPDES Permit

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to discharge the
groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will require coverage under a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. Dewatering discharges are
typically considered a low or limited threat to water quality and may be covered under the
General Order for Limited Threat Discharges to Surface Water (Limited Threat General Order). A
complete Notice of Intent must be submitted to the Central Valley Water Board to obtain
coverage under the Limited Threat General Order. For more information regarding the Limited
Threat General Order and the application process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website
at:

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board decisions/adopted orders/general orde
rs/r5-2016-0076-01.pdf

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface waters of the State,
other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project will require coverage under a
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. A complete Report of Waste
Discharge must be submitted with the Central Valley Water Board to obtain a NPDES Permit. For
more information regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the Central Valley
Water Board website at: https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/help/permit/

Response:

Applicable water quality plans and regulations are discussed in Chapter 4, Sections 4.4 and 4.10
of the DEIR.

Colusa County 47

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 114




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

| CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION, DIVISION OF LAND
RESOURCE PROTECTION

-1

Comment Summary:

The conversion of agricultural land represents a permanent reduction and significant impact to
California's agricultural land resources. CEQA requires that all feasible and reasonable mitigation
be reviewed and applied to projects. Under CEQA, a lead agency should not approve a project if
there are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation measures available that would lessen the
significant effects of the project.

Response:

CEQA recognizes that the conversion of prime, unique, or farmland of statewide importance can
result in a significant impact on agricultural resources (CEQA Guidelines, Appendix G). In this case,
the Project site is grazing land (DEIR p. 4.1-1) and is not considered prime, unique or farmland of
statewide importance (DEIR p. 4.1-5). As such, and as recognized by the DEIR, conversion of the
land from grazing uses to uses for renewable energy production and energy storage is not a
significant adverse impact on agricultural resources (DEIR p. 4.1-5). This conclusion is buttressed
by a LESA — a tool recommended be used by lead agencies in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines
to determine the significance of the conversion. In this case, the project specific LESA prepared
for this Project concludes that “the Project will not result in a significant loss of farmland and will
not have a significant impact on agricultural land use.” (Appendix B to DEIR, LESA Analysis at p. 1).

The County disagrees that mitigation is required in this instance because there is no evidence
that the Project would result in a significant impact due to conversion of unirrigated, grazing land
to a renewable energy use.

1-2

Comment Summary:

All mitigation measures that are potentially feasible should be included in the project's
environmental review. A measure brought to the attention of the lead agency should not be left
out unless it is infeasible based on its elements.

Consistent with CEQA Guidelines, the Department recommends the County consider agricultural
conversation easements, among other measures, as potential mitigation (See Cal. Code Regs., tit.
14 15370 [mitigation includes "compensating for the impact by replacing or providing substitute
resources or environments, including through permanent protection of such resources in the
form of conservation easements."])

Mitigation through agricultural easements can take at least two forms: the outright purchase of
easements or the donation of mitigation fees to a local, regional, or statewide organization or
agency whose purpose includes the acquisition and stewardship of agricultural easements. The

Colusa County 48

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 115




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

conversion of agricultural land should be deemed an impact of at least regional significance.
Hence, the search for replacement lands should not be limited strictly to lands within the
project's surrounding area.

Response:

The Department of Conservation letter asserts that the Project will have a significant impact on
California’s agricultural land resources because it involves “the conversion of agricultural land”
and therefore the County should require mitigation in the form of purchase of conservation
easements or payment of mitigation fees.

The County disagrees that mitigation is required in this instance because there is no evidence
that the Project would result in a significant impact on agricultural resources.

Mitigation is required to address a project’s “significant adverse impacts.” (CEQA Guidelines
Section 15126.4). As recognized in the DEIR, where a project does not result in significant adverse
impacts, mitigation is not warranted. The executive summary of the DEIR summarizes the
conclusions of the analysis of impacts to agricultural resources and concludes that the conversion
of grazing land is not significant and that “no mitigation [is] required.”

The assertion that the Project has a significant impact on agricultural resources and requires
mitigation is not supported by the information and analysis provided in the DEIR. The DEIR
properly concludes that the Project’s impacts on agricultural resources is not significant. As such,
no mitigation is required.

-3

Comment Summary:

A helpful source for regional and statewide agricultural mitigation banks is the California Council
of Land Trusts. They provide helpful insight into farmland mitigation policies and implementation
strategies, including a guidebook with model policies and a model local ordinance. The guidebook
can be found at:

https://www.calandtrusts.org/resources/conserving-californias-harvest/

Response:

Thank you. Comment noted.
-4

Comment Summary:

Of course, the use of conservation easements is only one form of mitigation that should be
considered. Any other feasible mitigation measures should also be considered. Indeed, the recent
judicial opinion in King and Gardiner Farms, LLC v. County of Kern (2020) 45 Cal.App.5th 814 ("KG
Farms") holds that agricultural conservation easements on a 1 to 1 ratio are not alone sufficient
to adequately mitigate a project's conversion of agricultural land. KG farms does not stand for
the proposition that agricultural conservation easements are irrelevant as mitigation. Rather, the

Colusa County 49

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 116




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10

Janus Solar Project Responses to Public Comments

holding suggests that to the extent they are considered, they may need to be applied at a greater
than 1 to 1 ratio, or combined with other forms of mitigation (such as restoration of some land
not currently used as farmland).

Response:

The case cited by the Department of Conservation—Kings and Gardiner Farms, LLC v. County of
Kern (2020) 45 Cal. App. 5 814 (“KG Farms”) is not applicable to this Project. This case addressed
the potential conversion of thousands of acres of prime, unique, and farmland of statewide
importance due to oil and gas exploration activities over a 20-year time period. The EIR in that
instance concluded that this conversion would be considered “significant.” Here, in contrast, the
conversion of grazing land is not considered significant. Therefore, the court’s discussion of the
adequacy of mitigation offered in the Kern County oil and gas EIR is not relevant to the Project.

Colusa County 50

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 117




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

3 MINOR REVISIONS TO THE DRAFT EIR

3.1 INTRODUCTION

This section includes minor edits to the Draft EIR. These modifications resulted from minor
clarifications and staff-initiated changes.

Revisions herein do not result in new significant environmental impacts, do not constitute
significant new information, and do not alter the conclusions of the environmental analysis.
Changes are provided in revision marks (underline for new text and strikeout for deleted text).

3.2 MINOR CHANGES AND EDITS TO THE DRAFT EIR

Table ES-1 is revised on pages ES-4, ES-5, ES-17, ES-18, and ES-19 as follows:

Potential Impacts Level of Significance Mitigation Measure

IMPACT 4.2-2: Would the project Less than Significant AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

result in a cumulatively considerable | Impact During construction of the Project, the primary
net increase of any criteria pollutant construction contractor shall implement the

for which the project region is non- following practices during-al-constructionrelated
itios:

attainment under an applicable

federal or state ambient air quality
standard? e All disturbed areas, including soil piles,

areas that have been graded, and
unpaved roads, shall be watered twice
daily during dry conditions and when
feasible covered and enclosed.

e  When materials are transported offsite,
they shall be wetted and covered
securely and at least 2 feet of freeboard
shall be maintained.

e Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to
15 miles per hour

e  Apply dust suppressant to Spring Valley
Road, the unpaved road accessing the
Project site, before and during the
construction period as needed to reduc

dust associated with truck traffic.

e  Curtail construction activities when the
County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 150.

e Vehicle travel distances and total traffic
amounts on roads at the Project site and
accessing the Project site shall be
minimized through efficient planning and
management. Special consideration
must be given to minimizing the travel
distances of heavy or heavily laden
vehicles, particularly during the
construction period.

e During anticipated peak truck trip periods
of heavy equipment and vendor
deliveries, a traffic control flagger shall
be present on Spring Valley Road. The

Janus Solar Project 341 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 118




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Potential Impacts Level of Significance Mitigation Measure
traffic flagger shall enforce the 15 mile

per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles
on unpaved roads and shall monitor and
log dust conditions, per the requirements
outlined below.

e  Signage will be placed on Spring Valley
Road describing the 15 mile per hour
speed limit for heavy vehicles.

e The construction contractor is the
designated dust control site coordinator
and is responsible for implementing dust
control. It is the dust control site
coordinator’s responsibility to:

e Read and understand applicable
mitigation measures and have them
available at the job site

e |mplement the mitigation measures and
ensure that all employees, workers, and
subcontractors know their dust control
responsibilities

e Use contingency control measures when
primary controls are ineffective

e  Monitor the worksite for compliance with
the dust control mitigation measures

e Maintain a daily log monitoring the
implementation and effectiveness of the
control measures, including offsite
emissions due to material transport and
other activities.

e Each day during construction, the
construction contractor shall keep a daily
log of dust conditions that includes the
following information:

e Date
e Time
e  Wind speed

e Temperature

e  Minutes offsite visible emissions were
observed darker than 20 percent opacity,
including date, time, location, and work
activity

e  Soil conditions (damp, dry, etc.)

e  Corrective actions taken, if needed

AQ-3: Long Term Dust Control

Once a year generally in late spring the Project
Owner shall be responsible for the application of
dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the
unpaved road accessing the Project site. The dust
suppressant shall be applied on Spring Valley
Road from the intersection with Walnut Drive to
the entrance to the Project site. The timing of the
application and the rate of application shall be to
the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project 3-2 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 119




Exhibit "A"

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Attachment #10

Potential Impacts

PUBLIC SERVICES

Level of Significance

Mitigation Measure

IMPACT 4.15-1: Would the project
result in substantial adverse
physical impacts associated with
the provision of new or physically
altered government facilities, need
for new or physically altered
government facilities, the
construction of which would cause
significant environmental impacts, in
order to maintain acceptable service
ratios, response times or other
performance objectives for any of
the public services:

i) Fire protection?

i) Police protection?

iii) Schools?

iv) Parks?

Other public facilities?

No Impact

! . rod.
PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar
and/or battery components of the Project, Project
proponents shall enter into a Public Service
Mitigation Agreement with the County that
contains at least the following provisions subject
to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF)
shall be paid each year for the life of the
Project or as a lump sum payment for
multiple years until the Project is
decommissioned, the site restored and
the Conditional Use Permit is voided by
the County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 18t
of each year following the building permit
final for the solar and/or battery
components of the Project.

0 The PSMF fee shall be paid
within thirty (30) days or a late
penalty fee will be applied.

0 The PSMF fee may be pro-rata
should the solar and/or battery
components be put into
operation in phases and/or
operational for a portion of the

year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of $110,000
which shall be paid directly to the County
of Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County
General Fund obligations and a $15,000
payment shall be paid to the Maxwell
Park and Recreation District, and a
$15,000 payment shall be paid to the
City of Williams which shall be used to
support activities in the Williams Park
and Recreation Department, and a
$15,000 payment shall be paid to the
Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.

TRANSPORTATION

IMPACT 4.17-1: Would the project
conflict with a program, plan,
ordinance or policy addressing the
circulation system, including transit,
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian
facilities?

Less Than Significant
Impact

\ . rod.
TRANS-1: Road Inspection and
Repairs

Prior to construction activities beginning and
building permit issuance, the Applicant shall
conduct a pre-Project inspection of the
construction access routes approved by the
Colusa County Public Works Director. This
inspection shall document through photographs
and/or video the conditions of said access routes,
shall be conducted with County Public Works

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Janus Solar Project 3-3
Final Environmental Impact Report

Packet Pg. 120




Exhibit "A" Aftachment #10

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Potential Impacts

Level of Significance

Mitigation Measure
staff, and following the completion of the pre-

Project inspection documentation shall be

submitted to the Public Works Director.

Following completion of the construction activities,

the Applicant shall conduct a post-Project
inspection of the construction access routes
approved by the Colusa County Public Works
Director. This inspection shall document through
photographs and/or video the conditions of said
access routes, shall be conducted with County
Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the post-Project inspection documentation shall
be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by
Project construction traffic shall be repaired to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection
requirements detailed herein shall also be
performed just before and immediately after
project decommissioning to address any road
damage as a result of decommissioning
construction traffic.

IMPACT 4.20-2: Due to slope,
prevailing winds, and other factors,
would the project exacerbate
wildfire risks, and thereby expose
project occupants to, pollutant
concentrations from a wildfire or the
uncontrolled spread of wildlife?

Less Than Significant
Impact

FIRE-1: Wildfire Protection Measures

e  Prior to building permit issuance, a Wildland
Fire Management Plan shall be submitted to
the Williams Fire Authority for review and
approval. This Wildland Fire Management
Plan shall detail implementation measures to
control and maintain the vegetation
throughout the Project site to eliminate
wildland fire hazards to a level determined
satisfactory by the Williams Fire Authority
Fire Chief. Said implementation measures
may include but not be limited to maintaining
the height of the vegetation below a
prescribed level, the installation of access
roads/fire breaks throughout the Project site
area, and/or the installation of sprinkler heads
where determined necessary.

e  Prior to any building permit issuance, a
Battery Storage Fire Management Plan shall
be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for
review and approval. This Battery Storage
Fire Management Plan shall detail the
specific details of the fire suppression
protection measures that will be implemented
in the battery storage facility to eliminate
battery storage fire hazards to the satisfaction
of the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief.

Such measures shall include but not be
limited to the following as required by the
Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief:

o On-site water storage shall include a
50,000-gallon water storage tank with
hose and truck hook-ups connections

Janus Solar Project
Final Environmental Impact Report

3-4

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 121




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Potential Impacts Level of Significance Mitigation Measure

compatible with responding fire
apparatus. The source and supply for the
water shall be clearly identified.

o Battery container spacing shall be
determined based on UL 9540A test data,
manufacturer recommended separations,
and potentially a heat flux analysis
utilizing computational fluid dynamic
modeling software. The computational
fluid dynamic modeling shall be submitted
for review and approval.

e The battery containers shall receive a UL
9540 certification. If a UL 9540 certification
cannot be provided, a Nationally Recognized
Testing Laboratory, approved by the Williams
Fire Authority and qualified to conduct the
field testing, shall conduct a field evaluation
of one typical system utilizing the field
evaluation procedures detailed by that testing
laboratory, as approved by the Williams Fire
Authority. Upon passing the field test, the
testing laboratory shall provide a label
certifying that the system has been evaluated
to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds
these standards. The Project Owner is
responsible for making any and all required
changes to the battery storage units to obtain
the UL 9540 certification or the testing
equivalent to the satisfaction of the Williams
Fire Authority. Should the Project Owner
place on the site more than one battery
storage prior to obtaining approval of the
Williams Fire Authority of the UL 9540
certification or the testing equivalent, it does
so at its own risks and no battery storage unit
shall be connected, operational, and/or
energized in any way until such certification
approval is obtained and any required
modifications have been made to the
satisfaction of the Williams Fire Authority.
Should the test battery storage unit require
being connected and/or energized to perform
the field certification testing, the Williams Fire
Authority may approve said connection
and/or energization based on its sole
discretion subject to any additional

requirements. Compliance with all provisions
of 2022 California Fire Code, Section 1207,
including the preparation of a hazard
mitigation analysis.

e As part of the siting of the battery storage
system, adequate setback shall be provided
to prevent Spring Valley Road from being
closed to two-way through traffic in the event
of an emergency response at the Project site.
Prior to fire permit issuance, the setback and
access shall be reviewed and approved by
the Fire Chief.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project 3-5 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 122




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Chapter 2 Project Description

Page 2-11

2.4.1.1.3.6_Access and Circulation

Access to the Project area would be via a main entrance on Spring Valley Road and/or a
secondary access along private right-of-way also connecting to Spring Valley Road. An access
gate would be provided at the site entry. Internal service roads would be built to access the
Project, for ingress and egress to the Project site, to individual Project components, and between
the solar array rows to facilitate installation, maintenance, and cleaning of the solar panels. Roads
throughout the arrays would provide access to the inverter equipment pads and substation. The
perimeter roads would be a minimum of 18 feet wide and interior roads would be a minimum of
9 feet wide and would be sufficient for Colusa County and California Department of Forest and
Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) access.

Page 2-13

2414 Cortina Substation Improvements

To accommodate the Project, PG&E would construct network upgrades, interconnection
facilities, and an approximately 1,000 foot span of transmission line that extends from the
County road right-of-way for Walnut Drive adjacent to the Cortina Substation property line to the
new-Project’s bay station within the existing footprint of the PG&Efacility-Cortina Substation. All
PG&E improvements will be constructed within the Cortina Substation property boundary-and/or
affect existing PG&E structures. To accommodate the gen-tie line, PG&E would potentially
increase the heights of up to four existing 115 kV transmission structures west of the Cortina
Substation from a current height of 110 feet to a maximum height of up to 135 feet, and within
the Cortina Substation property relocate 1-2 existing poles adjacent to Cortina Substation to
create space for entry of the Project’s gen-tie line.

Network upgrades include a grounding system, steel support structures, outdoor lighting, and
outlets, and a disconnect switch. Improvements would also include installation of underground
conduits, pull boxes, and junction boxes. Civil foundation improvements consisting of site
surfacing and grading would be incorporated within the substation facility.

Interconnection facilities to be constructed at the Cortina Substation would include a circuit
breaker, disconnect switches, surge arresters, and a dead-end/pull off structure. A line current
differential relay scheme and breaker failure and reclosing relays would be installed.
Improvements would also include the installation of fiber termination for the gen-tie line.

Page 2-20 and 2-21

2.5 CUMULATIVE PROJECTS

Cumulative impacts refer to the combined effect of proposed Project impacts with the impacts of
other past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future projects. According to the CEQA
Guidelines Section 15355 “cumulative impacts” refer to two or more individual effects which, when
considered together, are considerable or which compound or increase other environmental
impacts. The individual effects may be changes resulting from a single project or a number of
separate projects. The cumulative impact from several projects is the change in the environment
that results from the incremental impact of the proposed Project when added to other closely

Janus Solar Project 3-6 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 123




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

related past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future projects. Cumulative impacts can result
from individually minor but collectively significant projects taking place over a period of time. In
addition, as stated in the CEQA Guidelines Section 15064 (h)(4), “the mere existence of
significant cumulative impacts caused by other projects alone shall not constitute substantial
evidence that the proposed Project’s incremental effects are cumulatively considerable.”

The CEQA Guidelines Section 15130 (b)(1) states that the information utilized in an analysis of
cumulative impacts should come from one of two sources, either:

1) A list of past, present and probable future projects producing related cumulative impacts,
including, if necessary, those projects outside the control of the agency; or

2) A summary of projections contained in an adopted general plan or related planning
document designed to evaluate regional or area-wide conditions.

The cumulative analysis provided in this Draft Program EIR utilizes the first method and is based
on a list of future projects provided by the County. Cumulative project land uses and intensities
are provided in Table 2-1 and shown on Figure 2-7.

The Community Development Department was informally approached in October 2022 by a
developer interested in potentially developing a parcel in the County to the south of the project or
near the Cortina Substation as a battery energy storage project. This undefined, potential future
project is known as the Beauchamp Project. The technology, footprint, and specific location are
undefined and thus unknown at this time but are anticipated to include battery storage within 1
mile of the Cortina Substation. Further, the project ownership is understood to be changing which
could entail further changes to the project. The Community Development Department had not
received a Use Permit application for the Beauchamp Project at the time of the publication of the
Notice of Preparation or at the time of publication of the Draft EIR and still has not received a Use
Permit application to date, as the project applicant is still determining the location of the project
site, which is anticipated to be less than 25-acres. Proponents of the Beauchamp Project have
stated that any such project would feature screening and appropriate setbacks to minimize any
change in the visual character of the area. Environmental impacts would be analyzed as part of
the application process, should the currently undefined project be proposed through a Use Permit

application.

The Community Development Department is interested in maintaining the agricultural character
of the area and intends to site future, potential projects to avoid cumulative impacts to agriculture
in the area. Given that the scope of the Beauchamp Project is unknown at this time, it would be
speculative for the County to attempt to analyze its cumulative impacts, such that it is not
considered a probable future project and it is not included in the cumulative projects evaluated in
the EIR.

Agriculture and Forestry
Page 4.1-5

Impact 4.1-1: Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? (No Impact)

Janus Solar Project 3-7 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 124




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Based on information from the United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources
Conservation Service, there are three soil types found on the Project that may be considered
prime farmland when irrigated: Capay clay (approximately 23 percent of the Project site), Clear
Lake Clay (approximately 6 percent of the Project site), and Corval loam (approximately 5 percent
of the Project site). As stated previously, the property does not have irrigation infrastructure or an
existing agreement or connection with the Westside Water District that would supply irrigation
water. Therefore, the availability of irrigation water in the future is highly speculative, and
conversion of the land from grazing uses to uses for renewable energy production and energy
storage is not a significant adverse impact on agricultural resources due to the conversion of
prime, unique, or farmland of statewide importance.

The Project site is designated as Farmland of Local Importance by the California Department of
Conservation and is not considered Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide
Importance, such that there would be no impact.

Section 4.2 Air Quality

Page 4.2-21

AQ-1: Dust Control Measures

During construction of the Project, the primary construction contractor shall implement the

following practices during-all-constructionrelated-activities:

o All disturbed areas, including soil piles, areas that have been graded, and unpaved roads,
shall be watered twice daily during dry conditions and when feasible covered and
enclosed.

o When materials are transported offsite, they shall be wetted and covered securely and at
least 2 feet of freeboard shall be maintained.

e Limit traffic speeds on unpaved roads to 15 miles per hour.

e Apply dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project
site, before and during the construction period as needed to reduce dust associated with
truck traffic.

e Curtail construction activities when the County’s Air Quality Index exceeds 150.

e Vehicle travel distances and total traffic amounts on roads at the Project site and
accessing the Project site shall be minimized through efficient planning and management.
Special consideration must be given to minimizing the travel distances of heavy or heavily
laden vehicles, particularly during the construction period.

e During anticipated peak truck trip periods of heavy equipment and vendor deliveries, a
traffic control flagger shall be present on Spring Valley Road. The traffic flagger shall
enforce the 15 mile per hour speed limit for heavy vehicles on unpaved roads and shall
monitor and log dust conditions, per the requirements outlined below.

e Signage will be placed on Spring Valley Road describing the 15 mile per hour speed limit
for heavy vehicles.

e The construction contractor is the designated dust control site coordinator and is
responsible for implementing dust control. It is the dust control site coordinator’s
responsibility to:

Janus Solar Project 3-8 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 125




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

o Read and understand applicable mitigation measures and have them available at
the job site

o Implement the mitigation measures and ensure that all employees, workers, and
subcontractors know their dust control responsibilities

o0 Use contingency control measures when primary controls are ineffective

Monitor the worksite for compliance with the dust control mitigation measures

Maintain a daily log monitoring the implementation and effectiveness of the control
measures, including offsite emissions due to material transport and other activities.

e Each day during construction, the construction contractor shall keep a daily log of dust
conditions that includes the following information:

o Date
Time
Wind speed

Temperature

Minutes offsite visible emissions were observed darker than 20 percent opacity,
including date, time, location, and work activity

o O O O

Soil conditions (damp, dry, etc.)

Corrective actions taken, if needed

AQ-2: Construction Equipment Requirements

During construction, diesel particulate filters or other CARB-verified diesel emission control
strategies shall be installed on construction equipment. All on- and off-road diesel equipment shall
not idle for more than 5 minutes. Signs shall be posted in the designated queuing areas and/or
job sites to remind drivers and operators of the 5-minute idling limit. All construction equipment
shall be maintained in proper tune according to the manufacturer’s specifications. Equipment
must be checked and determined to be running in proper condition before the start of work. Idling,
staging and queuing of diesel equipment within 1,000 feet of sensitive receptors shall be limited.

AQ-3: Long Term Dust Control

Once a year generally in late spring the Project Owner shall be responsible for the application of
dust suppressant to Spring Valley Road, the unpaved road accessing the Project site. The dust
suppressant shall be applied on Spring Valley Road from the intersection with Walnut Drive to the
entrance to the Project site. The timing of the application and the rate of application shall be to
the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

Section 4.15 Public Services

Page 4.15-2 through 4.15-4

IMPACT 4.15-1: Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with
the provision of new or physically altered government facilities, need for new or physically altered
government facilities, the construction of which would cause significant environmental impacts, in
order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for
any of the public services:

Janus Solar Project 3-9 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 126




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

i) Fire protection

No-lmpaet: Less than Significant Impact. The Williams Fire Protection Authority would
provide fire services to the Project site. The station is located at 810 E Street in the city of
Williams and is approximately 12 miles from the Project site. While tFhe Project would be
designed in compliance with federal, state, and local worker safety and protection codes and
regulations which would minimize the potential for the occurrence of fire,; the construction of
the Project would introduce a greater fire risk than exists today. The Project is not anticipated
to contribute an increase in population that would cause an increase in the demand for fire
protection.

In addition, Project maintenance and operation may introduce potential ignition sources such
as transformers, electric transmission line (including gen-tie inline), substations, maintenance
vehicles, and gas/electric-powered machinery. The proposed inverters and photovoltaic
arrays may also be identified as a potential ignition source. However, the potential fire risk is
low for these Project components. All battery components for the battery energy storage
system would be installed on concrete pads and contained within an enclosure to minimize
the potential for sparks or ignition. All such enclosures would be equipped with a fire
suppression system. Although the overall fire risk is low, there is the potential for increased
calls for fire service during the construction and life of the project greater than what exists
today. Mitigation Measure PS-1 would provide general funding for provision of public
services in Colusa County, such that the costs for potential increased fire protection would be
less than significant.

i) Police protection

Less than Significant Impact Ne-lmpaet. The Project site would be serviced by the Colusa
County Sheriff’'s Department. The County’s Sheriff’s office is located at 929 Bridge Street in

the C|tv of Colusa and i |s approxmatelv 17 mlles to the east. 1he—l2|=ejeet—+s—|=+et—anne+pated—te

The facility would be secured with chain link fencing along the perimeter of the Project site.
Access to the facility would be provided by individual site entry points. Controlled security
lighting would be installed and would allow for the Project site to be monitored remotely. Lights
would be installed at substations for maintenance and security purposes.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project 3-10 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 127




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

While the Project includes design features that would help secure the site, the construction of

the Project would potentially increase sheriff dispatches as part of emergency responses
associated with the Project. Mitigation Measure PS-1 would provide general funding for
provision of public services in Colusa County, such that the costs for potential increased police
protection would be less than significant.

iii) Schools

No Impact. The nearest school is Williams Elementary School which is 6.1 miles away from
the Project site at 1404 E Street in the city of Williams. The Project is not anticipated to
contribute an increase in population or the associated potential increase in school-aged
children, and therefore would not result in any increase demand for schools.

While the project could employee up to 200 employees during the 11-month construction
period, it is anticipated that the maijority of these workers would temporarily commute during
this period. Once constructed, permanent employment would include up to three employees.
Thus, the Project would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the
provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically
altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other
performance objectives for schools.

iv) Parks

No Impact. The nearest park from-the-Project-site is 11.3 miles from the Project site. The
Northview Park is located at 180 Virginia St., Williams, CA 95987. The Project is not
anticipated to contribute an increase in population, and therefore would not result in any
increase demand for park facilities.

Thus, the proposed Project would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts
associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new
or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other
performance objectives for any park services. Parks and other recreational resources are
discussed further in Section 4.16, Recreation.

V) Other public facilities?

No impact. The Project is not anticipated to contribute to increased population growth. It is
not anticipated that the demand for public facilities such as libraries or parks would be created.
Therefore, the Project would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with
the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically
altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant
environmental impacts, to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times, or other
performance objectives for any other public facilities.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project 3-11 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 128




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Mitigation:-Nonerequired-—-PS-1: Public Services Mitigation Fee

Prior to issuance of a building permit for the solar and/or battery components of the project,
project proponents shall enter into a Public Service Mitigation Agreement with the County that
contains at least the following provisions subject to Board of Supervisors’ approval:

e A Public Service Mitigation Fee (PSMF) shall be paid each vyear for the life of the project
or as a lump sum payment for multiple yvears until the project is decommissioned, the site
restored and the Conditional Use Permit is voided by the County of Colusa.

e The PSMF is due and payable on July 15t of each year following the building permit final
for the solar and/or battery components of the project.

o The PSMF fee shall be paid within thirty (30) days or a late penalty fee will be
applied.

o The PSMF fee may be pro-rata should the solar and/or battery components
become operational in phases throughout the year and/or for being operational for
a portion of the year.

e The PSMF shall be a total of $110,000 which shall be paid directly to the County of
Colusa for unrestricted Colusa County General Fund obligations and a $15,000
payment shall be paid to the Maxwell Park and Recreation District, and a $15,000
payment shall be paid to the City of Williams which shall be used to support activities
in the Williams Park and Recreation Department, and a $15,000 payment shall be paid
to the Arbuckle Park and Recreation District.”

Section 4.17 Transportation
Page 4.17-6

IMPACT 4.17-1: Would the project conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing
the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? (Less than
significant Impact)

The LOS analysis performed for the Traffic Analysis Memorandum provided in Appendix J relies
on the conservative estimates due to the lack of traffic count data. Given the remoteness of the
Project site, the local roads are believed to have far fewer vehicles than their capacity. Applying
the conservative estimate of 800 vehicles per day under current conditions, during the peak hour
there would be 80 or fewer vehicles on the road using the Highway Capacity Manual standard
estimation method of peak hour being 10 percent. The Highway Capacity Manual capacity for a
single free flow lane is 1,800 vehicles per hour (TRB 2016). These intersections are two-way stop-
controlled intersections, so they have one free-flowing lane in each direction. The estimated total
number of vehicles during the peak hours, taking into account 80 vehicles per hour at Walnut
Drive and at East Camp Road currently, plus 150 vehicles generated by Project construction,
would be 230 to 310. The actual capacity of the intersection is far less than the sum of the two
lanes since there would be a break in the traffic for stopped vehicles; however, the estimated 230
to 310 vehicles during the peak hour is far below the capacity of the infrastructure, and the
roadways surrounding the Project site would still function desirably during Project construction.
The LOS calculation for Walnut Drive and Spring Valley Road is provided as Appendix A and
yields a LOS A during peak construction. Based on this conservative estimate, it can be
reasonably concluded that the LOS will be C or better during construction.

Janus Solar Project 3-12 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 129




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

Because the existing roadways would still be functioning under their estimated capacity, there will
be no need to mitigate for traffic and a Traffic Management Plan is not anticipated to be needed
for this Project.

During the construction phase, service roads would be constructed in between the solar arrays
and around the Project site. Signage indicating the speed limit and stop signs would be posted
where appropriate. Due to the remoteness of the Project site, it is not expected to interfere with
any bicycle or pedestrian facilities.

The proposed Project would not conflict with a program, plan, ordinance, or policy addressing the
circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle, and pedestrian facilities. Therefore, the
Project impact would be less than significant.

Mitigation: Noenerequired-—TRANS-1: Road Inspection and Repairs

Prior to construction activities beginning and building permit issuance, the Applicant shall conduct
a pre-Project inspection of the construction access routes approved by the Colusa County Public
Works Director. This inspection shall document through photographs and/or video the conditions
of said access routes, shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the
completion of the pre-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works
Director.

Following completion of the construction activities, the Applicant shall conduct a post-Project
inspection of the construction access routes approved by the Colusa County Public Works
Director. This inspection shall document through photographs and/or video the conditions of said
access routes, shall be conducted with County Public Works staff, and following the completion
of the post-Project inspection documentation shall be submitted to the Public Works Director.
Damage determined to have been caused by Project construction traffic shall be repaired to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

The pre-Project and post-Project inspection requirements detailed herein shall also be performed
just before and immediately after project decommissioning to address any road damage as a
result of decommissioning construction traffic.

Section 4.20 Wildfire
Page 4.20-8 through 4.20-9

IMPACT 4.20-2: Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, would the project exacerbate
wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or
the uncontrolled spread of wildlife? (Less than Significant Impact)

Construction and Decommissioning

During Project construction and decommissioning, the primary fire hazards would be heat or
sparks from vehicles and construction equipment. These hazards could potentially ignite dry
vegetation at the site, especially during the warmer, dry months between June and October.
Additionally, construction activities such as welding and grinding could generate sparks which
would increase the likelihood of ignition. Therefore, dependent on the time of year and location of

Janus Solar Project 3-13 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 130




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10
3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

construction activities at the Project site, there could be a temporary increase in exacerbated fire
risk in the area.

As discussed in Section 4.20.2 Regulatory Setting, wildfires release large amount of air pollutants,
which can pose as a harmful exposure to first responders such as firefighters, as well as the
surrounding communities. The Project site includes relatively flat topography with some rolling
hills, and sparse vegetation. While the use of vehicles and equipment on the Project site could
introduce an ignition source that could lead to the spread of wildfire, the risk of such an impact
would be low. Due to the short-term duration of construction as well as the existing flat topography,
lack of vegetation on-site, and distance to population centers, a potential ignition from Project
construction is not likely to lead to the spread of wildfire. Therefore, impacts to wildfire risk from
Project construction and decommissioning would be less than significant.

Operation

The Project would include battery energy storage systems and other supporting electrical
equipment elements that may be susceptible to fire. However, each battery energy storage
system used on-site would be designed, operated, and ultimately disposed of in compliance with
all applicable requirements including the California Fire Code, Section 608 of the IFC, which has
been adopted by the State of California, to minimize risk of fire from stationary battery energy
storage systems and contain fire in the event of such an incident, and Article 480 of the National
Electrical Code, which identifies insulation and venting requirements for stationary storage
batteries to further reduce potential fire risk. Additionally, the battery energy storage system would
include fire protection systems. Intermittent maintenance activities could increase the potential for
ignition on-site due to the presence of vehicles and use of equipment; however, given the low
frequency and nature of maintenance activities as well as the site topography, vegetation, and
surrounding land uses, Project operation and maintenance would not significantly exacerbate
existing wildfire risks. The potential impacts related to wildfires would be less than significant.

Mitigation: FIRE-1: Wildfire Protection Measures

e Prior to building permit issuance, a Wildland Fire Management Plan shall be submitted to
the Williams Fire Authority for review and approval. This Wildland Fire Management Plan
shall detail implementation measures to control and maintain the vegetation throughout
the Project site to eliminate wildland fire hazards to a level determined satisfactory by the
Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief. Said implementation measures may include but not be
limited to maintaining the height of the vegetation below a prescribed level, the installation
of access roads/fire breaks throughout the Project site area, and/or the installation of
sprinkler heads where determined necessary.

e Prior to any building permit issuance, a Battery Storage Fire Management Plan shall be
submitted to the Williams Fire Authority for review and approval. This Battery Storage Fire
Management Plan shall detail the specific details of the fire suppression protection
measures that will be implemented in the battery storage facility to eliminate battery
storage fire hazards to the satisfaction of the Williams Fire Authority Fire Chief. Such
measures shall include but not be limited to the following as required by the Williams Fire
Authority Fire Chief:

o On-site water storage shall include a 50,000-gallon water storage tank with hose and
truck hook-ups connections compatible with responding fire apparatus. The source
and supply for the water shall be clearly identified.

Janus Solar Project 3-14 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 131




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

3 Minor Revisions to The Draft EIR

o0 Battery container spacing shall be determined based on UL 9540A test data,
manufacturer recommended separations, and potentially a heat flux analysis utilizing
computational fluid dynamic_modeling software. The computational fluid dynamic
modeling shall be submitted for review and approval.

o0 The battery containers shall receive a UL 9540 certification. If a UL 9540 certification
cannot be provided, a Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory, approved by the
Williams Fire Authority and qualified to conduct the field testing, shall conduct a field
evaluation of one typical system utilizing the field evaluation procedures detailed by
that testing laboratory, as approved by the Williams Fire Authority. Upon passing the
field test, the testing laboratory shall provide a label certifying that the system has been
evaluated to UL 9540 standards and meets or exceeds these standards. The Project
Owner is responsible for making any and all required changes to the battery storage
units to obtain the UL 9540 certification or the testing equivalent to the satisfaction of
the Williams Fire Authority. Should the Project Owner place on the site more than
one battery storage prior to obtaining approval of the Williams Fire Authority of the UL
9540 certification or the testing equivalent, it does so at its own risks and no battery
storage unit shall be connected, operational, and/or energized in any way until such
certification approval is obtained and any required modifications have been made to
the satisfaction of the Williams Fire Authority. Should the test battery storage unit
require being connected and/or energized to perform the field certification testing, the
Williams Fire Authority may approve said connection and/or energization based on its
sole discretion subject to any additional requirements.

e Compliance with all provisions of 2022 California Fire Code, Section 1207, including the
preparation of a hazard mitigation analysis.

e As part of the siting of the battery storage system, adequate setback shall be provided to
prevent Spring Valley Road from being closed to two-way through traffic in the event of an
emergency response at the Project site. Prior to fire permit issuance, the setback and
access shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire Chief.

Sections 4.1,4.2,4.3,4.4,4.5,4.6,4.7,4.8, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11, 4.12, 4.13, 4.14, 4.15, 4.16, 4.17,
4.18,4.19, and 4.20

Pages 4.1-13, 4.2-21, 4.3-18, 4.4-34, 4.5-24, 4.6-7, 4.7-12, 4.8-7, 4.9-17, 4.10-10, 4.11-4, 4.12-
3,4.13-19, 4.14-4, 4.15-4, 4.16-3, 4.17-8, 4.18-3, 4.19-8, 4.20-10

PG&E Cortina Substation Improvements

To accommodate the Project, PG&E would construct network upgrades, interconnection
facilities, and an approxmatelv 1,000- foot span of transmission lines that weuld extends from
& the County road right-
of-way for Walnut Drlve adjacent to the Cortlna Substation Qrogerty to the Project’s bay within
the existing footprint of the available PG&E Cortina Substation-bay. The improvements would
include the installation of a grounding system, disconnect switches, surge arresters, outdoor
lighting and outlets, and fiber termination for the gen-tie line. Fhe-All PG&E improvements made
would be constructed within the existing-Cortina Substation property boundary feetprirt-and/or
affect existing PG&E structures. To accommodate the gen-tie line, PG&E would potentially
increase the heights of up to four existing 115 kV transmission structures west of the Cortina
Substation from a current height of 110 feet to a maximum height of up to 135 feet, and within
the Cortina Substation property relocate 1-2 existing poles adjacent to Cortina Substation to
create space for entry of the Project’s gen-tie line.

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project 3-15 Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 132




Appendix A

Exhibit "A"

Attachment #10 [__31®

APPENDIX A
PUBLIC NOTICES

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project
Final Environmental Impact Report

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Packet Pg. 133




cowsa cofichibit "A"
NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY

DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
JANUS SOLAR PROJECT (PD-3829/UP 20-01), SCH
Number 2020070577

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the County of Colusa,
as the Lead Agency, has prepared a Draft Environmental
Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed Use Permit (UP)
and Williamson Act contract cancellation to construct,
operate, maintain, and decommission a photovoltaic (PV)
electricity generating facility, with a battery energy storage
system (BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure,
commonly known as the Janus Solar Project (Project).

PROJECT LOCATION: The Project is approximately 6.5
miles southwest of the City of Williams. State Highway 20
runs about one mile from the Project site, north and west.
The proposed Project would be located on three parcels
(APN’s 018-050-005, -006, and -013) totaling 1,023.9
acres currently used for cattle grazing in Colusa County,
California. The Project would connect to the Cortina
Substation, located on Walnut Drive, approximately 3 miles
northeast of the Project site.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Project consists of three
major components: a solar energy generating facility, the
battery energy storage system (BESS), and the generation
tie-line. The solar facility would include arrays of solar PV
modules (or panels) and support structures, power
inverters and transformers/power conditioning stations,
and an on-site substation. The Project would include
approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple solar
arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system.
Other solar facility components would include a project
substation, access roads, perimeter fences,
telecommunications infrastructure, a meteorological data
collection system, signage, lighting, stormwater facilities,
and an operations and maintenance building.

The BESS is expected to be located adjacent to the
aforementioned substation. Batteries would be contained
within enclosures. The combined footprint for the BESS
would be approximately 5 acres. Key components of the
BESS include batteries and battery storage system
enclosures and controllers, converters, inverters, and
transformers. The BESS enclosures would also house
required heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC)
and fire protection systems.

The on-site substation would connect to the existing
Cortina Substation via an approximately 3-mile-long, 60 kV
gen-tie line strung on approximately 59 new poles of up to
80 feet in height. The gen-tie line also would include fiber
optic line for communications.

PUBLIC REVIEW PERIOD: The 45-day public review
period for the DEIR begins on October 15, 2021 and ends
on November 29, 2021. All comments must be received
within this time period. Written comments should be
submitted to Greg Plucker, Community Development
Director, 1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA 95932 or to
gplucker@countyofcolusa.com.

DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY: The DEIR and other project
documentation is available for review online at:
https://www.countyofcolusa.org/996/Janus-Solar-Project.
Hard copies are available for review at the Colusa Main
Library at 738 Market St. in Colusa, CA 95932, the
Williams Branch Library at 901 E Street in Williams, CA
95987, and the Community Development Department at
1213 Market Street, Colusa, CA. 95932.

SCHEDULE PUBLIC MEETING: A public meeting has
been scheduled for Thursday, November 4, 2021 at
Granzella’s Conference Room, 391 6th St., Williams, CA
95987 from 6:00 pm to 7:30 pm.

SIGNIFICANT ANTICIPATED ENVIRONMENTAL
EFFECTS: The DEIR evaluates the Project’s potentially
significant impacts and recommends mitigation measures
to avoid/reduce impacts. The Project is not expected to
result in any significant, unmitigated impacts.

HAZARDOUS WASTE SITES: The proposed project is not
located on any hazardous waste sites lists enumerated
under Section 65965.5 of the Government Code.

Attachment #10 [__31®

Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

ect (9002 :

o)

Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Pr

Attachment

Packet Pg. 134




QUESTIONS: If you have any qurionﬁh ut&ismr ioFi,
please contact Greg Plucker, Counl X ‘b m ity
Development Department by phone at (530) 458-0480 or
by email at gplucker@countyofcolusa.com.

Dated: October 15, 2021

/s/ Melissa Kitts, Deputy Clerk

10/21/2021 - WPR #2021-5056

® 47

Attachment #10 [ 31®

Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Attachment

Packet Pg. 135




Appendix B

Exhibit "A"

Attachment #10 [__31®

APPENDIX B
RECIPIENTS OF THE FINAL EIR

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project
Final Environmental Impact Report

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Packet Pg. 136




Exhibit "A"

Individuals

Bob and Cindy Freed

Brent Edward LaGrande
Catherine Maureen Ahart
Clifford Allan Myers

David Nelson

Diane Frost

Elizabeth Ferrini Katsaris
Garnett Vann

James Charter

Jean Ferrini

Jean Terkildsen

Jeremiah and Jessica Karlonas
Joe Ferrini

Jonathan and Laura Zilli

Larry and Darlene Farmer

Leo LaGrande

Matt Ferrini

Matt LaGrande

Matthew Ferrini

Richard Mora

Salt Creek Orchards Group
Sid LaGrande

Spring Valley Ranch Partnership
Stephen Marsh

Thomas and Perry Charter
Vance and Nancy Boyes

Vann Brothers General Partnership
Ward Charter

State/Federal

Cal Fire

California Department of Wildlife Region 2

California Energy Commission

California Public Utiltiiles Commission

Caltrans

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control District
Department of Conservation Land Resource Protection
Pacific Gas and Electric

Reclamation District #1004

US Fish and Wildlife

Western Area Power Administration Sierra Neveda Region
Williams Fire Protection Authority

Local Agencies

Agricultural Commissioner

Air Pollution Control District
County Assessor

Environmental Health

Kent Boes - Supervisor District 3
Public Works

Sherrif's Department

Attachment #10 [__31®

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 137




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Appendix C

APPENDIX C
DUST SUPPRESSANT EFFECTIVENESS STUDY PHOTO LOG

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project Tetra Tech / 2020070577
Final Environmental Impact Report February 2023

Packet Pg. 138




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Photograph Log
Janus Solar Project
Dust Suppressant Effectiveness Study

Photo 1:
Description:

Test #1: Untreated roadway,
truck traveling at 15 mph

Photo 2:
Description:
Test #2: Road treated with

dust suppressant, truck
traveling at 15 mph

Tetra Tech, Inc.

Photos Taken by Pablo Rodriguez on Jun|

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 139




Exhibit "A"
Photograph Log
Janus Solar Project

Attachment #10 [__31®

Dust Suppressant Effectiveness Study

Photo 3:
Description:

Test #2: Untreated roadway,
truck traveling at 25 mph

Photo 4:
Description:
Test #2: Treated with dust

suppressant, truck traveling at
25 mph

Tetra Tech, Inc.

Photos Taken by Pablo Rodriguez on Jun|

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 140




Exhibit "A" Attachment #10 [__31®

Photograph Log
Janus Solar Project
Dust Suppressant Effectiveness Study

Photo 5:
Description:

Test #3: Untreated roadway,
truck traveling at 40 mph.

Photo 6:
Description:
Test #3: Treated with dust

suppressant, truck traveling
at 40 mph

Tetra Tech, Inc.

Photos Taken by Pablo Rodriguez on Jun|

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 141




Appendix D

Exhibit "A"

Attachment #10 [__31®

ADDITIONAL PHOTOGRAPHIC SIMULATIONS

APPENDIX D

Attachment: Exhibit "A" Final EIR Janus Solar Project (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Janus Solar Project
Final Environmental Impact Report

Tetra Tech / 2020070577
February 2023

Packet Pg. 142




evl ‘Bd 19)oed

>
g
(2]
s 3
3= o SNOILIANOD a3LYININIS
.m m. 1435U0D 10J 10N
‘Ajuo @3 31404 aue sueld
eUcm suon _.X_._ SIA :I3WIe|ISIg
. 2.
o 9zl ml. apn3i8uo
oéuwr.mm 1.“ apnine]
;m V” 101393.41p Suimaipn
>M>:mo_>_ ”-l_ )}IPUOI 1B3YIe3N
Lz/9l/e = u30joydjoaleq
wdge:e Dlu 8030yd Jo awi|
m
uonewIc “la dei80j0yd
[
Q
=]
I
»
o
Q
=
o
-
S.
(13
Q
-~
E
S SNOILIANOD DNILSIX3
(.
Q
=
c
(7]
()
o
. 8 Leyoneag
¢ 70 julod
uone @ sqQ Aoy
U
1]
w ue|d yuiodmaip Aoy
N & 7TNNIS
% OLOHd
?
o
v) ‘Al = yesnjoy
g )aroyd
yv1 & SNNY(
N
L

P WV HQIYX3




¥v1 ‘6d 19)0ed

SNOILIANOID @3LY1NINIS

U0130NJ3SU0D 404 JO0N
‘Ajuo @dualajal 10j ate sueld
pUB SUOIIBZI[ENSIA 13WIR|ISIQ

ArRéAr #1o=v

Peaay 59187777 L~ apn1n8uo
eioﬁ 6€ apne]
&z:t:om o321 SUIMaIn
Mou :UONIPUOD JBYFR3
= /90/zL ydes8ojoyd Jo a3eQ

iegie ydes8ojoyd jo awi |

uolyew.oju| ydeis3oloyd

Y
=R \ SNOILIGNOJ DNILSIX3
/z.__:_m,\» JW,_U\J &

pIsay Y Aajren Sunds
‘90 julod
uonentasqo Aay

ue|d yuiodmaip Aoy

NOILYTNNIS
O10Hd

v) ‘Auno) esnjo)

1133fodd
dv10S SNNVYI

((628¢-ad) L0-0Z# Hwuad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 3ooloid tejog snuer yi3 |e

s WV HQIYX3




Gyl ‘Bd 19)0ed

>
g
(2]
5 3
3= S SNOILIANOD a3LYININIS
.m m. 1135SU03 104 J0N
‘Ajuo @3 31404 aue sueld
encm suon _.X_._ SIA :I3WIe|ISIg
3.
o IRaradh ml. apn3i8uo
L@Noﬁmm 1“ apnie]

S 1322.41p 3
u“mtoz Vn 101393.41p Suimaipn
>M>:mo_>_ H )}IPUOI 1B3YIe3N
Lz/9l/e = u30joydjoaleq
wdgs:z Dlu 8030yd Jo awi|

m
uonewIc “la dei80j0yd
[
Q
=)
v
(7
o
Q
-
o
-
S.
(1]
(2]
-
E
S SNOILIANOD DNILSIX3
[
Q
=)
[
(7]
(7
o
pi ¥ jep Bunds
€ 10 3ul0d
uone @ sqQ Aoy
U
1]
w ue|d yuiodmaip Aoy
N & 71NNIS
% OLOHd
?
o
v) ‘Al = yesnjoy
g )aroyd
yv1 & SNNY(
N
L

P WV HQIYX3




9¥1 "Bd 1@)oed

J010BJIUOD UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uoI3aNIISU0)

papaau JI ‘U e} SUOLDR BALIDII0D0

(039 ‘Aup ‘dwiep) suonipuod |10SO

AjARoE SJoM pue ‘uonedo| ‘awy ‘@1ep Suipnjpul ‘Ajoedo Jusdiad Oz uBYl JAXJEP PAAIISO BIDM SUOISSILD B|QISIA 3ISHO SIINUINO
ainjesadwalo

paads puipo

awijo

?1eQ0

:uonewJoul

SuImo||o4 3y SapN|aUl 1Y) SUoLIpUOod isnp Jo So| Ajlep e dasy ||eys J010BIIU0D UOLIINIISUOD Y] ‘UoldNIISU0d Sulinp Aep yoeJe
'S9I}IAI10€ U910 pue Jiodsuely |elalew

01 NP SUOISSIWD 3)ISHO SUIPN|OUI ‘SRINSEIW [0JIUO0D BY) JO SSBUBALDRYS pue uoneuawa|dwi ayl Sutioyuow So| Ajiep e uieuieo
saJnseaw uonesniw [043U02 1SNP Y1 YUM d2uel|dwod 4oy 91ISHI0M 3y} JOHUONO

9A1D3YaUI D4k $|043u0d Atewlid usym sainseaw |0juod AduaSunuod asno

sanl|iqisuodsau

|0J3U0D 1SNP JI9Y} MOUD| SI01IBIIUOICNS PUB ‘SINIO0M ‘SadA0|dWD [|B 1eY] 94NSUD pue Saunseaw uonesniw ayl Juawajdw|o

a1s ol ay3 1e 3|qe|ieAe Way) aAeY pue saunseaw uonesniw ajqedljdde pueisiapun pue peayo

:03 A)ljiqisuodsau s,401eUIpI00D 91IS [043U0D ISP

9y3 S 3| |043u02 1snp Sunuawa|dwi Joy 3|qisuodsal S| pue J0}eulpJo0d S [04IU0D ISNP PAleUSISaP ay) S J010BIIUOD UOLINIISUOD Y e

*s9)21yan Aneay Joj 1w paads unoy Jad ajiw ST ay3 Suiquasap peoy AsjjeA Sulids uo paseid aq [jim a8eusiSe

*MO[3q Paul[IN0 sjuawaJinbas ay3 Jad ‘suoiipuod isnp So|

pue Jojyiuow ||eys pue speoJ pasedun uo sa|dIyan Aneay 4oy Hwi| paads Jnoy Jad ajiw GT Y3 2240ju?d [|eys J28Se|) o1y} 8y ‘peoy As|jeA
Buiuds uo Juasaud aq [|eys 4a88e|) |041U0D dYjeI] B ‘SIIIBAISP JopuaA pue Juawdinba Aneay jo spouad dui yonui dead pajedidnue Sulinge
‘pouad uoi3onJisuod ayy Sulnp Ajenoiuied ‘sapoiyan

uape| Ajineay Jo AAeay jo saouelsip [9AeI) 3Y3 Sulziwiuiw 0} USAIS 9 ISNW UOIIBIaPISUOD [e1dads Juawaseuew pue Suluueld Juadiyd
y3nouy3 paziwiuiw a4 ||eys s 393f0id Y3 uissadde pue s 103[04d 9Y3 3B SPEOJ UO SJUNOWE dLJel) [BI0} PUE SDIUEISIP [9ABI] B[DIYDAe
*0ST SPa9dXa xapu| A}ljenD 41y S,A3uno) aYyi Usym SalIALIE UOLONIISUOD |IBYIND e

*314B43 )INJ3 YHM PIIBIDOSSE }SNP 9INPaJ 0} Papasu

se polsad uondNJIISUOI Y31 SuliNp pue a1oyaq ‘as 199foud ayy Suissadoe peou panedun ay) ‘peoy AsjjeA Sulds oy juessasddns 1snp Ajddye
unoy J4ad sajiw GT 01 speos panedun uo spaads dyjes} HwlTe

‘pauleluleW 34 ||BYS PJROGD4) JO 1934 7 1SED| 1B puE A]UNdas paJanod pue panam a4 |leys Aay) ‘©1Isyo palJodsued) aJe s|elalew usyme
*PAsO[oUd pue PaJSA0D 3|ISE) UBYM PUE SUOIIPUOD

AJp Sulinp Ajlep 931m) paJalem aq [|eys ‘speoJ panedun pue ‘papess usaq aney jey) sease ‘sajid |10s Sulpnjoul ‘seale pagunIsIp ||Ve
1S3[}IAI0E paje|al

uo0139NJ3sU0d ||e Sulnp sao13oeld Suimol|o) 8yl Juawajdwl ||eys J03IBIIUOD UOIIINJIISUOD Alewiid 3y 19aodd ay3 Jo uoidNIIsuod Suling

SaJnses|N
|0J3u0) Isnq :T-OV

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

IMd

uoI3oNJlsuod-ald

"U0130NJ3SU0d 03 Jold ‘si0siA1adnS Jo paeog Auno) esnjo) ay3 Ag UoleIaPISUOD

104 ‘M 393[01d BY3 UO SIOBJIUOD 1Oy UOSWEI||IAL 934U} 33} JO UIES 10} JOBIIUOD 4O UOIIE||2DUBD IO} UOINID B 3|1} [|eys juedljddy ayL

uolje||adue) Y
uoswel||IM T-OV

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

w e, HQIUXH




L1 "Bd 1@)oed

J0}0BJIUOD [BIUSWUOIIAUT/IMY

uoI10NJlsu0d-ald

‘uswedaq Suluueld Ayuno)

esn|0) 9yl pue M\4@D 03 PRIHWIGNS 3] ||eYs SHNSaJ4 AdAINS 3y} Jo $31d0) "S3IHAIIIE 9IS JO UOIIENUIIUOD 3y} 03 Jolud uleSe pajonpuod aq 03
paau pjnom Asains ay3 ‘@Jow 4o sAep / jo poliad e 4oy syjey AlIAI0e y1om 2y J| '|020104d a1 Ul pagLIISIp awelawil syl Sulinp smoJdung
|ernualod SuilsiA pue ‘Sp\\ONg J0 2auasaud Jo udis A\ONG YSa44 YUm smouung |elpualod Aue Sunnou ‘uede (s1939w 0z 01 /) 1994 99 01 €2
s109sued) [9]eded Supjjem Jo 1sIsU0d |jeys pue uoleSiiA |MQ Suimoding uo 1oday JJe1s (zT0z) M4aD Yl Ul pauljIno Spoyaw ayl yum
1U91sISU0d 3q ||eys ASojopoyiaw AsAins sy “1e1igey 9|gelins Palapisuod 10U aJe sa1liAlde Sulganisip-punoJs Jo 1iels ayl 01 Joud syjuow
2T Ulyum pamojd usaq aAey 18yl Sealy "'SMOJING UMOUY| 3232 01 pue smoling MONg Suliaiuim 1o 3uipaauq aAnde Aue a1edo| 01 1e1iqey
Buimouing s|gelns yum seaJe ul (3uniwiad ss922e) 31IS Yl PUNOJ. SI918W-QST PUB 91S 9Y] UO SASAINS UOIIINIISUOD-3.d 10NPUOd

|1eys 1s130j01q palljenb y “sa1lIAIIde 959y 01 Jolid sinoy gz ulyum pue (Suipesd uo Suliea)d uoneladan “8:9) saiiAioe 3uigqinisip-punosd
Jo 3ui8ess yuawdinba jo uoneniul ayl 03 Jolid sAep T ueyy ss3| ou pawuoyad sAAINS UOIIINIISUOI-ud DARY ||BYS JOUMO 193[04d Y|
|MQ Suimouting

sa10adsg
snjels |eads
40 uondIl0ld T-0I9

J030BJIUOD [BIUBWUOIIAUT/IMY

uoIdNIISUO)

'suoneso| pajoedwi-uou Jay3o ul ‘uonneSedoud pue uoI129||0d PSS SB YINS ‘Pasn g PINOM SPOYIDW JUSWIIURYUD Je}IqeyY
19Y30 pue ‘syoedw JuauewJad Jo ased ayl ul padeajes aq jou pjnom |1osdo| ‘211s 199[0ud Y3 apISIN0 JO ulyuMm 1eiqey juejdiey ysnods
s,Alied Jay1o 3upueyus Aq palediiw aq Aew (Suonpuod |einjeu 0] PaJolsad 97 10U PINOM eyl seale ul syoedwi) syoedwi Jusuew.ad

‘yadap |10s ajeludosdde ayy 1e spaas daay| 01 9j1j0.4d [euISLIO S} 03 UOZIIOY |10S @Y} SulUINIDL UBYY pUE ‘|esiadSIp Paas paam wouy

J10s ay3 8ui19104d pue a11s-uo 3uli01s ‘@auequnisip punoJsd Sulnp 10sdol Jo saydul g 1541y ay3 Suideajes Aq paiediniw aq Aew (suonipuod
eJnjeu 01 paJolsal ag p|nom eyl seale ul spedw) spoedwi Alesodwa] suonendod jue|d snieis-|eidads paiiauapl sy 01 syoeduwl aanpaJ
03 ue|d Sunue|dau pue uo1329]|02 paas e aledaud |leys 1s130joiq palyijenb e ‘papioae aq jouued suoie|ndod juejdiel ydnou s,Alied 4|
juejdie] ysnoy s,Aued

sa10adsg
snieis |eads
J0 uondalold ‘T-0lg

J030BJIUOD [BIUBWUOIIAUT/IMY

1300120 pue
AeA UBBMIBQ ‘UOIIINIISUOI-BUd

‘sjuaIxa uonendod ay3 jo eiep

Aanuns snoinaud uo paseq pad3e|} aq osje Aew suoniejndod ‘yJom u0119NIISUOI BY3 JO ulwil 9yl UO paseq Alessadau §| ‘sjenpialpul Aue 0}
s1oeduw prone Aj@19|dwod 03 suoz ajelidosdde ue ey [jeys 1s130|o1q palyijenb e ‘(sease Suidels Suipn|aui) Julid100) UOIIONIISUOI 199[0Ud
9y1 JO apIsIno paledo| aJe suonejndod jueldiel y3nou s Adied J| *(4990120 01 Aejy) porsad Suiwoo|q syl Sulinp Sa11IAIIIE UOIIINIISUOD 0}
Joud sAep T ueyy aJow ou 1elgey [erualod Yyim seale JI0M Ul pa3INpuod 3q |jeys uejdiel ydnou s ,Aiied 40j ASAINS UO1IONIISUOI-a.d W
juejdie] ysnoy s,Aued

saoads
sniess |e1ads
40 U034 :T-019

IMY

uoljesadQ/uoinIIsuo)

*1032241Q SYJOM 21|qnd Y3
JO UOII2BJSIIES Y3 03 3 [|eys uoliedljdde jo a1es ay) pue uoledljdde ay3 Jo Sujwil 8y "as 3199[04d 943} 0} DUEBIIUD Y3 03 DAL INU[E
UM U0[3095131ul 9yl wou) peoy A3jjeA Sulids uo pajjdde aq |jeys yuessaisddns 3snp ay] "as 303foud ay1 Suissadoe peod pasedun ayy
‘peoy Asjje Burids o3 Juessaiddns 1snp jo uonedrjdde ays 4oy 3qisuodsal aq [|eys JaumQ 33[0ad ay3 Suluds a1e| ul Ajjesauasd JeaA e aduQ

j0J3u0) Isng
w3 -8uol :g-ov

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

J010BJIUOD UOIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3aNJISU0)

"parwl|
99 ||eys s403dadau 9AIISUS JO 1934 0O0'T UIYUM Juawdinba [asalp jo Suinanb pue SuiSe)s ‘Sulp| “y4oMm JO 1ie)S 3Y) 9J043q UOINPUOD
Jadoud ul Suluunu aq 01 paulwIRIBP pPUe PaXIAYd 3q Ishw Juawdinb3 ‘suoinealydads s Jainjdenuew ayl o3 Suipiodde suny sadosd

ul paulejulew aq |[eys uawdinbs uonINJISUOD ||y "MWl SUljp! 9INUIW-G 3Y] JO SJ01eIdO PUE SIBALIP pulWwaJ 0} $91IS ol Jo/pue seale
[Buinanb pajeusisap ayy ul paisod a4 [|eys suSIS "S9INUIW G UBY) dJOW Joj 3|p! 10U |eys Juawdinba |asalp peoJs-jo pue -uo ||y "Juswdinba
UO[39NJISUOD UO Pa|[eISuUl 3] [|eYsS SB1521.J1S |0J3UOD UOISSIWD [9S3IP PALIBA-gYYD J9Y10 JO Sid}|lj 23e|ndljied [9salp ‘UoidntIsuod Suling

syuswadinbay
juawdinb3
uol3oNJIsuo) 1Z-Ov

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

u e QIYXY




81 "Bd 19)oed

"9AI0BUI S| UBP BY1 1YL SBUIWI13P 15180]01q palyijenb

© SS3|UN J34NQ SIY3 UIYHM JNd0 |[BYS SIIHAIIIE UOIIINIISUOD ON "USP Y} PUNOIE J34Ng 3004-0G Wnwiujw e ulysijgeisa Ag paploae aq saads
|leys suap Ja8peq uedlawWy aA1dE Auy “SASAINS MO Suimolung ay3 Sulinp Jnddo [jeys JaSpeq UedLBWY 3y} 04 ASAINS Uo(ONIISU0d-aid | sniels |eads
J10}0BJ3U0D) [EIUBWUOIIAUT/IMY uoI3NJISU0-3d J138peg ueduBwy | J0 U004 :T-0I9
‘M4ad

9y} Aq paziioyine ag 1SnW YMey S,U0SUIEMS 104 J3JJNT Y} 0IUI JUSWYDEOIOUT "PIPUS Sy Uuoseas Suipaalq ayl 1o ‘eale ay) 13| aney
S)MEY S,UOSUlEMS B[IUDAN[ pue }Npe ‘(3sau dYy3 uo Jueljal J98uo| ou aie pue paspals aney sSuljisau ayy “8'3) aAI0e J2SUO| OU S| 3SAU Y}
ley} paulw.a1ap sey IsIS0[0Iq Y} |13UN PIMO||e 3] ||BYS Ja4NG dY3 UIYNM UOIIONIISUOD OU pUE S}SaU dAI30E punode 1si8ojolq payijenb e Aq
PaYsI|qeIsa aq ||eys Ja44Nq 3[IW-G'0 B ‘PUNOY BB SISDU JMEY S,UOSUIEMS AIIIE J| “9OUBGINISIP SAISNIUL SUISNED INOYHM YMEY S, UOSUIBMS

Aq Sunsau jo ade1s pue snieis syl aulwIAP 03 patjljenb aq 1snw 1s130j01q SulAdAINs ay| "pagunisip SI a1s 193(oud ay3 o uondod saads
e 24049q Aj3a0ys 1n220 sAanuns 1eyy os paseyd aq Aew Aayy ‘awiy auo je as 103[0.d d13Ud By JOJ PRIONPUOD 3Q 10U paau sABAINS|  snieis [edads
J030BJIUOD |BIUSWUOIIAUT/IMY uoI19NJISU0d-3ld )MEH S,uosulems| Jo Uo1129104d :T-0Ig

'S9I3IAI0B UOI19N.ISU0I 01 Jold sAep QT UBYL J0W OU JNJJ0 pue (000Z 291WWO0) AIOSIAPY [BIIUYID] YMEH S, UOSUIBMS)

A3|[eA |BJ3Ud) S IUIOJIED Ul SASAING SullSaN YMEH S, uosulems 1oj AS0jopoy1s|Al pue Sujwi] PapuaWWOoIay 3yl Y1M 92Ueplodde

ul Pa31aNpPU0d 3q ||eys sASAINS siejndoulq 4o 2dods 3ulljods e Suisn 9|qISIA Jo a|qe|ieAe S| salldadoud Sulioqysiau 0] SS92J€ dJaYM Seale ul
91IS 9] punoJe JajNng 3| §°0 B UIYUM S31Is 159U |elaualod uo snaoj |jeys Asains ay] “a1is 19afoad ayl ulyym 1exigey Sunssu |eipualod e
J0 sAaAuns uoonIIsuoda.d 19Npuod ||eys 1si30jolq paljijenb e ‘(ST Jaqwialdas 01 T ydJe|p)) uoseas 3uipasiq ayl Sulng ymey s,uosuiems

uoseas Suipaalq 104 palinbau aie sainseaw [eUOIHPPE JO SASAINS UOIIONIISUOAId OU ‘(87 Adenigad 01 9T JaqWialdas) uoseas Sullsau jyMmey s,uosulems sanads
SulINp 4220 03 SI UOIIANIISUOD 9y} JO 3PISIN0 S2UBWIWOD 0} P3AINP3YIS S| (9dUBCINISIP PUNOJS 10 ‘|erowal uolelasan ‘SuiSels Juawdinba “a°1) Uo1PNIISUOD J||  snies [eads
J1030BJIUOD [EIUBWIUOIIAUT/IMY 1 Ajuo ‘uo1onuisuoa-ald JMEH S,U0SUIEMS | JO UOIDR10Ud :T-0lg

110e uol1ed0|a4 aAlssed 01 Joud uejd uonesniw oy1rads-123[01d Y3 ul papn|dul 3q pjnom uonesiiN MO Suimoling uo 1oday Jjels
(2T0Z) M4AD Yyum 2ouepIoIIL Ul UB|d UoISN|aX] |MO Suimouing e ‘suoireindod A\ONg d1s-Uo 03 anp paiedidijue si uoledo|as aAlssed
Il "uonesniA MO Suimouung uo 1ioday 44eis (ZT02) M4aD 241 yum aouepaodde ul weidosd uonnedojas anissed e Juawajdwi |jeys 1s13o0joiq

paulenb e ‘leainins Juapuadapul jo ajgeded pue Ajjuapuadspul Suieloy ale sajlusAnf ay) aiaym Jo uolreqnaul 4o Sulhe| 83 undaq saads
19A 10U 9ARY SA\ONG 1UBPISDI 249YM UOSEIS SuIpaalg 9yl Sulnp Jo uoseas Sulpaalg-uou ay) Sulnp 3|qiSeajul Sl 9JUBPIOAR MOLING §| snjeis |epads
J0}0€J1U0) [BIUBWUOIIAUT/IMNY uol1onJIsuo) |MQ Suimouing| Jo uoide104d :T-019

*M4dD YHM uoljelnsuod ui siied 10 \\ONG |ENPIAIPUL YoeD JO sasuodsal AJIAINISUDS pue AjIqISIA

ay3 uo paseq 1siSojolq palylienb e Ag paysijqeiss aq Aew Jajng J3||BWS B ‘DdUBMINISIP JO [9A3] 8y} Uo Sulpuadag ‘Moting dAI3O. Y} WOy
199} §9T JO Ja}NQ e ulym paniwiad aq |jeys Suidels Juawdinba Jo yiom Suiqunisip-punots ou (T€ Adenuer 03 T Joqua1das) uoseas
(493uIm) Suipaaig-uou ayy Suling -1si8o0jolq paiyiienb e Aq panoidde asimiayio ssajun ‘(T€ 1sndny 01 T Asenugad) uoseas Suipasiq ayl
Bulnp MmouJng aAI0e UB WOJ) 1994 OEE UIyUM pajwaad aq [jeys Suiels Juswdinba Jo ‘Suipesd ‘9ouelea|d uo1e1a8aA se Yyons ‘saflinlde

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

Bu10.4n3sIp-puNoJ3 ON "S91S 13U 419y} pue S\\ON4g 199104d 01 pajuswajdwi pue [eacsdde pue malnas M\4@D 404 pasedaud aq |leys saoadsg
ue|d uonesiw o1y109ds-103[0.d B ‘ASAINS UOI}INIISUOI-a.d DY} BULINP SI9IBW OGT UIYIM JO 91Is 193[01d 93 Uo pardalap ale S\\ON4d 4 snieis |eads
J012BJ1UO0D |BIUBWIUOIIAUT/I MY Uo11oNJISU0I-3ld |MQ Suimouing| jo uoildel04d :T-0lg
Aued s|qisuodsay Suiwiy jJuswalinbay uoI329S /uoiipuo)

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

w8 3QIYXYH

lejog snuep

orlLe




61 Bd 19)oed

10}9BJUOD UOIIPNIISUOD/IMY

uo[3oNJ3su0)

'SeaJe UOIIONJISUOD [|B UIYHM PadI0oJUd 3] ||eys Jnoy Jad sajiw 0Z J0 Hwi| paads v

$92JN0S3aY
|ea130jo1g 404 SING
pue dvam :z-0ld

J039BJIUOD UOIPONIISUOD/IMY

uo[3oNJIsu0)

‘pauqiyoud
97 [|eys sa114adoud 103[04d ay3 0 apiIsino asn Juawdinba pue 3|21YyaA AJ3unod $S0J) ‘|9ARIY JO $3IN0J SUIISIXD 3SN ||BYS J1}4BJ3 JB|NDIYDA

$92JN0Say
|ea130j01g 404 SAING
pue dvam :z-0ld

J010BIIUOD UOIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3oNJISU0)

Suinow 03 Jord d411p|Im Jo duasald ayy
Jo} padadsul uawdinba Jo 3)p1yaA a3 yieauaq punoJd ayl aAeY ||eYS UOI1IdNIISUOD Sulinp 3is ay3 uo payJed Juawdinba pue sapdIyap

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SAING
pue dvam :z-0ld

J012BIIUOD UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3oNJISU0)

"(SM4SN ‘M4ad) sauagde sjgedyjdde ay3 yum

UOI13B}|NSUOD INOYIM IN2D0 [[BYs saldads sniels-|edads jo Sulpuey oN ‘1s18ojolq ay} Aq pa1edojaJ pue painided uaaq sey |[ewiue ay} [13un
JO PJO22B UMO S}I UO 94N319NJ3S Y} WOJS PIAOW JBYIID SeY [EWIUE 9} PUB Pa}|nsuod uaaq sey 1si80joiq palyljenb e jaun panow aq jou
11eys adid jo uo1393s 1ey) ‘adid e apisul paJaA02SIp SI [ewlue ue J| “Aem Aue ul paaow Jo pash asimiayio Jo ‘padded ‘paring Ajjusnbasqns
s1 adid ay1 210)2q spJiq Suiisau Jo aji|p|Im sniels-|e1dads Jo) pa1dadsul AjlySnoioyy Jo/pue palanod aq |eys spotiad 1ySiulano asow

JO BUO 10} 9}IS UOIIONJISUOD B B PaJ0)S dJe 1ey] J9laWelp J93eaJs Jo Ydul-f B Y3IM S24NIONJIS JBjIWIS JO ‘SIIBAIND ‘sadid uo13onaisuod ||y

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SAINgG
pue dvam :z-0lg

J1010E13U0D) UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uoIPNIISU0)

"Aj@1eIpaWiWI Pa1dRIU0D 3] ||BYS M4dD 40/pue SMASN 2y ‘paddeuy st saidads snieis-|edads e

adeasa moj|e 01 Ajielpawiwil paj|elsul 3q [|eys $a4n3onuls Jo sdwel adedss ‘paniasqo ale sjewiue paddesy J| ‘sjewiue paddeuy Joj siaxiom
9115-uo Aq pajdadsul AjySnoioys aq ||eys Aayi ‘paj|iy 94 S9YIUJ] 10 S3|0Y YoNns aJojag ‘syuejd UBPOOM O ||I} YLD JO Pa1INJIISU0d

sdwel 2deass 240w 10 duo Yyum papirosd 1o Aep Suiyiom yoes Jo 9502 Y3 1. S|elalew Jejiwls 10 poomA|d yum pasanod aq [eys yidap
91e3.3 40 100J-7 B Y1IM $S3YDUdJ] JO S9|0Y pa||em-daals ‘paleARIX ||B ‘U0I}INJISUOD SulINp 341|p|IM JO Juawdesiua JuaidaApeul Juanaid o)

$924N0Say
|e2180|0Ig 4O} SdINgG
pue dvam :z-0lg

J0}0BJIUOD [EIUSWIUOIIAUT/IMY

CO_uu_\._\_umcOU\CO_uu:‘_umCOU‘wL&

'seaJe 953y} JO AJUIDIA B3 Ul SDIHAIIOE UOIIONIISUOD JO UOleINp

9Y3 JOj paulelUlBW 3] ||IM SEDJE 9IUEBPIOAR BY| ‘SeaJe padSe|} 3yl Ul Jndd0 |[IM }40M ON “eliqey SAIHSUSS ay3} punode pad8ely aq pjnoys
199} 0§ 01 dn) Jayng 15918243 Y3 ‘9]qISea} JUSIXS Y3 O] "UOIIINJIISUOI 123[0.d 01 Jouid 1si8ojoiq palljenb e Aq pjaly ay3 ul pad3ely aq |leys
seale Joedw] 309[04d dY3 JO 1934 OG UIYUM ‘Spuejiam pajoalold Ajjesapay pue 21els pue seale ueliedls Suipnjoul ‘syeliqey aaRIsuas Auy

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SING
pue dvam :z-0lg

J1030E13U0D UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

UOI19N13ISU0I/UOIIINIISUOI-d

'Sea.e IUBPIOAE 10 SId4Ng Pa3da10.d UIYUM IndJ0 Jou |jeys Juawdinba pue
59|21Y3A JO 3SN puE S3IIAILIE PIE[3J-UOIIINIISUOD “UOIIINIISU0D 03 Jolid SuiSSe|y Jo/pue saxels Yam paleaul|ap a4 ||eys ‘@noge g-0lg pue

T-0l1gu! PaqLIdSaP Se ‘s901n0sal [e2180[01q 40} PAYSI|eISd Seale DUBPIOAE PUE SIdyNg "3|qissod seale 153)|ewS 3y} 0} Paulyuod aq ||eys
suoI1ed0| ds |eSOdSIp pue ‘UoIleABIXD ‘98e101s ‘BUISeS ‘SPEOJ MU ‘Seale Suljied *9oUBCINISIP JO Seale 3yl HWI| [|eys JoUMO 193[01d ay |

$924N0Say
|e2180|0Ig 40} SAINgG
pue dvam :z-01g

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

J010BJIUOD [BIUSWIUOIIAUT/IMY

CO_uuﬁ_gum:OU\CO_uu:‘_umCOu‘mL&

‘SpUB|19M pue Sid3em paldalodd pue ‘spdiq Suiisau ‘4aspeq uedawy ‘Ymey

s,uosulems ‘imo Suimouang ‘quejdaey ysnod s Alied Suinysiysiy ‘s924nosal dAIHSUDS 3533 JO SIUBPIOAR 104 pajuawa|dwi 9g 03 sainseaw
pue ‘suoi3da30.d pue snjeis |e8a| 419y} pue s24N0SaJ [BJ1S0|0Iq SAIHSUDS JO SUOIIEIO| BY} ‘Bale 103[04d BY3 U ISIXd P|NOD JBY3 S324N0SI
|e2180|01q SAINISUSS JBYI0 pue s3123ds Sniels-|edads ay} JO MIIASL B 3pN|dUl [|eys Sululel} wesgold SSaUdIeMYy [e3USWUOIIAUT JINIOM
3y "91Is 399[04d 9y} UO S32IN0saJ |ea150|01q 199304d pue 3z1u§0d34 03 MOY [dUU0sIad UOIIINIISUOD 3}IS-UO |8 Ulel) 0} WelSold SSaualemy
|EIUSWIUOIIAUT JDXIOAA B JudW|dw] [|eys ‘J03OBIIUOD S} JO ‘JSUMO 303[04d Y} ‘SI1IAIIOE UOIIINIISUOD JO UOIIRINP By} 1O} pue 0} Jolid

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SING
pue dvam z-olg

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

w8l HQIYXH




051 "Bd 19¥oed

J10}0€J3U0D) [EIUBWUOIIAUT/IMY

uoI10NnJlsuo0d-ald

's9109ds pa1si|-uou Joj 1s130jolq palyljenb e jo uonaudsip

9Y3 1B UN220 Aew JajNg 9Y] 0JUI JUBWYILOIIUT "PAPUD SBY UOSeas Sulpaalqg ayl Jo (1Sau 3yl Uo Juel|a4 Ja3uo| ou aJe pue paspa|) aney
sSuijasau ay1 ““8°9) aA1oe J23U0| OU S| 1SBU DY 1BY) PaUIWIIBP Sey 1sIS0[0Iq 9] [11UN PAMO||e 3 ||BYS J2}JNQ 3Y} UIYHIM UOI1INIISUOD
Ou pue s15aU aAI0e punoJe 1si3ojolq palyljenb e Aq paysi|qe1sa aq ||eys (SpJiq paisi|-uou Joj 1994 0§ ‘siordes paisi|-uou 4oy 199} 00 ““8'9)
19}JNQ 3|GeNS B ‘PUNOJ 9JB S1S3U DAINIE J| "9dURMINISIP SAISNIUI Suisned Inoyum sa1dads Joides Suipaaiq Ajjedoj ||e pue spJiq AiojesSiw
Aq Sunsau jo ade1s pue snieis ayl auIwIIAP 03 patyljenb aq isnw 1si130j01q SulAdAIns 3y "pagunisip SI 9IS 193(0ud ay3 o uoliod

e 240499 Aj340ys un2d0 sAanins 1eyy os paseyd aq Aew Aayy ‘awiy auo je a1s 103/0.d a413Ud dY1 JOJ PRIONPUOD 3 10U pPaau SABAINS

spJig Sunsan
40 01310 :€-019

J1019BJUO0D [BIUSWUOIIAUT/IMY

uoseas
Supisau Sulnp 4N220 s3l}IAIE
UOI3NJISUOD 41 “UOIIINIISUOI-d

*S3[}IAI30B 9IS JO UOIIENUIIUOD 3y} 03 Jolid uleSe pajonpuod ag 0} paau pjnom Asains
2y3 ‘@Jow Jo sAep / jo poliad e 1oy syey AJAIOE J40M BY1 §| 'SIIHAIIOE UOIIINIISUOD 0} Jolid SAep T Ueyl 240w Ou PaIdINPU0d 3 ||eys
FAaAINS *sieinaoulq 4o 2dods Sunniods e uisn a|qisIA Jo 3|gejieae si salliadoad Sulioqysiau 03 SS920. 9J9YM SeaJe Ul 9IS 9y} puno.Ue Jayng

1004-00S B UIY}M SIS 159U [e3ud30d U0 SN20y ||eys AaAIns ay] ‘pauue|d S| UOI3dNIISUOD dJaym d1Is 193(04d Y3 UIylm 1eyiqey Suisau
|ernuaod |[e jo sAanuns uolonaisuodaud 1onpuod |eys 1siSojolq paiyiienb e ‘(T 1sn3ny 01 T Azenugay) uoseas Suipaaiq paiq Suisau ayy
8uung "sso1des Suipnaui ‘spaiq Sunisau 4oy pasinbas aJe saunseaw |euolippe Jo sASAINS uoidNJIIsuodald ou ‘(TE Atenuer 01 T Jaquiaidas)
uoseas SulIsau pJiq Y JO SPISINO SDUBWWOI 03 PA|NPAYIS S| (S2UBCINISIP PUNOIS JO [BAOWSL UOIILIDEIA “3°1) UOIIINIISUOD §|

spJig Sunsan
40 uondalold :€-0Ig

J010BIIUOD UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3oNJIsu0)

‘paziwiuiw
pue paploAe 3q ||BYS SMOJING [eWWEW 0} 3dUBJNISIP pue sSuIp|ing uiyim 3daoxa ais 103(04d aY3 UlyHM pasn aq Jou ||eys SapIouapoy

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SAING
pue dvam :z-0ld

J010BJIUOD UONINIISUO) /I MY

uo[3oNJISu0)

‘paqiyod aq [jeys sa1dads a4l|p|Im Aue Jo UoI323||0d 4o Sulj|1y |euoiIuRIU|

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SAING
pue dvam :z-0ld

J019BJIUOD UOIIINIISU0D /I MY

uoJ3INIISU0)

*AMUIDIA BY3 Ul 31p|Im Suipaay woly pue as 303foud 9yl 03 s1ad SuiBuliq woJy paiqiyosd a4 [|Bys SII0M

$92JN0Say
|ed130jo1g 404 SINgG
pue dvam :z-0lg

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

J010BJIUOD UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3aNIISU0)

*s3op |esay pue ‘(sueJie| slue)) 9310A02 ‘(XeJ09 SNAIOD) USARI UOWWOD
Se UINs 941|p|IM 0} SSBUBAIIORIIIE 9] 9INPaJ 0 Ajlep PIAOWJ PUE SI9UIBIUOD PSO|d Ul PaUIeIu0d 34 ||eys SWall pooj pue ysed| ‘Ajuno)
2y3 01 paniwqgns pue SujUOISSILWOI9P pue ‘Uoilesado ‘UoilaNJISUOD 10} Paysi|gelss a4 ||eys wetSoid Juswaleqe ysed wial-8uo| vy

$92JN0Say
|ea130jo1g 404 SAING
pue dvam :z-0lg

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

WL, QX




LGl "Bd 19)oed

J030BJIUOD [BIUBWUOIIAUT/IMY

UOI19NJ3ISU0I/UOIIINIISUOI-DUd

*SANOY HZ UIYyHIM auoyda|al Agq JHYN 3yl 10BIUO0D [|IM J3U0J0D 3Y} ‘G'0S0/ UOIIIS

‘apo) Alajes pue yijeaH Aq pauljap se uedlIRWY SAIIBN 9q 0} PUNOy 3Je sulew?aJl ay) §| *Aj91eIpawwl pa1oeIu0d 3q P|NOM (00Z0°8SY 0ES
;aquinN auoydala] 1un JaU0I0D-}1IaYS) Jau0i0) AJuno) Bsnjo) ay) pue 9Sead PINOM puly 3yl JO ALUIDIA BY) Ul JIOM |[B ‘PIISA0ISIP
AjpuanieApeul aJe ‘G050 U01I3S ‘9po) A1ajes pue yijeaH Aq pauljap swall [ednljnd J0/pue sulewal uewny ji 1eyl aJinbau suoine|ngdal
BU11SIX3 :Ssulewal uewny jo AJSA0ISIP JUSIIAAPEU] UE 0} pJeSaJ U] "z €80T Z UOI3IS JO suoisinoid 3yl Yim 2dueplodde uj paieadl aq ||eys
91IS 3Y3 UBY} ‘2°€80TZ UOIIIS Ul pauldp Se 32Jn0saJ [edi8ojoaeydJe anbiun e Joj B149314D Y} S199W INQ 924N0SAJ [eII0ISIY Ue Se Ajljenb
10U S20p d1S |B21S0|0dBYIIE UE }| *S22JN0S3J |Bq1IY JO J1403sIyaJd Ul 3sa4a3ul Suissaidxa sanlleuasasdal uedlsawy aAleN Sulynsuod

|1e20] Aue pue AduaSe Suiuawsajdwi 9yl yHIM uol3e3nsuod ul ‘saunseaw aieldosdde Jaylo 4o A19A0J24 BIEP SB YINS ‘S9UNSEIW JUdWIedI)
|euonippe dojaAap ||eys 1si3ojoaeydJe payijienb syl ‘paploAe 3¢ 1J0UURD $92JN0SAJ 1BY] palesisuowap s 4 ‘(D)(€)(q)y92¢TST uoides
SaUIdPIND YDID YHM Jud3sisuo) “Suiouay 4o Suidded se yons saunseaw uoi32930.4d JO UOI3eII413UBPI JO ‘USISP-aJ JO 9IN0JaJ 303(04d

‘03 paiwli| 9 10U ||BeYsS 1nq ‘@pn|aul Aew 22UBPIOAR JO SPOYIBIA S224N0S3J |BI1101SIY se SulAjijenb sadunosad |edi8ojoaeydse 03 syoedw
ploAe 01 sueaw paJJagaid ay1 aq ||eys ade|d ur uoneasssasd ‘(€)(q)y9gTST UOIILS SaulPPIND YO ID Japun ‘uonedniw ajeldosdde
J3Y30 JO saunseaw dueplone aieldosdde ‘1saiaiul Buissaldxa sdnoud uedawy aAneN Sunsuod |eao] Aue pue sapuade Suipuawa|dwi
93 YlM UOI1B}|NSUOD U] ‘DUIWIRIBP [[Bys IsISojoaeydle ay) Auedijiusis 9q 01 paulwialap S| puly Aue J| *(a|qeadiidde se) elaud dHYN
Jo/pue §'#90GT UOI1I3S Saul|apIing YDID 01 Sulpaodde puly 3yl Jo aduediusdis ay) Ssasse 03 paldeIuod ag ||eys isidojoaeydle paljljenb
93 pue 3sead ||_Ys pulj Y1 JO 1394 0§ UIYUM S313HAI30E SUlganisip punoJs ||e ‘paJano0dsip aq $924n0saJ [ed180|0aeYdJIB 30BHNSANS PINOYS
‘(SuipeJsd ‘Buiyouauy ‘uoileARIXD ‘|BAOWAI UOIIRIDSIA SB UYINS sa11IAIRdE Sulqunisip punoJdd “8'9) uonanuisuod 193foud Sulung ‘A1anodsip
JUSJBAPEU] UE JO JUBAS 9y} Ul S9UNpadoJd Uol1edi4130u pue sj0d0304d apinold [|Im ue|d AJBA0ISIQ JUSIIaAPEU| 3y "AJBA0ISIP JUdIIaApeU|
UE JO JUDAS 3Y} U] ||BJ-UO 3q 0} puk 303[0Jd Y3 Jo} Ue|d AJIBA0ISIQ JudlIaApeu| ue aledasd 03 paulelal aq ||eys isiSojoaeydse payljenb v

uo13oNJISU0)
SulnQ saoJinosay
|eaiSoj0aeyouy
J0 Aanoosig
JUaMaApeU| 1Z-1ND

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

J1012BJUOD [BIUSWUOIIAUT/IMY

uoIdNJIsuod-ald

Sujules) |eJUBWILUOIIAUD UOIIONIISUOD-3d [e13ul 3y} Sulnp uoiSaJ ayy

UIYHM $324n0saJ [edn|nd [eqli) SuipieSal aAoadsiad [ednjnd |equ) e wody 1xa1 ap1noad Jo ssnasip 03 Sujulel) [eIUSWUOIIAUS/ANAIISUDS
|eanynd ay3 ui ajedidiied 03 palilou aq ||BYS ‘UOIIEN UNIUIA 9Y3Q BYIOA 3Y) JO JaSeue|Al S921N0SAY |BANYND ‘||Ig SUJaAE]

‘1sanbau s Ja1uy N J9d *(sydesSoloyd uo eipaw |edos 03 Suisod ou ““8-9) A1anodsip e Jo Joiaeyaq |nj1oadsau pue Juswieas) ajeldosdde
Suipnjoul ‘paJ4a3unodua si (Mo]ag passnIsIp ueld AJ9A0ISIQ JUSMBAPEU|) AJDA0ISIP JUSLISAPEUI UE JUSAS dY3 Ul MO||04 0} saunpadoud

pue ‘uo13oNJISUOd SulINp PaJBA0ISIP AjJUSIIBAPEUI S| §24N0S3J [BUNIND B I UOIIDNIISUOD JBY [[IM SJXJ0M 103[0Jd 1BY] UOI}INJISUl ‘Bale ay}
Ul pPUNOJ $324N0SaJ [BAN N2 Jo sadA) ‘eaJe a3 Jo AJIAINSUSS |ed1S0|0RBYDIE PUB 1X21U0D |eUOISaJ D1103SIY pue d1I03sIyald a3 Jo uoissnasip
4314q B ‘s92Jn0saJ |eanynd Suiganisip 03 Suruielsad saiyjeuad pue sme| a|qedijdde Jo MIIAIBAO Ue dpN[dul ||IM Sululel] 82JN0SaJ [eIN}ND
Y] ‘|]auuosiad uoi3oNIISuU0d mau |je o3 Suluresy ay3 apiaoad |im juedfjddy ay3 ‘uoilonaisuod Sulng 'saliAlRe uiganisip punous oy Jod
weJ3o.d ssauaseMe UOIILINP? JIXIOM Y] JO Sulyaliq 924N0SaJ [BaN} NI [el}Iul 9Y) JUasaJd pue auedaud [jim pue 129(0ud ay3 Jo) paulelal
3q ||Im 3siSojoaeyd.e palyljenb y |]auuosiad UO0[ONIISUOD 103([01d J0j wesSoid SSaUSIEME UOIIEINPS JB)IOM B JONPUOd ||eys jusuodoid
hooloud oy ‘(Suipeus ‘SBuiysuauy ‘uoieAedxa ‘|eAnowad uoie1adan 8:9) salAnde Suigunisip punoJss 01 paje|ad uoldNIISU0d 129(0ud 03 Jolid

Suluies] /uonesnp3
J9)JO 924n0SaY
[ean3nd :T-1ND

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

WL, QX




ZS1 "Bd 19oed

J019BJIUOD UOIIINIISUOD /I MY

uo[3aNJISU0)

*SJUBPISAJ WIS PAAIDIRI Sjule|dwod 3siou Aue SSaIppe 03 81NPad0.d UOIIN|0say Jutejdwo) e az|in -

pue ‘Juawdinba Sujpuey [eualew ajeludosdde

Y3IM 13432803 ‘Sa13IAI30E JejIWiS Y30 pue ‘Suljind a4im ‘Suipjam Se Yyons S3IHAIFIR 3SIOU MO| 03 JI0M HIYs uluaAa a|qissod Jwi -

‘3|qissod J1 ‘sauljapINg ,s4aJn30BNUBW YIM JUSISISUOD Suisnoy aujgua ay} uo pajunow |elsalew guiejnsul
-3sl0U ||BISUl pue ‘pasod 1day aJe sioop Suisnoy s,auISUd 3y} 2JNSUD ‘SaUISUS UOIISNGIOD [BUISIUI DZI|I3N JBY3 SIDIASP UOIIONIISUOD 104 -

Syes| pue ‘s9|oy ‘ASnJ Wouy 934}
sI 1eyy Japynw Sunesado Ajpadoud e yum gol ayi 01 parejad Jo qol ayy uo asodind Aue Joj pasn suiSua uoisnquiod [eusaiul Aue dinb3 -

‘uona|dwod |iun
Ajsnonuiuod und20 03 paJinbai aq pjnom ‘sinod 33310U0D Se YINS ‘S3IHAINIE Pa}IWI| SWOS *d|qe3dadde punoy ale pue juasaid AjjedidAy
24 S|9A3] PUNOS J3YSIY UBYM SABPX23M UO SINOY SUl4OM [BWIOU SulINp AYIAIIOB UOI}INIISUOD SINPAYIS ‘d|qedioesd Jualxa ay3 o] -

‘suoljeolynads ,s1ainjoepnuew o3 uiplodde JapJo Suipesado poos up Juswdinba pue $j003 UOIIONIISUOD || UlBUIRIA| -

1UO13INJISUOD Supinp s}oedw) SSI0U SZ|WUIW 03 $|02030.4d JudWaeuew Uoi3PNIISUOD SUIMO||0} 3y} Juswa|dwi ||eys 303[01d ayL

uoneziwiulN
95I0N :T-3SION

‘3s1je1dads |ea180j0juoajed ay3 Jo uo11aJISIp Ayl 1e pasinbas aq Aew Aianodau elep Jo ‘Buiisal ‘ueld Juswiesu) ediSojojuosjed e

Jo uoneusedasd ‘Y3 Japun juednyiusis sanoad AIDA0ISIP Y3 §| "ONUITUOD 0} }JOM MO||e PUB pulj 8y} P40d3J 0} ap1dap Aew isiSojojuoajed
payijenb ay3 ‘Apnis yans JueJIEM 30U SB0P ZGOTZ UOIIAS ‘DP0) $924N0S3Y 1|gNd BIUIOHI|ED 1O YDID Japun puly 3y jo adueayiudis

9U3 J| "paIuELIEM S| APNIS [BUOIMPPE JI SUIWISIDP pue (puly pajedidiiueun ue) sadunosal |edi8ojojuoajed jo Aianodsip pajeddiueun Aue

0 92uedIJIUBIS By 21BN|BAD 0} 91IS-UO Y3noJg 9q 03 ‘SN1E)S ||BI-UO UB UO JBUMQ 193[04d Yl Aq paulelas 3q ||eys ASojojuoaled 91eaqa1ian

Aduadunuon
pui4 pajedipnueun

J012BJIUO0D |BIUBWIUOIIAUT/I MY uoIi1oNJ4Isu0) 40 A12120S 9Y3 40} SpJepURLS UOIIeIIHI|END |BUOISS401d S, JOLIDIU| 9Y] JO A1e1audas ay3 Suinaaw ‘1sijerdads |eaidojojuoajed paljijenb v 1Z-039
‘(puiy paledidiueun ue) sanlAloe dVIM

u0139N41SU02 SulINP PaJSA0ISIP e S[ISSO) 1BY) JUSAS Y1 Ul Isi|e1dads |eai3ojoluoajed palyljenb e a3e3us 01 uapJo ul Juswadeuew Ajnou| |esi8ojojuos|ed
JO12BJIUOD |BIUBWIUOIIAUT/IMY uo1PNIISU0I-aid| 01 saunpadoud aielidoidde pue s|isso) Jo UoIUS0a. J1Seq Ul paules] 89 PINOYS [uuosiad 811S-Uo ‘S3IIAII0. UOI1ONIISUOD Sulliels 24ojag :T-039

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

Ayunoj esnjod/amy

uo[39NJISU0)

JIMN 343 pue

Ajuno) ay3 03 paywqgns aq |[Im Jodau ay] 393/04d Y3 JO UOIPNIISUOD SULINP PBIIIUBP! SAIIBA0ISIP JUSMBAPRUI AUB JO UOIIN|OSDI pUE
s913IAI30e SuliouoOwW Ajlep ay3 saziiewwns jeyl 193foud ay3 4oy pasedaud aq |jeys 14odas Suliojuow |euly e ‘UoildNIISU0I Jo uoiadjdwod
23 1y "sallIAnoe 309[04d Suiginisip punoJ8 9deNnsgns Jo SulI0}IUOW 324N0SaJ |BJN3NI |eqli)} pue uejd Sulioyuow ayy Suipesas

$9q143 [BI0] Y1IM D3BUIPIOOD |[IM ISIS0j0aeydJe 103[04d 9Y] "SUlI0UOW $32IN0SDJ |BININD JOJ SBUIIDPING BY3 dUljINO pue ‘sainpadoid
AJBA0DSIP JUSMIBAPRUL ‘UOIIBINPS 92JNOS JAXJOM BY) dpNJoul [|Im eyl (Z-1nD) ue|d A1anodsip Jualianpeul pue ueld SulJo}lUOW 24N0Sa
|edn}jnd e jo uonesedasd ay3 ul Isisse [|eys 1siSojoaeyale palljenb JoLdiu| Jo A1e1a.09s ||ed-uo paulelal ayy ‘(SuiyouaJty pue Suipess

*8°9) $313IAII0B UO13ONIISUOD SUIqJNISIP-PUNOIS YHM PIIBIDOSSE S|I0S 9JBLINSGNS PRIBABIXD ‘pasodxa A|qisiA Sulioyuow uj a1eddiied

0} palyilou aq ||eys (|qe|ieA. Se 314} |e20] JOY10 JO) UOIIEN UNIUIAA 3Y3d BYI0A DY) WOJ JoJuow [eql} y "d|qedijdde se ‘10afoid

9Y3 JO Uo13dNJISUOI pue ssa204d Suiuueld ay3 INO0Y3noJy3 SaQLIY PAISIBIUI Y1IM }NSUOI 0} dnuIU0d pjnoys uedljddy pue Ajuno) ay|

uol3dNIISU0)
Suling suleway

uewnH jo AJanoasiq

JUaMaApeU| 1E-1ND

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

WL QX




€61 "Bd 19)oed

*J14JB43 UOIONIISUOD SUIUOISSILIWOIAP JO NSl e se aSewep peos Aue ssaippe 01 Sujuolssiwwodap 0afoid

Jaye Aj@ieipawiwi pue 910439 snf pawJoyiad aq os|e ||eys ulaiay pa|ie1ap syuawadinbas uondadsul 103foud-1s0d pue 103(oud-a4d ay
*1032241Q SHJOM 21|qNd Y3 JO UOIIDEYSIIES DY) 03 padiedal aq ||eys d1j4eJ] UOI}INIISUOD

109044 Aq pasned uaaq aAey 03 paulw.alap aSeweq '10303J1Q SHJOM 21 |gNd dY} 03 PRIUWCNS 3 ||BYS UOIIRIUBWNIOP Uoldadsul
129[04d-150d ay3 Jo uona|dwod a3yl SUIMO||0) PUE ‘}Je1s SYIOM d1|gNd AJUNOD YUM Pa3dNPUOD 3¢ |[BYS ‘S9IN0J SSBIJE PIES JO SUOINPUOD
ay3 oapia Jo/pue sydesdojoyd y3noayl Juswndop |jeys uoidadsul siyl 4031234 $H40M 21|gnd Aluno) esnjo) ay1 Aq panoidde sainod
SS922B UO0I19NJISU0D 9y} JO Uofdadsul 103(0ud-1sod e 1onpuod |[eys juedijddy ay3 ‘Sa11IAI}O. UOI}INJIISUOD 3Y) JO uold|dwod Suimojjo4

*1032241Q SYJO0/ 21|qNd Y3 0} PaRIWIGNS ¢ |[BYS UOIIBIUSWNIOP Uol3dadsul 103[oid-aid ayy
J0 uone|dwod ay3 SuIMo||0} pue ‘}Je1s SHIOM 21|gnd AJUN0D Yiim paldNpuod a4 ||eys ‘S91N0J SS3IJ€ PIeS JO SUOIIIPUOD 3} 0BPIA JO/pue
sydes8ojoyd y3nouys Juswndop ||eys uoidadsul siyl "1032241q SYI0M d1jgnd Aluno) esnjo) ay3 Aq panosdde sanoJ SSa00e u013dNJIISU0d

sijeday
pue uonoadsu|

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

IMy uo119NJISU0)-a4d ay3 Jo uonoadsul 309[04d-24d e 30npuod |jeys Juedljddy ay3 ‘@auenssi jwiad Suip|ing pue SuiuuiSaq Sa11IAI}OR UOI}ONJISUOD 0} JOLd|  PeoY :T-SNVYL
,/1IISIQ UOIIEDIIRY PUE Yied 3])oNngly 9y 01 pled aq
lleys JuswAed 0OO'STS e pue ‘quswiiedag uoiIeaIdaY pue died SWel||Ip 3y Ul s91IAIe 11oddns 0 pash 34 ||_ys YdIym swel||ip Jo AuD
by3 01 pied a9 ||eys JuswAed 0OO'STS B pUB ‘12141SIJ UOIIBDIIDY PUE YiBd ||[oMXEIA 3Y) 01 pied aq [|eys JuswAed 000‘STS e pue suonesijqo
pun4 [eJauan Aluno) esn|o) pa3dlisalun oy esnjo) Jo Aluno) ayi 03 Aj3oauip pied aq [|eys yaiym 000‘0TTS 4O (2101 B 3] [[BYS JINSd 9YLe
*1eaA ayi jo uonuod e oy [euonesado 3ulaq Joj Jo/pue
Jeah ay1 1noysnouys seseyd uj jeuonesado awodaq susauodwod Aseneq Jo/pue Jejos ay3 pjnoys eies-od aq Aew 93} INSd @410
‘paidde aq |1m 234 Ajjeuad a1e| e uo sAep (0€) Ayl ulyum pred aq [jeys 93} 4INSd 9410
309foud
ay3 Jo syusuodwod Aseneq Jo/pue Jejos a3 Joj [euy ywiad Suipjing ay1 Suimojjoy Jeah yoes Jo 1T Ajnf uo ajqeded pue anp si 4INSd 9YLe
'esn|o) 40 AJuno) ayi Aq paploA Si HWIdd SN [BUOIHPUOD dY) PUB PaJ0ISAJ dUS dY} ‘PAUOISSILWOIP SI 303foad ay3 |aun
sieah sdinw Joj JuswAed wns dwn| e se o 393foud ay3 Jo 3)1] 3Y1 Joj JedA yoes pied aq [|eys (4INSd) 294 uoleSnIA 921AI3S 21 |gNd Ve

:jenosdde siosiniadns jo paeog 03 393[gns suoisinoad Suimoj|o) ay3 1sea| e suleuod jeyl AJunod syl yum Juswsausy uonesdiin 2InRS[ 934 uonediin

Imy uonesadp/uonaniIsuo)-aidplignd e ojul 4aus |jeys syusuodoud 123foid “1a3f0ad ay) jo susuodwod Ais1ieq Jo/pue Jejos ay) Joj Hwiad Sulp|ing e Jo 3dUeNnss| 0} 0LId| 9IAISS dl|qNd :T-Sd

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

WL QX




¥51 ‘Bd 19)08d

Z006) Jejos snuep weiboid Buioday pue BuLio)yuop uo!leﬁlllﬂfﬂ,&ﬂ%%ﬁf’#‘rbﬂw

J012BJUOD [BIUSWUOIIAUT/IMY

Uo0J39NJ3SU0)-aid

"J31YD 2414 Y3 Aq panoidde pue pamalnai aq ||eys Ssad0e

pue 3oeg3as ay} ‘@auenss| ywiad aJly 01 Jolid "91s 199[0ud Y3 18 asuodsas Aouasiawa ue Jo JUIAS 3y} Ul d1y4ell ySnoayy Aem-omy o3
paso|d Sulaq wouJy peoy Aajjep Suids Juanaud 01 papinoad aq [|eys 3oeqias a1enbape ‘walsAs aSelols Asaneq ayi jo Sunis ay3 jo 1ed sye
‘sisAjeue uonesniw piezey e jo uonesedasd ayi Suipnpul ‘Z0ZT UOLIS ‘DPOD I BIUIOH[ED ZZOT O Suoisinoad ||e yum adueldwo)e
‘syusawalinbau jeuonippe Aue 01 123[gns

U011242SIp 9|0S S} UO Paseq UoIez|Siaua Jo/pue uol}dauuod pies anoidde Aew Ajioyiny .14 swel|jipn 9yl ‘Suiisal Uoi1edl11iad p|aly
Pyl wioyiad 01 paziSiaua Jo/pue paidauuod Sulaq aJinbai jiun a8es01s Aisnieq 1591 syl pjnoys “Alioyiny aJi4 swel||ip Y3 Jo uoidejsies
9Y1 01 9peW U23q aARY suoledlyipow painba. Aue pue pauleiqo s [erosdde UoIIeI1I1IBD YINS [13UN Aem Aue ul paziSisus Jo/pue
|euoijesado ‘pa3oauU0d 3q ||eYsS JUn 98.403S AJ911E] OU PUE SYSIJ UMO S}I 1B OS S0P M ‘AUd|eAINba Sul}sal ay3 JO UOIIEDIHILIRD 0FS6 1N Y3
40 Ajlaoyany aui4 swel|ip aY3 jo |eaosdde Sujuieiqo o3 Jolid 98elo01s A1alieq sauo ueyy aiow s 9y} uo ade|d JaumQ 193(0ad ay3 pjnoys
*AjlJoyany 2414 SWel||IA Y3 JO UoIdeySiIeS Yl 01 JudjeAinba Suilsal 8yl Jo UOIILININIBD OFS6 TN Y3 Ulelqo 03 syun aSelols Aianeq

ay3 03 sa8ueyd paJinbau ||e pue Aue Supjew Joy a|qisuodsal S| JUMQ 393[04d YL 'SPJEPUE)S 3SAY) SPIIXD JO S}D9W PUE SPIBPUBLS OFS6
TN 01 paien|eAa uaaq sey walsAs ay 1eyl SuiAy1uad [age) e apinoad |jeys Aioresoqe| Suiisal ayi ‘1s91 pialy ayl Suissed uodn "Alioyiny

M 941 Aq panoadde se ‘Aiojeloqe| Sunisal 1eyl Aq pajielap saunpadoud uolienjeaa pialy ayi Suizijian waisAs |eaidAy suo
4O UOIEN[BAS P|3l4 B 30NPUOD [|eys ‘Sulisal p|aly 3yl 3onpuod 03 palijenb pue Ayuoyiny adi4 sweljjip a3yl Ag panosdde ‘Asojesoqe Sunsa |
paziu8ooay AjjeuoneN e ‘papiroid 3¢ J0uUUEd UOLEIYIIDD OFS6 TN B 4| "UOLEILLIDD OFS6 TN B SAI9IAJ [|eYS SJaulejuod Alaneq aylo
‘lenosdde pue malnaJ 10} pRINWIGNS

94 ||eys Suij@pow diweuAp pinjy [euoneindwod sy "auemypos Sulapow djweuAp pinjy jeuonreindwod Suizijin sisAjeue xnjy jeay e
Ajlenuaiod pue ‘suopeledas papuawiwodal JainoenuBW ‘elep 1593 YOYS6 1N U0 paseq paulwualap aq [|eys Suioeds Jauiejuod Alanego
‘paunuapl Ajuea)d aq |jeys 4a1em ayi 4oy Ajlddns pue ao4nos syy ‘sniesedde auiy Suipuodsal

yum ajquedwod suopdauuod sdn-}ooy 3onJ3} pue asoy yim juel aSelols Jajem uoj|es-000‘0S e apnjoul ||eys a8ei01s Ja1em a|s-uQo

a1yD 3414 Aoyiny

2414 swel||Ip 2y3 Aq paJinbaJ se Suimoj||oj ay3 01 paliwl| 8¢ 30U INg APN|OUI [|BYS SBINSEIW YINS “Ja1y) aJi4 Aldoyiny aui4 swel||ip
9U3 JO Uode)SIIES DY) 0} Spaezey aJly 95elo3s Aiaieq a1eulwi|d 0y AJjioe) 98eJ01s A11ieq ayi ul pajuswajdwi aq ||IM 1By} sainseaw
uola930.d uoissaiddns auij Y3 Jo s|1e1ap 213199ds ay3 [1eIap ||BYS ue|d JuswaSeue|y a.i4 aSelols Asanieg siyl ‘|eacsdde pue malas
10} Ajlioyany adi4 swel|jIp\ Yl 03 paniwgns 34 [|eys ue|d Juawadeue|y 2414 98eio01s Aseneg e ‘@ouenssi Jwuad Suipjing Aue 01 Jolide
‘Aiessadau

paulWIa1ap 3Jaym speay Japjulids Jo uolie||esul ayl Jo/pue ‘eale 31s 199(04d ay3 IN0YSn0oJy) $3eauq a.1}/Speos SS20e JO Uole||eisul
9y} ‘|aAd] paquasald e mojag uoleiadan ayi jo ySiay ayy Sujuiejuiew o} pajyiwi| 8 Jou Ing apnjoul Aew sainseaw uolejuswaldwi
ples “ja1yD 2414 Ayuoyiny aJi4 swel|ip Yl Aq A101oejsies paulwlalap [9A3] B 0} SpJezey 241 PUe|p|IM 1eulwl|d 03} 3s 109[04d ay3}
noysnoJy3 uojeiaSan ayl ulelulew pue |0J3U0D 0} SAINSEaW UolleuawWa|dwl [1eIap [|eys ue|d Juswadeueln ali4 pue|p|im SIYLl ‘|eroidde
pue malAaJ 104 AJoyany a4l swel||ip 8yl 03 paniwgns a9 ||eys ue|d Juswadeue|y a4 pue|p|ip e ‘@duenss| Jiwiad Sulp|ing 03 Jolide

sa4nsea|n
u0|399304d
SJUPIIM T-34Id4

Aued s|qisuodsay

Supwy

jJuswalinbay

uo13995 /uoiipuo)

lejog snuep

orlLe

(LLS0L00Z0T "ON HOS) LIOdAY LOVIINI TVINTANOAIANT TVNIA
OTT‘Ad ¥VT0S SANVE 4Od INVIDOUd ONILIOIAT ANV ONIIOLINOI NOILLVOILLIN

WL QX




Exhibit “C” Attachment #10

USE PERMIT #20-01 (PD-3829)
JANUS SOLAR PV, LLC
COLUSA COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

April 5, 2023
DATE

UP #20-01 (PD-3829)
PERMIT NO.

018-050-00S, 006, and 013
ASSESSORS PARCEL NO.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance of the County of Colusa JANUS SOLAR PV, LLC is
hereby granted a Use Permit in accordance with the application filed to construct, operate, maintain, and
decommission (in the future) a photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility with a battery energy storage
system (BESS) and associated facilities and infrastructure subject to all of the following Conditions of
Approval:

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

A.

Failure to comply with the conditions specified herein as the basis for approval of application and
issuance of the Use Permit constitutes cause for the revocation of said permit in accordance with
the procedures set forth in the Colusa County Code and Zoning Ordinance.

Unless otherwise provided for in a Condition of Approval to this Use Permit, all conditions must
be completed prior to or concurrently with the establishment of the granted use to the satisfaction
of the zoning administrator.

The use shall be limited to the project described in the Janus Solar Final EIR certified by the
Planning Commission attached as Exhibit “A” to the Commission’s approval Resolution. Minor
changes may be approved by the Zoning Administrator pursuant to Section 44-1.80.030 of the
County Code. Changes deemed major or significant in nature by the Zoning Administrator shall
require an application amendment which must be reviewed by the Planning Commission.

All requirements of the Mitigation and Monitoring Program adopted by the Planning Commission
in Exhibit “B” of the Commission’s approval Resolution are herein incorporated by referenced as
conditions of this Use Permit approval.

The terms and conditions of this permit shall run with the land and shall be binding upon and be to
the benefit of the heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns of the Permittee.

The use granted by this permit must be established within 24 months per the County Code. Upon
written request by the applicant, the original review authority for the permit may extend the time
limit for the permit per the County Code. If any use for which a Use Permit has been granted is not
established within 24 months and no time extension has been granted, this Use Permit shall
become null and void and re-application and a new permit shall be required prior to establishment
of the use.

Attachment: Exhibit "C" Janus Solar Use Permit 20-01 (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 155




Exhibit “C” Attachment #10

The project developer agrees, as a condition of issuance and use of this entitlement, to indemnify
and defend the County, at applicant’s sole cost and expense, in any claim, action, or proceeding
brought against the County within 180-days after the issuance of this entitlement because of, or
resulting from, any preliminary approval or actual issuance of this entitlement, or, in the
alternative, to relinquish such entitlement. Applicant will reimburse the County for any damages,
court costs and attorney fees which the County may be required by a court to pay as a result of
such claim, action or proceeding. The County shall promptly notify the applicant of any such
claim, action, or proceeding and will cooperate in its defense. The County may also, at its sole
discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim, action, or proceeding but such
participation shall not relieve applicant of its obligations under this condition.

The project developer shall comply with all other applicable federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances and regulations, including Colusa CUPA Business Plan requirements.

The project developer shall comply with the current version of the California Building Standards
Code adopted in Chapter 5 of the County Code in effect at the time of building permit submittal.

Prior to building permit issuance, the Applicant shall submit a Local Tax Purchasing Plan to the
Community Development Director for review and approval which details the requirements and
actions that will be taken to procure equipment and materials necessary for the development of the
project in a manner that maximizes the amount of sales tax able to be captured and allocated to
Colusa County.

The applicant shall track the number and species of birds that may have died as a result of
impacting solar panels throughout the life of the project. Any bird fatalities incidentally observed
by operations staff should be logged. This information shall be collected on a calendar year basis
and no later than January 31 of each year, the total number of bird deaths believe to occur as a
result of solar panel strikes shall be submitted to the Community Development Director. The
information shall include the total number of deaths per month and species to the satisfaction of
the Community Development Director.

The final color of the metal battery enclosures shall be submitted to the Community Development
Director for review and approval prior to installation. In general, the color shall be non-reflective
and earth tones to blend into the surrounding environment

The approval of this Use Permit is contingent upon the Board of Supervisors approving the
cancellation of the properties’ Williamson Act Contracts and said cancellation being finalized
prior to the expiration of the Use Permit pursuant to the time lines detailed in these conditions.
Once the contract has been cancelled, acceptance back into the County’s Williamson Act program
shall be consistent with Colusa County’s Williamson Act Contract program and policies in effect
at the time of any re-entry application. No contract re-entry shall occur in any event until after the
Project and has been fully decommissioned and returned to its pre-Project state.

Project related semi-truck construction traffic and off-site construction shall be limited to
Mondays through Friday 7:00 am to 7:00 pm. On-site construction activities shall be limited to
Mondays through Friday 7:00 am to 7:00 pm and from 8:00 am though 5 pm on Saturday and
Sundays.

Attachment: Exhibit "C" Janus Solar Use Permit 20-01 (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 156




Exhibit “C” Attachment #10 319

Prior to commencement of construction, the Applicant shall identify a single point of contact to
receive any complaints (including but not limited to noise, traffic, and other issues) and shall
forward this contact and their contact information to the Community Development Director. The
Applicant shall also mail a notice of this contact information to property owners adjacent to the
project development. Within 48 hours of receiving any complaint, the complaint contact shall
notify the Community Development Director of any complaint.

Prior to construction commencing, the application shall contact Caltrans and the Colusa County
Public Works Department to determine any appropriate locations for Construction Warning signs
along Highway 20 and along County Roads. The placement of such signage shall be subject to
Caltrans and the Public Works Department’s specifications. The results of these determinations
shall be submitted to the Community Development Director for review and approval prior to
construction commencing,

Should metal power poles be used for the gen-tie connection, the poles shall be finished in a non-
reflective (flat) dark brown color to resemble the coloration of adjacent wooden power poles.
Prior to installation of the poles, the finish shall be submitted to the Community Development
Director for review and approval.

Prior to permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all required fees, including but not limited to the
Williams Fire Authority determined development impact fees

Prior to building permit issuance, an engineer’s estimate for decommissioning the project and
returning it back to the pre-existing development state and a bond or other surety in a form
satisfactory to the County Counsel to ensure said decommissioning shall be submitted to the
Community Development Director for review and approval. At least two years prior to the
decommissioning of plant, the applicant shall submit a detailed project specific decommissioning
plan to the Community Development Director for review and approval. This plan shall detail the
actions required to return the property to its pre-development condition. An updated engineer’s
estimate of the cost of this decommissioning shall accompany the plan and prior to the approval of
said plan, an updated bond or other surety in a form satisfactory to the County Counsel for cost of
decommissioning the project shall be submitted to the County.

Prior to installation of any security fencing, the design of this fencing shall be submitted to the
Community Development Director for review and approval. In general, the design of the fencing
shall incorporate rural fencing characteristics to the greatest extent possible and avoid industrial or
institutional designs.

Prior to issuance of building permits, the Applicant shall submit a status of all requirements
contained in the Mitigation and Monitoring Report Program to the Community Development
Director. Said status shall specify the status and timing of completion of all mitigation measures
to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.

This approval shall become effective ten (10) days from the date of this decision unless appealed
pursuant to Section 44-1.80.080 of the County Code. Any such appeal must be filed within 10
days from this approval by submitting an appeal request in writing together with the applicable fee
to the Colusa County Board Clerk. The appellant shall clearly identify in the appeal
documentation the specific reasons for the appeal and the relief requested.

Attachment: Exhibit "C" Janus Solar Use Permit 20-01 (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 157




Attachment #10 [__31#

TECHNICAL MEMORANDU M

To: Greg Plucker, Colusa County
From: Jamie Gomes and Sean Fisher

Subject:  Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact
Analysis; EPS #212142

Date: January 9, 2023

Introduction and Project
Overview

Colusa County (County) retained Economic & Planning
Systems, Inc. (EPS) to prepare an economic impact analysis
(Analysis) of the proposed Janus Solar Facility (Project), an
80-megawatts alternating current (MWac) solar facility plus
battery energy storage system (BESS), located in the western
unincorporated portion of the County. The Project is being
proposed by Janus Solar PV, LLC, a subsidiary of RWE Solar
Development, LLC (Applicant). The Project is anticipated to
encompass 768 acres of 1,024 acres of land owned by a
private landowner. The Project consists of three major
components: a solar energy generating facility, energy storage
system, and the generation tie-line. The proposed BESS would
extend the period of time each day that the Project could
contribute PV-generated energy to the electrical grid. The
Project would connect to the electrical grid at the existing
Cortina Substation, which is owned and operated by Pacific Gas
and Electric Company (PG&E), approximately 3 miles northeast
of the Project site.

The Project is located approximately 6.5 miles southwest of the
City of Williams. The Project is to be located on 3 adjacent
parcels zoned for foothill agriculture and are being used for
cattle grazing.

The purpose of this Analysis is to estimate the quantifiable one-
time construction and ongoing operational impacts of the
proposed Project on the local economy with respect to jobs,

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 158




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

income, and total economic output.l The economic stimulus generated by the
Project will have a multiplying effect throughout the economy as local businesses,
consumers, and employees associated with the Project make local expenditures.
This Analysis quantifies these impacts using an input/output (1/0) economic
modeling system, which measures the change in regional economic activity
resulting from a specific economic stimulus.

In this Analysis, the local economy is defined as Colusa County (County), and the
economic impacts measured include the direct contributions of the Project, as well
as indirect and induced impacts resulting from Project construction and
operations. Figure 1 illustrates the activities captured by this Analysis.

Figure 1. Economic Impact Analysis Components

In addition, this Analysis includes an estimate of revenues generated by the
Project to the public sector of the County.

1 Total economic output refers to the value of goods and services produced in a county as a
result of a project’s buildout operations.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 2

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 159




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

Economic Impact Results

Table 1 summarizes the estimated one-time construction impacts, ongoing
annual direct, indirect, and induced impacts, and public-sector revenues
generated by the Project in the County:

e The construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $15.9 million in one-
time economic impacts, supporting 90 jobs.

e On an annual ongoing basis, Project operations are anticipated to generate
$4.0 million annually in total economic impacts, supporting 6 new jobs in the
County.

e This Analysis includes an estimate of tax revenues generated in the County.
The construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $788,000 in one-
time fiscal revenues to the County. On an annual ongoing basis, the Project is
anticipated to generate tax revenue to support public-sector operations
ranging from $155,000 in the first year of operations to $22,000 once all

assets have depreciated (years 12 and beyond).2

One-Time Construction Economic Impact Results

One-time economic impacts are generated by construction and as such are limited
to the development period of the construction. To the extent that construction
activity is short-term and construction labor markets are tight, construction
impacts may represent a shift of resources from other projects in the County. This
report, therefore, reports gross economic impacts, not accounting for potential
shifts in resources. To the extent that construction labor is used temporarily and
laborers may live outside of the County, this Analysis is based on the assumption
that construction activities will not generate induced impacts. Construction
impacts are based on the anticipated construction employment estimates and
hard construction costs for the proposed Project, as provided by the Applicant.

2 Ongoing public sector revenues include annual property tax revenues estimated assuming a
dual use scenario in which the BESS would in any part be fueled by the existing power grid,
resulting in a reduced solar exclusion of 75% of the property value for the BESS not assessed for
property tax purposes.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 3

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 160




191 "Bd 19oed

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

2\IeposIsAfeuy 1oedwi J1WOU0dT 103f01d JejoS snuer AUNoD BsSNoD ZKTZT2\0002T2\dVS\sIoelold\PaIeyS\:Z 14

‘siayJom awiy-led pue -||ny yjoq sapnjoul
wawAojdw3 108loid ay) Jo} JuswAojdwsa jeuonesadQ pazijigels sy [v]
"108l014 paredionue ay) Jo sjoedwi paosnpul pue ‘19aJipul ‘Joauip sapnpul [g]
"polad uoIONIISUOD BUI3US BY} JOAO pawwns Jeak yoes ul sqol Jo Jaquinu ay)
0] Jajal sieak qop "siaylom awin-Led pue awi-|ns Yyioq sepnjoul Juswholdwy [7]
‘sjoedwi 19a41pul pue 10a41p sapnjou] [1]

'Sd3 0711 ‘Juswdojeaaq Jejos MY 1esered 6102 ‘NV1dIAI :92Inos

00022$ sonuaAay |easi4 BuiobuQ |enuuy
9 [#] (ebelony jenuuy) sqor JeuonetadQ BuiobuQ [enuuy
N 0¥$ [¢] s1oedw [euonesadQ BuiobuQ jenuuy
sjoeduw] o1wouo23 BuiobuQ jenuuy
000'88.$ SONUBASY [E3SIH] dWI]-dUQ
06 [Z] (s1ea A gor) sqor uononJIsuoD awl]-suQ
N6GLS [1] syoedw| uoponysuo)d swi]-8uQ

sjoedw| o1wI0U093 awi]-duQ

sjoedw] A3unoj esnjo)

suonetadQ pue uononsuo 3oafoid Jo syoedw] slWouos] pajewysy

($2z02) salobaje) joedw)/ANAnoY
sjoedw| ojwou0o3

pajewnsy

($220Z papunoy) syoedw| buiobuQ pue awi]-auQ jo Alewwng
sisAjeuy joedw) olwouoo]

Ay10e4 JejOog Snuep Ajuno) esnjo)

L alqel

€202/6/T Sd3 Aq paredaid



Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

One-time economic impacts stemming from construction of the Project are
estimated to generate a total output of $15.9 million (measured in

2022 dollars). It is anticipated that construction of the Project will generate

90 job-years over the anticipated construction timeline, including 83 direct and

7 indirect job years.3

Ongoing Economic Impact Results

Ongoing economic impacts are measured on a gross annual impact basis, not
accounting for shifts in consumer expenditures from other local alternatives.
Based on the anticipated operating expenditure of the Project after stabilized
operations are reached, approximately $4.0 million in total economic activity
(measured in 2022 dollars) is estimated to be generated in the County annually.
This level of economic output represents direct, indirect, and induced impacts.

The Project is estimated to result in 6 full- and part-time jobs in the County as
a result of ongoing, annual Project operations, including 3 direct (on-site) Project
jobs, 2 indirect jobs, and 1 induced job. These full- and part-time jobs are
estimated to generate approximately $752,000 in earned employee
compensation (wages and benefits).

Public-Sector Revenues

This Analysis estimates tax revenues resulting from the Project that will flow to
the County resulting from Project construction and ongoing operations. This
Analysis focuses on major sources of tax revenue only, including property tax,
property tax in lieu of vehicle license fees, property transfer tax, and sales tax
revenues. Under a dual-use scenario, in which only a portion of the assessed
BESS is eligible for the State of California’s (State) Active Solar Energy System
Exclusion (Exclusion), it is estimated that Project operations will generate public-
sector tax revenues ranging from approximately $155,000 in the first year of
Project operations to $22,000 annually after the Project facilities have
depreciated in value (years 12 and beyond) with an additional $788,000 in
one time County revenues related to Project construction (measured in

2022 dollars).

3 Note that the employment figures reported for construction impacts represent total job years
lasting over the duration of the Project and could reflect the same job that extends over multiple
years. For instance, a general laborer employed for 2 years during construction activity would
represent 2 job years. Construction employment in any given month of Project development may
exceed total job year estimates.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 5

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 162




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

Detailed Analysis Findings and
Assumptions

The following section provides the detailed results of the Analysis, as well as the
assumptions used to calculate each impact.

One-Time Construction Impacts

Impacts associated with construction of the Project through buildout are
measured on a one-time basis. Construction activity generates a short-term burst
of economic activity that dissipates once construction is complete. One-time
impacts include the value of new construction, improvements to existing
infrastructure, employment created, and income earned during Project
construction. The duration of one-time impacts is limited to the development
period of the Project. One-time economic impacts are calculated based on the
anticipated Project construction employment estimates provided by the Project
Applicant. Based on information provided by the Project Applicant, it is estimated
that construction of the Project will last approximately 9 months with employment
estimates of up to 175 employees during any given month. As the economic
impacts are estimated based on annual job years, EPS converted the monthly job
estimates to an annual job year estimate. The conversion of monthly to annual
job estimates is shown on Table B-1 in Appendix B.

The section below details the one-time economic impacts results for construction
of the Project.

One-Time Project Construction

Table 2 details the estimated one-time economic impacts associated with
construction of the Project. The resulting impacts are described below:

e Annual Output: Construction operations are estimated to generate
approximately $14.5 million in direct one-time industry output. Local spending
will result in $1.4 million in indirect one-time impacts for a total one-time
industry output impact of $15.9 million.

e Employee Compensation: Of the $14.5 million in direct industry output
reported above, approximately $7.1 million will be received by construction
employees in the form of salary, wages, and benefits. Indirect employee
compensation impacts total approximately $402,000, for a total annual
employee compensation impact of approximately $7.5 million.

e Annual Employment: The 83 direct job years support 7 indirect job years for
a total employment impact of 90 job years.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 6

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 163




¥91 6d 19)08d

2\[9PON\SIsATeuy 10edu| 21WOU093 19301d JejoS snuer AUnoD esnjod ZrTZ12\0002T2\0VS\sal0id\pareys\.z L £20¢2/6/T Sd3 >Q Uw:maw._n_

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

100014 8y} Jo poliad uoioNIISUOD PajewWIISe dIIIUD 8y} JOAO
pawuwns Jeak yoea ul sqol Jo Jaquinu ay} 0] Jajal sieak qor "siaylom awi-ued pue awi-[|ny Yyjoqg sapnjoul JuswAodwy [y]
‘(senjekol pue ‘syual ‘sujoid) sawooul Jayio pue ‘ewoaul sio}aludoud ‘uonesuadwod askojdwa sapnjpou) [g]
‘Awouooa AJUno) ay) UIylIMm paule}al S82IAISS pue Spoob uo
saln)puadxa ssauisng Jo Junowe ay} sl indinQ “ejep Alunod esnjo) ul pajelauab AJAOE UOONIISUOD UO paseq sisAleuy [¢]
‘Awouoos
[e00] 8y} Ul sainyipuadxe pjoyasnoy mau Jou ajelausab 0y pajedionue jou ale snyj pue Alejodwa) aie SaljIAI}0. UOIIONIISUOD
9sSNeosaq pajew}sa Jou atem sjoedwil paonpul ‘Ajuo sjoedwi JoaJipul pue Joalip apnjoul sjoedwi UOIONIISUOD [e)0} jey) 810N [1]

'Sd3 ‘0711 ‘Juswdojenaq Jejos MY 1esered 6102 ‘NV1dIAI :92inos

06 0 L €8 [¥] (eBeiany [enuuy)
jusawAojdwg A3unoH esnjo)n
000'628'G1L$ 0% 000'65€°L$ 000'025‘V1L$ lejol
000°8S¥°.$ 0% 000'20¥$ 000'950°2$ [¢] swoou|
000°L2V‘8$ 0% 000°256$ 0009t 2$ (swoouj "[oxa) IndinQ Axsnpul

[2] indinQO Ayuno9g esnjo)

sjoedw] awi]-auQ AJuno) esnjon

€8 L-g3lqel (lenuuy) sqop uopoNsu0Y pajewss
nduj Aoy

sjoedw [L] po@onpu| 108.1pU| 1008110 99inog sauobaje) Joedwy/f)anoy
awi]-auQ
lejol

adA] joeduw

($220Z papunoy) uononisuod 39afoid jo sjoedw| sjwouosy awi]-auQ pajelaq

sisAjeuy joedw| olwiouoo]
uoloNIISuU0H Ayjioe4 Jejog snuepr Ajuno) esnjo)
Z alqeL




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

Ongoing Operations

This report estimates the ongoing economic impacts occurring annually as a result
of the Project operations in the County. Ongoing economic impacts capture the
direct, indirect, and induced impacts generated by annual operations of the
Project. Impacts associated with these economic activities are estimated based
annual ongoing Project operational expenditures, provided by the Project
Applicant, reflecting stabilized operations.

Ongoing Project Operations

Table 3 summarizes the total estimated annual ongoing impacts associated with
Project operations. The resulting impacts are described below:

e Annual Output: Project operations are estimated to generate approximately
$3.6 million in direct industry output annually. Local spending will result in
approximately $318,000 in indirect industry output impacts and $145,000 in
induced impacts annually for a total industry output impact of $4.0 million on
an annual basis.

e Employee Compensation: Of the $3.6 million in direct industry output
reported above, approximately $626,000 will be received by employees
employed in the Project in the form of salary, wages, and benefits. Indirect
and induced employee compensation impacts total approximately $126,000
for a total annual employee compensation impact of approximately $752,000.

e Annual Employment: The 3 direct jobs will generate approximately
2 indirect and 1 induced jobs annually for a total employment impact of

approximately 6 jobs on an annual basis.?

Additional Public-Sector Revenues

The Project will generate additional revenues to the County. This Analysis focuses
on major sources of tax revenues, including property tax and sales tax revenues,
as shown in Table 4. Based on the State’s Revenue and Taxation Code

section 73, active solar facilities are eligible for the State Exclusion program,
which allows for development of active solar facilities with no increase in assessed
value for construction of active solar facilities. The property tax revenues
estimated in this analysis are based on estimating methodologies derived from
the Guidelines for Active Solar Energy Systems New Construction Exclusion
(Guidelines), published by the State Board of Equalization in December 2012.

4 Job estimates reflect total full- and part-time employment, adjusted for seasonality but not
adjusted for hours worked per day.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 8

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 165




99| "6d 1@)oed

2\[9PON\SIsATeuy 10edu| 21WOU093 19301d JejoS snuer AUnoD esnjod ZrTZ12\0002T2\0VS\sal0id\pareys\.z 6 £20¢2/6/T Sd3 >Q Uw:maw._n_

‘sojew}se JuswAojdwa

1uajeAinba awn |n} 10832. sjoedwi JuswAojdwa Bulobuo |e10) ‘108loid oyl wouy Bunnsal juswAoidwa Jo sadA) ay)
0] anQ "siayJom awi-Jed pue awi-[|n} yjoq sapnjoul JuswAoidwg JuswAojdws jeuonjesado pazijige)s sjoaiay [v]
‘(seneAol pue ‘syuai ‘sujoid) swooul Jaylo pue ‘ewoaul siojalidoid ‘uonesuadwod sahkojdwa sapnpoul [g]

‘Awouoos AJuno) sy} UlylIM paulelal sadiAlas pue spoob uo sainjipuadxa
ssauisng Jo Junowe ay} st indinQ "ejep AlJuno) esnjo) ui pajessusb JuswAhojdws joauip paseq sisAleuy [g]
ueolddy 108loud eyl Aq pepinoid se sainyipuadxs [euonelado pazijiqels sjoaiey [1]

'Sd3 ‘077 ‘uewdojeraq JejoS IMY 19seeq 6102 ‘NY 1IN :90In0g

9 L Z e [¥7] (eBeiaAy jenuuy)
juawAojdwzg AyunoH esnjon
000°‘€LO‘V$ 000°'S¥7L$ 000°81LE$ 000°‘055‘€$ lejol
000°25.$ 000'8€$ 000'88% 000'929% [¢] swoou|
000°192°€$ 000°201% 000°0£Z$ 000'v26°2$ (swoou "oxa) IndinQ Ansnpuj

[z] indino Ayuno9 esnjo)

syoedw) BunesadQ BuiobuQ jenuuy Ajunos) esnjoo

000°055°€$ [1] seunppuadx3 Bunesedo joeloid Buiobug
induj Aay
syoeduw| paonpu| 10841pu]| 198110 salo0bajen Joedwy/ANAnoy
Bulobuo adA] joeduwy
[enuuy
jejol

($2z0zZ papunoy) suonesadQ jo9foid BulobuQ ayj jo sjoedw) o1wWoOU023 |enuUY pajielaq
sisAjeuy joedw] olwiouoo]

Ayjioed Jejog snuepr Ajuno) esnjo)
€ 9|qeL

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

syoedw BuiobuQ jenuuy

oL'e




191 "Bd 1@oed

2\BPoSIsAjeuy joedw] JIWOU0dT 103[01d JejoS Snuer AUNoD BSN0D ZKTZT2\0002T2\OVS\SIo8l0Id\PaIeyS\:Z

o €202/6/T Sd3 Aq pasedsid

‘e-V 9|qe 0} Jayal ‘oafoid 8y}

Aq pajeissuab xe} Auedoud jusosad | [N} 8y} Jo4 "sanuaaal xe} Auadoud Jo aleys s,AlunoD ay) Ajuo Jo9ja1 uMoys sajewsa xey Auadold [9]
‘sisAjeue siy} Ul pajewi}se uaaq Jou aAey pue 9|qibiBau aq o) pajedionue si Buipuads eakojdwa
woly Bunnsal senuanal xXe} sa|es Jo sajewisa BulobuQ "senuanal xe} sajes Ajajes olgnd

Z/ | uonisodoud juso Jjey syl pue 8jel xe] ssjes 20| suing As|pelg 1usaiad auo syl yiog sepnjou] [g]

"OlIBUSIS @SN [enp e Japun sanjeA Auadoud [euosiad jo

uoneroaidap Buipnjoul ‘z| JesA Ul 108[0id 8y} JO 8NnjBA PaSSaSSE 8|gexe) |e]0) 8U) YlIIM Pa)eIoosSSe sanusAal ay) 109jial selewnsy [v]

‘uoljeroaldap pawnsse Aue

0} Jolid oLleusds asn [enp 8y} Jopun J0sloid 8y} JO oNnjeA passSasSe a|gexe) [e)j0) 8y} YIIM pajeloosse sanuaal ay) Joajjal serewnsy [g]

suoisnjoxa xe} Ajadoud 1oy 8|qibie 89 jou pjnom walsAs abelo)s

Aiapeq ayj 10} anjeA passasse Jo Juadlad Gz ‘Oleuads Siy) Japun "saijioey} Jejos ayl Aq pableyd A|gjos aq jou pue ainjonliseljul ABisus
Bunsixs ay) Aq pajony Aem sawos ul 89 pjnom alis-uo sanljioe} abeloys Aiayeq ayl Yoiym Ul OLBUSDS B S)09|ja4 OLIeUdds asn jenp v [g]
‘uoisnjoxa xe} Ajadoud e jou s| a1y} Buiwnsse a|gejieAe anuanal xe} Ajadold wnwixew ayy Bunjewijss oleuads e syjuasalday [L]

'Sd3 ‘D717 ‘wswdojeas Jejos JANY :9921n0S

2006) euld Apnig Joedu [e9SI4 JEIOS SNUET LYAUSWLIERY o yoERY

zse‘ces 99.'9S1$ $9c‘119$ sanuaAay |easi4 BulobuQ |enuuy |ejol
¥95'2$ 0.£'25$ 9/8'902$ -V o|gel $894 85UB0IT BJOIYSA JO N8l Ul xe Auedold
88.'71$ G6£'20L$ 687 v0v$ €-V 9|qel [o] xe1 Auadoid
S9NUBAdY |edsi4 BuloBuQ jenuuy
82.18.% 8Z.°18.% 82.118.19% S9NUAA3Y |edSI4 dwi]-auQ [e}oL
€8Y'v8.$ £8Y'¥8.$ €8¥'v8.$ Z-v 8|qel [c] xe] seles
AR Sve'e$ svz'es L-V 9|qel xe] Jajsues| Auadoig
SONUAASY [BISI4 dwWi]-duQ
sanuaAay Ajuno) esnjon
v suonesadQ pue uoioniisuo? josfoid jo sjoedw| |easi4 pajewnnsy
[v] [e] enjep [1] oureuaog @2Inog adA] anuanay Auno)
anje/ pajenaidag [eniu] uoisn|axg oN

[2] oueuasg asn jeng
($2202) senuanay pajewnys3

10-0Z# Jlw.idd 9s Jejos snuer

oL'e

($2202Z popunoy) sanuaAay |eossi{ |enuuy pue awi]-auQ jo Arewwng
sisAjeuy jJoedw] o1wouo2y

Ayoe4 Jejog snuep AJuno) esnjo)

v 9lqel



Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

This Analysis estimates public-sector revenues under two scenarios related to the
State’s Exclusion program:

e No Exclusion Scenario: The No Exclusion Scenario is provided for
informational purposes and estimates the public sector revenues generated by
the project assuming no Exclusion for any portions of the Project.

No depreciation is assumed in the No Exclusion Scenario.

e Dual Use Scenario: The Dual Use Scenario reflects a likely operational
scenario for the project in which the BESS will in part be fueled using the
existing energy grid and not exclusively new solar facilities. Based on
information provided in the Guidelines, this scenario assumes that the active
solar facilities within the Project would be eligible for the Exclusion and the
dual-use BESS would be eligible for a partial (75 percent) Exclusion. The Dual
Use Scenario assumes the value of the BESS will depreciate for the first
12 years of Project operations.

Under the no Exclusion Scenario construction of the Project is anticipated to
generate $788,000 in one-time County revenues and ongoing Project operations
are anticipated to generate $611,000 in additional public-sector tax revenue.

Under the Dual Use Scenario, construction of the Project is anticipated to
generate $788,000 in one-time County revenues and ongoing Project operations
are anticipated to generate $155,000 in additional public-sector tax revenue in
the initial year of operations decreasing as the Project depreciates in value to
$22,000 annual for year 12 and beyond.

The Analysis estimates additional public-sector revenues using a marginal-
revenue case-study approach, which simulates actual revenue generation
resulting from new development. The following sections detail the additional
public-sector tax revenues generated by the Project and the case-study
methodologies used to calculate each revenue source.

One-Time Revenues Generated by Project Construction

Property Transfer Tax

Real property transfer tax is based on the value of the portion of the Project land
to be purchased through a fee simple property sale prior to Project development.
Real property transfer tax revenue projections are identified in Table A-1 in
Appendix A.

Sales Tax

Sales tax revenue is based on estimated taxable sales and the Bradley-Burns local
1-percent Uniform Local Sales Tax rate as summarized in Table A-2 in

Appendix A. Due to local purchasing agreements entered into between the
County and the Project Applicant, it is anticipated that sales tax generated by
Project construction would be registered to a local property in the unincorporated

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 11

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 168




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

Colusa County. Based on information provided by the Project Applicant,
construction of the Project is estimated to result in $3.25 million in sales taxes.
Due to the local purchasing agreement, the Analysis assumes that all sales tax
related to construction materials and services would be generated in Colusa
County. The County’s share of sales tax revenue is estimated using the share of
total sales tax rates benefitting the County, including the Bradley Burns sales tax
rate, local transportation taxes, and Proposition 172 public safety sales tax. As
shown on Table A-2, Project construction is estimated to generate $784,000 in
sales tax revenue to the County.

In total, construction of the Project is anticipated to generate $788,000 in one-
time County revenues under all scenarios.

Ongoing Annual Revenues Generated by Project Operations

Property Tax Revenues

The Analysis estimates property tax revenues generated by the Project annually
under each Exclusion scenario. The Project is estimated to create $174.9 million
in assessed value (net of existing land value) including $174.1 million in BESS
uses and $1.0 million in other real property, including streets, fencing, and other
uses not directly related to solar operations.

No Exclusion Scenario

The No Exclusion Scenario estimates annual property tax revenues based on the
total value of real property and the BESS with no Exclusion applied. Under this
scenario, the Project is estimated to generate $404,000 in property tax revenues
to the County General Fund, annually.

Dual Use Scenario

The Dual Use Scenario assumes that the BESS would be in part fueled using
energy from the existing power grid and not fully from new solar facilities and
would be eligible for a partial exclusion, as detailed in the Guidelines. Due to the
dual-use categorization, the BESS would be eligible for a 75 percent exclusion,
with property taxes being generated on only 25 percent of the total BESS value.
The real property would not be eligible for Exclusion. In addition to the partial
Exclusion, the Dual Use Scenario includes annual depreciation of BESS facility
values, with the Project being fully depreciated to 13 percent of the beginning
value by year 12 of Project operations. In the initial year of Project operations,
the Project is estimated to generate $102,000 in property tax revenue benefitting
the County General Fund. After the Project fully depreciates in year 12, it is
estimated that the Project will generate $15,000 in property taxes, annually.

Estimated annual property tax revenue resulting from development in the Project
is presented in Table A-3 in Appendix A. The estimated assessed values for
Project land uses are assumed to remain static in 2022-dollar values—real growth
in assessed value is not estimated. The property taxes the County will receive are
derived from the total assessed value of the Project, as provided by the Project

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 12

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 169




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

Applicant, and the estimated post-Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund
(ERAF) share of the 1 percent ad valorem property tax rate to the County.

Property Tax in Lieu of Vehicle License Fee

The Analysis uses a formula provided by the State Controller’s Office to forecast
Property Tax in Lieu of Vehicle License Fees (PTIL VLF). PTIL VLF is calculated by
taking the percentage increase in the County’s assessed value resulting from the
Project under each scenario and applying that percentage increase to the County’s
current State allocation of PTIL VLF revenue, as shown in the County’s Fiscal Year
(FY) 2021-22 budget. This calculation is shown in Table A-3 in Appendix A.

As shown, the Project is anticipated to generate approximately $207,000 in PTIL
VLF revenues to the County under the No Exclusion Scenario. Under the Dual Use
Scenario, the Project is anticipated to generate approximately $52,000 in PTIL
VLF revenues in the initial year of operations and $8,000 annually beginning in
year 12.

Economic Impact Modeling Framework

The Analysis uses an I/0 modeling framework to quantify the project’s one-time
and ongoing contributions to countywide output, employment, and labor income.
The 1/0 modeling framework is premised on the concept that industries in a
geographic region are interdependent in the sense that they purchase output from
and supply input to other industries. This regional economic analysis relies on
IMPLAN (Impact Analysis for Planning) software, an 1/0 model that draws on data
collected by the IMPLAN Group, LLC, from several state and federal sources,
including the Bureau of Economic Analysis, the Bureau of Labor Statistics, and the
Census Bureau. The model is used widely for estimating economic impacts across
a wide array of industries and economic settings.

Regional economic impact analysis and 1/0 models in particular provide a means
to estimate total regional effects stemming from a particular industry. Specifically,
1/0 models produce quantitative estimates of the magnitude of regional economic
activity resulting from some initial activity (e.g., business operations or building
construction). 1/0 models rely on economic “multipliers” that mathematically
represent the relation between the initial change in one sector of the economy
and the effect of that change on economic output, income, or employment in
other local industries. These economic data provide a quantitative estimate of the
magnitude of shifts in jobs and revenues in the regional economy.

Economic impacts using an 1/0 model are based on an initial change in output or
employment in a specific industry sector. The model then translates the initial
change into changes in demand for output from other interdependent sectors,
corresponding changes in demand for inputs to those sectors, and so on. These
effects commonly are described as direct, indirect, or induced and generally are
defined as follows:

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 13

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 170




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

e The direct effect represents the change in output or employment attributable
to a certain economic activity. In this case, the annual operations of the
Project and the entities directly receiving spending related to the building
construction project (e.g., construction contractors, equipment vendors, and
consultants).

e The indirect effect results from industry-to-industry transactions required to
satisfy the direct effect. This effect is a measure of the change in the output of
suppliers linked to the industry that is directly affected.

e The induced effect consists of impacts from employee spending in the local
economy. Specifically, the employees of directly and indirectly affected
businesses generate this effect by purchasing goods and services in the local
economy. For instance, employees of these businesses spend their paychecks
on household needs such as groceries, retail purchases, health care, or
mortgage or rent payments, all of which are considered to be induced effects.

The total impact is the sum of the direct, indirect, and induced effects. The total
effect measures the impact of an activity as it “ripples” throughout the regional
economy. For this Analysis, the regional economy is defined as the County.
IMPLAN generates a model of the industrial structure and household profile for the
County economy, which in turn determines the extent to which spending is
captured and recirculated in the local economy rather than being allowed to leak
outside the County. In the following sections, the regional economic effects
described above are reported in three categories:

e Annual Output: Annual output measures the value of goods and services
produced in the County as a result of business operations. Projected Project
operational expenditures were used to estimate ongoing annual output of the
Project. Construction employment was used to estimate one-time construction
impacts.

e Employment: Employment estimates the total number of jobs, both full time
and part time, created as a result of project operations. Employment is
reported in job years. Construction employment represents total job-years
over the life of the project (1 job lasting 2 years would be reported as an
employment impact of “27).

e Labor Income: Labor income reflects the estimated amount of direct,
indirect, and induced annual employment income (salaries, wages, and
benefits) resulting from the associated employment. It is important to note
that labor income is a component of industry output and is not an additive
economic impact.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 14

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 171




Attachment #10 [__31#

Technical Memorandum: Colusa County Janus Solar Facility Economic Impact Analysis
January 9, 2023

1/0 Modeling Considerations

The current IMPLAN dataset relies on 1/0 relations derived from 2019. Although
2020 data is available, due to the unique nature of the economy as the COVID-19
pandemic impacted the global economy, EPS believes the 2019 data provides a
more accurate and reasonable approximation of conditions on an ongoing basis.

All economic impacts depicted in this Analysis reflect gross impacts. As such, the
economic impacts do not account for potential shifts in resources or shifts in
consumer expenditures from other local alternatives. The 1/0 methodology is
based on the assumption that an industry’s demand for goods and services results
in a corresponding increase in supply and therefore employment. This implies that
key industry suppliers can increase output rather than shift output from one set of
consumers or products to another. This assumption may not hold in areas with
tight labor or capital markets because companies may find it difficult to obtain
these inputs or other resources necessary to expand production. In these cases,
accommodating an establishment’'s demand for labor and other inputs may come
at the expense of other establishments in the same or related sectors or may
need to be satisfied by increased imports from outside the study area. This
phenomenon often is referred to as “crowding out” because the stimulated sector
tends to crowd out other sectors, which can reduce the net economic gain.

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) 15

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 172




Attachment #10 [__31#

APPENDICES:

Appendix A:  Fiscal Revenue-Estimating
Tables

Appendix B:  Project Construction
Employment Estimates

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 173




Attachment #10 [__31#

APPENDIX A:

Fiscal Revenue-Estimating Tables

Table A-1 One-Time Real Property Transfer Tax..........cccvvvunnn. A-1
Table A-2 Estimated One-Time Taxable Sales and

Use Tax Revenue from Project Construction ............ A-2
Table A-3 Estimated Annual Property Tax Revenues ............... A-3

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 174




6.1 "Bd 1@oed

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

2\BPoSIsAjeuy joedw] JIWOU0dT 103[01d JejoS Snuer AUNoD BSN0D ZKTZT2\0002T2\OVS\SIo8l0Id\PaIeyS\:Z T-v

ueolddy 108foid ayy Agq papinoid

se a|es Auadoud sjdwis 99} e ein paseyoind ayy 0} eale 108loid ay) Jo uonod
ay) Jo anjeA aseyoind ajdwis 83} 8y} UO paseq anuaAal Xe} Jajsuel) awin auQ [|]

"'SdJ 48]|01u0D-10}IpNY AJUNOD BSN|0Y :80IN0S

svz'es [1] anuaAay Xe] Jajsuel] awi] auQ
GS'0$ AV 30 000°L$ 1od a3ey
anuaAay 921nog uonduosag

xe] Jajsues] Ajadoisd  juondwnssy

Jenuuy pajewysy

($2202) xe] 1aysuea] Apadoud |eay awi] auQ
sisAjeuy jJoedw| olwouoo3]

Ay10e4 JejOog snuep Ajuno) esnjo)

I~V dlqelL

€202/6/T Sd3 Aq paredaid



9/1 "Bd 1@)oed

2\[@po\sIsAeuy 1oedw| o1wouoa3 108(oid Jejos snuer Aunod esnjod ZiTZT2\0002T2\DVS\s1oaloid\pateys\:z N|< MNON\O\H mn_m_ \AQ BQ‘_QQQ\_&

*AjunoD ay) Ul 8jel Xe) Sa|es [e10) 8y} JO aieys

$,BSN|j0D U0 paseq palewlnsa sl senuaAal Jo aieys AJUN0D BsSNj0) 'SenuaAal Xe) sa|es [eo0| Bunelsusb sejes |je ul Buinsal spoob Jo
Kiaaljap/Buljiq 1o} Ssaippe [e20] e ysijgelss 0} palinbal aq |im 198loid ayj 1ey) pajedionue si )| "SIS00 90IAISS puUB S|ella)ew o) Sexe)

sa|es ul uol|jiw Gz £$ oletausb 0] pajewi)ss sI uooNIsuod Josloid jueosrjdde j08(oid oy} Aq papirosd uonewlogul uo peseq [|]

"'SdJ ‘uoneziienb3 jo pieog 8je1g elulojiie) ‘Ajunod esnjo) :82In0g

0o0o‘osz‘e$
L15°G9¥°C$
€8Y'v8.$
8€L'vZes
690°CLLS
9/2'8¥¥$

0oo‘osz‘c$
000°0GZ°c$

%0082 L a=y SONUAA3Y Xe] Sa|eg |ejo]
%0005°S ¢/ 0" q ejuioie) jo ajers
%00S.°L 9+p+2=} fAuno) esnjo9 |ejol
%000S°0 /0049 ® anuanay xe| so|es A1ajes aliqnd g/ | doid
%00S¢°0 2/ 270 49 p anuaAay xe| sojeg uoneuodsuel] €207 Aluno)
%0000’ L ¢/ 00T g O anuanay xe| so|eg |eo07 sulng As|peig Ajuno)

aleys AQjunoj esnjoH
anuaAay xe| sajeg |enuuy
e=q juswdojoAa@ MaN WOl Xe] Sajes [enuuy

[1]uswdojana 108loid Agq pajesauss) soxe| Sajes pajewisy |elo]
Xe| s9|es pajewi}sy

@

anuaAay xe|
sojeg |enuuy

suondwnssy e|nwio4 way|
/@21n0g

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

($ZZ02) uononiysuo) j0afoid WoIy SNUBAIY Xe] IS PUE SI|BS 3|geXe] awi]-auQ pajewi}sy
sisAjeuy joedw] o1wouU09]

Ajjoe4 Jejog snuepr AJuno9 esnjon

v o|qel



111 "Bd 1@)oed

Z\[BPON\SISATeuy 10edw| 21wouod3 10801d 1ejos snuer Aunod esnjod ZyTZT2\0002T2\JVS\s1oeloid\pareys\:z e-v

€202/6/T Sd3 Aq pasedald

W 19bpng Aluno) BsSN|0D ZZ-120Z JB9 A [BOSIH [eul4 By} WOoIy PAALISP JUnowe 4TA 4o nall-ui xe} Auadold [/]
o 10}09]|00 Xxe] Jainseal] AlJuno) esnjo) ay} Aq papiroid uonewlojul uo paseq uoneoole xe} Auadold [9]
ﬁ ‘sjuswanoidwi Bupsixe 1o} pew S| UoioNpPal ou ‘sisumopue| Bunsixe ay) jo diysieumo ayy ul Aedoid
ﬁ 8y} uo urewsal 0} pajedionue ale sjuswanoldwi Bupnsixs sy 1o8foid ay) Buluiejuod sjeosed asiyy sy Joy anjea pue| Bupsixs sy} syos|yas anjea buisix3g [g]
"olIBUBDS 8sn |enp e Japun sanjeA Auedold [euositad jo uoneioaidap Buipnpoul ‘| Jea A ul 108loid 8y} Jo anjeA passesse a|gexey [ejo) 8y} sjuasaiday [y]
.W.m ‘uoljeloaidap pawnsse Aue o} Jold oleuads asn [enp 8y} Japun Joafold 8y} JO anjeA passasse a|gexe) [ejo} ay) syuasalday [g]
"a|qexe}
y aq pjnom waysAs abelo)s Aiajjeq ayj Joj anjeA passasse Jo juadlad Gz ‘oleuads sy} Japun “Ajjioe} Jejos ayy Aq pabieyo aq A[9|os jou pue ainjonliseljul
munm ABiaus Bunsixe ay) Aq pajeny Aem awos ul 8g pinom a)is uo sapjioe) abelo)s Aisjjeq ayl Yolym Ul OLIBUSDS B S}08|48l 0lIBUDS 8sn [enp v [g]
= ‘uoneroaidap pawnsse Aue o} Joud ajgexe)} aq o} aiam Apadoud [euosiad |je Buiwnsse ajgejieAe anuaaal xe) Aadosd wnwixew ayy syuasaiday [1]
3% 'SdT ‘MY H10309]j0D Xe] Jainseal] Ajuno) esnjo) Ajuno) esnjo) :82Inog
¥
o ¥95°L$ 0,£°2S$ 9/8'902$ §26'687'€$ « 0 = d G26'687'€$ [2] 471 30 narT-u| xey Ayadoud
Q
M %CZ0 %061 %€6°S ujw o AV ul 8buey) jusosed
()
M% €€6°€19'956'C  9¢€'L6V'V66'2  €L0'c0L'STL'ES wopu 8n|eA passassy |ejol
oy £98°¢6£'9% 192°112'vv$ G00°e88'vL1$ w 109f01d JO @nje pessassy [ejo |
= 0,0'022'0S6'2$  690°022'056'C$  890°02Z'056'C$ [ anjeA passassy ealy Auno) psjelodiodulun B0
-
% (471A) @nuanay aa4 nai-uj 9|21YaA J0J0| JO nalj-uj xe] Ajadoud
o
.W 88LV1L$ G6£20L$ 68Y'v0v$ 1= xe] Auadoud pung [essuss Ajuno) esnjo) |ejoL
Q . . o .
Q 0S1°6v$ L1€°0vES LYEYYE' LS u %6°9L dvy3/serusby 8yi0
17 88/'71$ G6£°20L$ 687 v0v$ €TET U | %L €T pun4 [essus9 Ajuno) esnjon
m. [9] uonesojy xe L Auadoid pajewns3
o
< 6£6°€9%$ €LLzrr$ 0€8'8v.L'1L$ 00T u %0000’ L (enjep passassy jo %) anuanay xe| Apadoid
-
w €98°€6£9$ 192°1L22'vv$ 500°€88'v.L$ ® dnjeA\ passassy d|qexe] 39N
- (z00*20€$) (z00*20€$) (z00*20€$) [s] anje/\ aseg Auadoid Bunsixg sso1
© S98°00.'9$ 69Z°8.5Vv$ L00°061°GL1$ pE anjeA passassy joafold a|qexe] |ejol
o (reof eet ‘o1 ¢
o 2¥8659'G$ vz LeS'EVS v86°8YLv.LLS °24qp anjep Ajadoud [euosiad ajgexe] |ejoL
7... %S %SC %001 2 a|qexe] abejusoled
89€°6£9°22$ 786°8YL'v.LL$ 786871 v.LL$ a an|eA [ejoL
(Anj1oe4 abeuioyg Aiapegq) Ajadoud jeuosiad
€20°Lv0°L$ €20°Lv0'L$ €20°Lv0'L$ e Ausdoid [eay
anje) passassy ajgexe]
[¥] [e] enjep [1] oueuasg e|nwio4 92inog woay
anjeA pajealdeq Jeniu| uoisn|ox3 oN Juondwnssy

10-0Z# Jlw.idd 9s Jejos snuer

oL'e

[z] oueuaag asn |eng

($2202) senuanay xe] Auadoid pajewnsgy

($Z202) senuanay xe) Auadoid [enuuy pajewis3
sisAjeuy joedw| sjwouos3

Ayj1oe4 Jejog snuep Ayuno) esnjo)

€V alqel



Attachment #10 [__31#

APPENDIX B:

Project Construction Employment Estimates

Table B-1 Estimated Project Construction
Employment Estimates........c.voviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaeenn B-1
Table B-2 Existing Project Parcel Values...........cccovviiiiiiiiinn... B-2

Attachment: Attachment #1 Janus Solar Fiscal Impact Study Final (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 178




6.1 "Bd 19)oed

2\BPoSIsAjeuy joedw] JIWOU0dT 103[01d JejoS Snuer AUNoD BSN0D ZKTZT2\0002T2\OVS\SIo8l0Id\PaIeyS\:Z -9

‘syjuow

|le Joj pawwns pue g| Aq papiAlp sem uswAholdwa uoonsisuod Ajyjuow

‘sqol uoioNJISUod [enuue ajewnsa 0] "sqol G0 Se JUNo0S PINOM SYyuoW g 1o}
Bunse| qol e Buiueaw ‘erewnss qol jenuue ue Buisn sqol se1ewnss Ny 1dl [1]

'Sd3 ‘077 uswdojera( JejoS JANY :924n0S

€8

€l
Gl
Gl
€l
Ll

9jew}s3 sqor |[enuuy [ejol

0z Jeaquiada(
(17 JaquianoN
GGl 18qo300
Gll Jaquwiaydeg
G/l 1snbny
G5l Ainp
Gel aunp
G6 Ken
GP [udy
Yjuo

jusawhojdwz uononisuon

[1] @1ewnsg juswAoidwg wiay|

qor [enuuy Ajupuo
SO UolIONISUOY pajewi}sy

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

sajews3 juawhojdwz uononisuo joafoid pajewinysy
sisAjeuy jJoedw| olwouoo]

Ajioed Jejog snuepr Ajuno) esnjon

1-g alqel

€202/6/T Sd3 Aq paredaid



081 "6d 1@oed

2\BPoSIsAjeuy joedw] JIWOU0dT 103[01d JejoS Snuer AUNoD BSN0D ZKTZT2\0002T2\OVS\SIo8l0Id\PaIeyS\:Z ¢-d

'Sd3 ‘ealO slossassy Aluno) esnjo) ‘senbjeaied (977 ‘wuswdojaasq JejoS JANY (92.n0S

zoo‘cez’L$ 0zZ.'819% 08Z°L0€$ 200°'20€$ ejol
L16'6L1L$ 0$ 2S9'v.L$ Gze'ars €10-090-810
1Z6'v.L$ 0$ 0$ 126'v.L$ 900-050-810
701'8€0°L$ 02.'819% 829°zeTs 9G.'981$ G00-050-810

Jaquinp [92Jed

|ejol |jeuosiad JuswaAoldw| pue |924ed
anjep passassy bBunsixgy

sanje/ [924ed }09loid Bunsixg
sisAjeuy joedw) olwouooy]

A)10e4 JejOog Snuep Ajuno) esnjo)
c-ddlqel

10-02# Juiidd SN Jejos snuer : Z006) [euld Apmig joedw eas14 Jej0g SNUET YISWINEIY JURIYUPENY

oL'e

€202/6/T Sd3 Aq paredaid



3.1.f

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 1L0-02# Nwiad asn Jejog snuer : Z006) 49137 sanss| [euonesadQ Ajioyiny aild sWel||IM - Z# Juswydeny Juaydeny

Packet Pg. 181




3.1.f

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 1L0-02# Nwiad asn Jejog snuer : Z006) 49137 sanss| [euonesadQ Ajioyiny aild sWel||IM - Z# Juswydeny Juaydeny

Packet Pg. 182




AHECHTEAf #I0 L 229

MARCH 20, 2023

VIA EMAIL: GPLUCKER@COUNTYOFCOLUSA.COM

Greg Plucker

County of Colusa, Secretary to the Planning Commission
1213 Market Street

Colusa, CA 95932

Dear Mr. Plucker:

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING: FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND USE PERMIT
FOR THE JANUS SOLAR PROJECT, SCH#2020070577

The Department of Conservation’s (Department) Division of Land Resource Protection
(Division) has reviewed the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar
Project (Project). The Division monitors farmland conversion on a statewide basis,
provides technical assistance regarding the Wiliamson Act, and administers various
agricultural land conservation programs. We offer the following comments with respect
to the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Janus Solar Project.

Project Description

The project would include: (1) approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple solar
arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system and ancillary infrastructure; (2) a
battery energy storage system (BESS) consisting of batteries, battery storage system
enclosures, ancillary infrastructure and fire protection systems; (3) and an on-site
substation that would connect to the existing Cortina Substation via an approximately
3-mile-long, 60 kV gen-tie line strung on new poles of up to 80 feet in height. The entirety
of the Project site is under a Wiliamson Act contract.

Department Comments

The Department notes that the lead agency adequately addressed the majority of its
comments in its letter written in response to the projects Draft Environmental Impact
Report. However, the lead agency did not address, nor comment on, the Department’s
recommendation for further discussion of the following issues:

Attachment: Attachment #3 - DOC Janus FEIR Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

= The Project’s compatibility with, and/or, potential contract resolutions for lands
within agricultural preserves and/or enrolled in a Wililamson Act contract.
= If applicable, notification of Willamson Act contract non-renewal and/or

cancellation.

State of California Natural Resources Agency | Department of Conservation
715 P Street, MS 1904, Sacramento, CA 95814

conservation.ca.gov | T: (916) 324-0850 | F: (916) 327-3430
govIT: (916) ©19 [ PacketPg. 183 | _




Attachment #10 319

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to comment on the Final Environmental Impact
Report for the Janus Solar Project. Please provide this Department with notices of any
future hearing dates as well as any staff reports pertaining to this project. If you have
any questions regarding our comments, please contact Farl Grundy, Associate
Environmental Planner via email at Farl. Grundy@conservation.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Monique Wilber

Conservation Program Support Supervisor

Attachment: Attachment #3 - DOC Janus FEIR Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Page 2 of 2
Packet Pg. 184




Attachment #10

RESOLUTION NO. 02- &2

A RESOLUTION OF THE COLUSA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
AMENDING EXHIBIT A TO RESOLUTION 82-67 RELATING TO THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE CALIFORNIA LAND CONSERVATION ACT
IN COLUSA COUNTY (WILLIAMSON ACT)

WHEREAS, the COUNTY OF COLUSA, as a condition of implementing the California Land
Conservation Act, is required to establish rules to govem the administration of agricultural preserves and
for initiating, filing and processing requests to establish agricultural preserves; and

WHEREAS, Resolution 82-67, adopted on October 12, 1982, set forth the guidelines for
establishment of agricultural preserves; and

WHEREAS, Exhibit “A"” to Resolution 82-67 enumerated the agricultural uses and compatible
uses pertaining to agricultural preserves; and

WHEREAS, the compatible uses enumerated in Exhibit “A” of Resolution 82-67 require further
clarification therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Exhibit “A” of Resolution 82-67 is hereby
amended as set forth in Exhibit “A" attached hereto, and substituted in its place and stead.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Colusa, State of

t
California, this [ dayof DECEMBER_ 2002 by the following vote:

AYES: Supervisors Womble, Scofield, Marshall, White and Waite

NOES: None.
ABSENT:  None.
DAY QoS
William R, Waite
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Kathleen Moran, Clerk/Recorder APPROVED. A,

and Ex-Officio Clerk to the Board of Supervisors - =~

By /&LL @f‘l AL — Deputy Dﬂnald F-Stanton ;
Colusa County Counsel

3.1.h

Attachment: Attachment #4 - Resolution 02-82 Williamson Act Permitted and Compatible Uses (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 185




3.1.h

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 10-0Z# Nwiad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) SasN 2|qiedwo) pue pajjiwiad JOY UOSWE||IM Z8-20 UON|OSAY - 1 JUSWYDERY Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 186




3.1.h

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 10-0Z# Nwiad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) SasN 2|qiedwo) pue pajjiwiad JOY UOSWE||IM Z8-20 UON|OSAY - 1 JUSWYDERY Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 187




3.1.h

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 10-0Z# Nwiad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) SasN 2|qiedwo) pue pajjiwiad JOY UOSWE||IM Z8-20 UON|OSAY - 1 JUSWYDERY Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 188




3.1.h

Attachment #10

((6z8€-ad) 10-0Z# Nwiad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) SasN 2|qiedwo) pue pajjiwiad JOY UOSWE||IM Z8-20 UON|OSAY - 1 JUSWYDERY Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 189




AlNbcbhmeahti#e [ 31

March 24, 2023
Sent Via Email

Colusa County Planning Commissioners
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95987

Re: Janus Solar Project Use Permit UP #20-01 (PD-3829)
Dear Commissioners,

| am writing this letter to express my opposition to the Janus Solar Project proposed along rural
Spring Valley Road in Williams.

Reasons for opposition are as follows:

The APPLICATION AND PROJECT QUESTIONNAIRE submitted by Janus Solar PV on May 6,
2020, contains egregious inaccuracies regarding PROJECT IMPACTS and CERTIFICATION of
“True and Correct information,” leading to doubts about the competency, integrity,
professionalism and honesty of the applicants and owners.

ie: Regarding YES / NO questions about the project or its effects:

“21.Change in scenic views or vistas from existing residential areas or public lands or roads -
NO"

The application also contains obviously incorrect NO answers to questions 22, 24, and 29.
See Attachments #1& #2.

The proposed Janus Project is located on ground currently under Williamson Act Contract.
Ground in the Williamson Act cannot be used for large-scale solar projects.

No notification of Cancellation has been received. On March 16, 2023, | virtually attended the
Department of Conservation Williamson Act Cancellation Open Office Hours Presentation by
staff member, Annie Giovacchini, who is in charge of Cancellations. The meeting included
discussion of Government Code Section 51284 which says no contract may be cancelled
without the extensive process of Public Hearings and Notifications.

Saying the Colusa County Board of Supervisors Williamson Act Ad-Hoc committee
recommended cancellation on the project site contract is misleading in that it infers support,
when in actuality, their recommendation confirms the incompatibility of a large-scale solar
project on contracted land.

The loss of 1000 acres of productive grazing land to encroaching incompatible land use is not
“insignificant”-it is substantial and the County currently holds a debatable position on that
issue.

In The Responses to Public Comments, the County “disagreed” with with the California
Department of Conservation’s letter saying “The conversion of agricultural land represents a
permanent reduction and significant impact to California’s agricultural resources.”

The threat to public health and safety due to fire has continued to be understated in the FEIR
which increased the unfounded “No Impact” finding in the DEIR to “Less than Significant.”
The proposed site is located in a designated HIGH Fire Hazard Safety Zone by the Cal Fire
Office of the State Fire Marshal. See Attachment #3

The Wildfire Protection Measure should be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority PRIOR to
granting of the Use Permit not afterward.

Attachment: Attachment #5 Beth Ferrini Katsaris Amended Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 190




ANticbhmeaht#6

The Battery Storage Fire Management Plan should be submitted to the Williams Fire Authority
PRIOR to the granting of the Use Permit not afterward.

Response to my Letter F contains the simplistic and seemingly unrealistic statement “The
proposed Project is not expected to expose people or structure, either directly or indirectly, to
a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving fires.”

My opinion was formulated after considerable research including the following newspaper
articles:

Ener Sora in osslandin -Asmo challen etoan wch ter

published June 12, 2022 in The Monterey Herald newspaper, and

Fire Crews Ten to massive smol e in batte in Chan ler facilt

published in the Arizona Republic newspaper on April 21, 2022.

The proposed project is incompatible with the existing rural character of Spring Valley Road.
See Attachment #4.

The Agriculture Element of the General Plan states “Farming and related agriculture industries
are not only the backbone of Colusa County’s economy, they also play a central role in the way
of life of County residents and help define the character of the County.

Policy AG-2 states its goal is to “ Maintain and enhance agriculture as the County’s most
critical land use, economic sector and resource. “

Omitted from the FEIR comments is AG 2 1. i . “The use will not be detrimental to the rural
character.” Was this intentionally left out because it is proof of incompatibility?

| urge you to protect the beautiful Spring Valley Road area, its historic land use of grazing land
for cattle and sheep and its future agricultural potential should the project site take advantage
of being within the Westside Water District Boundary Area and become annexed and receive
irrigation water for orchards and crops.

The proposed Janus Project will devalue the area both monetarily and aesthetically.

| urge you to deny the project developers request for Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829).
I support maintaining the agricultural integrity of Spring Valley Road now and for the future.

Thank you for your consideration of this letter.

Sincerely,

K et nFesborais (M

Beth Ferrini Katsaris

3.1.i

Attachment: Attachment #5 Beth Ferrini Katsaris Amended Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 191




16.
17.

18.

19.

3.1.i

ANticbhmeaht#6

If commercial, indicate the type, whether neighborhood, or regio
footage of sales area, and loading facilities. N/A
If industrial, indicate type, estimated employment per shift, and loading facilities. N/A

If institutional, indicate the major function, estimated employment per shift, estimated
occupancy, loading facilities, and community benefits to be derived from the project.
N/A

If the project involves a variance, conditional use permit or rezoning application, state

this and indicate clearly why the application is required. Ener ~ ene tion for off-site use is

ermitted within the Foothill A “culture Zone witha roval ofa se Permit Colusa Coun Zonin
Ordinance 44-2.20.30 .

Are the following items applicable to the project or its effects? Discuss below all items checked yes
(attach additional sheets as necessary).

YES NO
20.  Change in existing features of any bays, tidelands, beaches, or
hills, or substantial alteration of ground contours. X
21.  Change in scenic views or vistas from existing residential areas or
public lands or roads. X
22,  Change in pattern, scale or character of general area of project. X
23.  Significant amounts of solid waste or litter. X
24.  Change in dust, ash, smoke, fumes odors in vicinity. X
25.  Change in ocean, bay, lake, stream or ground water quality or
quantity, or alteration of existing drainage patterns. X
26.  Substantial change in existing noise or vibration levels in the vicinity. : X
27.  Site on filled land or on slope of 10 percent or more. X
28.  Use of disposal of potentially hazardous materials such as toxic
substances, flammables or explosives. X
29.  Substantial change in demand for municipal services (police,
water, sewage, etc.). X
30.  Substantially increase fossil fuel consumption (electricity, oil,
natural gas, etc.). X
31.  Relationship to a larger project or series of projects. X
ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING:
32.  Describe the project site as it exists before the project, including information on

topography, soil stability, plants and animals, and any cultural, historical or scenic aspects.
Describe any existing structures on the site and their use. Attach photographs of the site.
Snapshots or Polaroid photos will be accepted.

Attachment: Attachment #5 Beth Ferrini Katsaris Amended Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

. & . - -

Packet Pg. 192




Aﬁﬂcbm#ﬂ 3.1.i

Please see the attached Habitat Characterization Re 1t Attachment B and the Phase I Environmental
Site Assessment Attachment C .

33.  Describe the surrounding properties, including information on plants and animals and
any cultural, historical or scenic aspects. Indicate the type of land use (residential, commercial,
etc.), intensity or land use (one-family, apartment houses, shops, department stores, etc.).
Attach photographs of the vicinity. Snapshots or Polaroid photos will be accepted.

The surroundin land use is rural. Pro rties are currentl bein used for cattle azin “culture

and o en s ace. There is a residence to the south of the Pro’ect site and  “cultural buildin s to the

west. Photo hs of views of the surroundin  ro erties are included as Attachment D,

CERTIFICATION:

I hereby certify that the statements furnished above and in the attached exhibits present the data and
information required for this initial evaluation to the best of my ability, and that the facts, statements
and information presented are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

-~ P
&, L5 7

Signature

For: Janus Solar PV, LLC

Attachment: Attachment #5 Beth Ferrini Katsaris Amended Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 193




333} TOIOITENY | COCA 'Mwievs figa
:mumm-o& S-omu ﬁ_Esn_ as( Jejog snuef : Ncoe Japa Juawwon _8_2@&4. suesjey| _c_:m"_ ylag G# Jusawyoeny Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 194

A vsn
mmm_m& VO "swelljipg ‘py As]jep Buudg L1961

L e
A earRitA 9B N
LA o3tp e ddeS




((6z8€-ad) L0-02# Nwiad asn Jejos snuer : Z006) 193197 JUSWWOD PapUBWY SLESIRY IULLIS] UYlag G# JUSWYdenY Juswydeny

T
|

it

b A
el

J,‘ “A’A“ .uL:::A

3

3

T
3
B
&




3.1.]

ANticbhmeeht#6

((6z8€-ad) L0-02# NwIad asn Jejos snuer : Z00E) 491397 JUSWIWIOY JeJOS SNUEBL UOS|IN PUB }Je|D 9# JUsWydeny Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 196




CLARK & NELSON
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

that provide energy for gn-site uses (emphasis added). These uses
should be permitted on agricultural lands as principal permitted uses

subject to the standards of the zoning ordinance provided the

following findings are made:

Abticbhmeeh##e | 311

a. The use provides a needed service to the
surrounding agricultural area which cannot be
provided more efficiently within designated

industrial or commercial areas or which reguires

location in a non-urban area because of unusual
site reguirements, operational characteristics,

or proximity to agricultural goods and products.

b. The use avoids prime agricultural lands to
the greatest extent feasible.

¢. If the use is sited on productive

agricultural lands, less productive agricultural

lands are not available in the vicinity.

d. The operational or physical characteristics
of the use will not have a significant adverse
impact on water resources or the use or

management of surrounding agricultural properties

within at least a quarter mile (1/4) radius.

e. The use supports local agricultural

production.

f. The use is compatible with existing uses in

the area.

g. The use will not adversely affect
agricultural production in the area.

h. The use will not result in significant
adverse traffic or air quality impacts.

i. The use will not be detrimental to the rural

character of the area.”

California Land Use Planning Law is settled with regard to
the fact that county zoning ordinances must be consistent with the

General Plan. Government Code Section 65860 states:

“(a) County or city zoning ordinances shall be

consistent with the General Plan of the county or

city by January 1,

1974.

A zoning ordinance

Attachment: Attachment #6 Clark and Nelson Janus Solar Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 197




Abticbhmeeh##e | 311

CLARK & NELSON
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

shall be consistent with a city or county General
Plan only if both of the following conditions are

met:

(1) The city or county has officially adopted
such a plan.

(2) The various land uses authorized by the
ordinance are compatible with the objectives,
policies, general land uses, and programs
specified in the plan.”

In the pending application for a Major Use Permit, the lack
of consistency with the General Plan is uneguivecal, as the General
Plan restricts alternate energy systems for on-site uses only. This
project is for off-site use.

The project proponent asserts that the project meets the
consistency standard because Colusa County Zoning Ordinance, Article
44-2.20.30 allows energy generation for off-site use within the FA
sone. This assertion is contrary to California law. In Orange
citizens for Park and Recreation v. The Superior Court of Orandge
County (2016) 2 Cal.5th 141, the California Supreme Court held:

“The propriety of virtually any local decision
affecting land use and development depends upon
consistency with the applicable General Plan and

its elements.” At page 153.

The settled law of California is that the General Plan is at
the top of the hierarchy of local government law regulating land use.
Subordinate to the General Plan are zoning laws. Use Permits are a
part of the zoning ordinance process and thereby are subordinate to
General Plan provisions._ Neighborhood Action Group v. Calaveras
County (1984) 156 Cal.App.3d 1176. In light of the land use hierarchy
set forth above, provisions within Section 44-2.20.30 of the Colusa
County Zoning Ordinance cannot supercede the specific provisions of
General Plan Policy AG 2-1, which allows alternative energy systems
for only on-site uses. In further discussing consistency with the
General Plan, the courts have held a zoning ordinance that conflicts
with a General Plan is invalid. Lesher Communications v. Walnut Creek

(1990) 52 Cal.3d 535. In Lesher, the Supreme Court states:

“The Planning and Zoning Law does not contemplate
that general plans will be amended to conform to
zoning ordinances. The tail does not wag the
dog. The general plan is the charter to which
the ordinance must conform.” At page 541.

Attachment: Attachment #6 Clark and Nelson Janus Solar Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 198




Abticbhmeeh##e | 311

CLARK & NELSON
ATTORMEYS AT LAW

This project and its proposed off-site use of the generated
electricity lacks consistency with the Colusa County General Plan and
therefore this application is fundamentally flawed and must be denied.

2. The Subiect Propertv is Ineligible for Inclusion Within
the Energyv Production Overlay Zone:

The project proponent further asserts that the proposed
project is permissible due to the provisions of Colusa County Zoning
Ordinance Article 44-2.80.020, Energy Production (EP) Qverlay Zone.
The purpose of the Energy Production Overlay Zone is intended to
identify and designate areas suitable fcr the development of large
scale commercial energy facilities and to streamline the approval of
such facilities. The application of the EP Overlay Zone should be
based on the availability of resources, the location of existing or
proposed infrastructure and the potential for commercial energy
facilities to be appropriately cited to effectively mitigate potential

significant impacts.

However, specific criteria is set forth within the section
with regard to designating and applying the EP Overlay Zone to
specific properties. Section 44-2.80.020 (C) states in part the
following:

“Criteria for Designation. The EP Overlay Zone
may be applied only to property meeting all of
the following designation criteria:

a...
b. The EP Overlay Zone shall not be placed on any property

under Williamson Act Contract unless power energeration facilities are
specifically allowed under the contract.

Sk

o PR

As clearly indicated in the Application and Project
Questionnaire completed by the project proponent, the subject property
was, at the time of application, and remains, as confirmed by the
Colusa County Assessor’s Office, under a Williamson Act Contract.

As such, the provisions of the EP Overlay Zone are not
applicable to the subject property.

The proponent and apparently County staff believe that they
can avoid the exclusion of Williamson Act property from the EP Overlay
Zone by an after the fact removal of the subject property from their
Williamson Act Contract. In addressing this issue, our California

Attachment: Attachment #6 Clark and Nelson Janus Solar Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 199




3.1.]

ANticbhmeeht#6

((6z8€-ad) L0-02# NwIad asn Jejos snuer : Z00E) 491397 JUSWIWIOY JeJOS SNUEBL UOS|IN PUB }Je|D 9# JUsWydeny Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 200




AfNbabhmeah#i#0 [ 31K

Matthew Ferrini
PO Box 415
Williams, CA 95987

March 27, 2023

Colusa County Planning Commission
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95932

Dear Colusa County Planning Commissioners:

As an active farmer of land located adjacent to the proposed Janus Solar Project, | am writing to urge
you to deny Use Permit #20-01 (PD) 3829. My comments today are to express my opposition to this

project.

First, | would like to invite all of you to take a ride out to Spring Valley and visit the proposed site (if
you haven't already). Along your travels pay close attention beginning with the intersection of East
Camp Road and Walnut Drive where the PG&E substation is located and where this project will tie
into from 4 % miles down Spring Valley Road. As you are heading west along the 4 2 mile drive to
the proposed solar site, pay close attention to both sides of Spring Valley Road and you will notice
the prime agricultural ground. Once you reach the site | ask you to visualize what 196,000 solar
panels, a 5-acre battery storage facility and a substation will look like where livestock have grazed
and wheat, barley and hay crops have grown for over 150 years and still do so today. Please see the
five photos | have enclosed. Photo 1 is a photo of the proposed site displaying the solar panels, the
battery storage and the substation. Photos 2 and 3 show the hay crop growing today on the west side
of Spring Valley Road where there are proposed solar panels. Photo 4 shows cattle grazing today on
the east side of Spring Valley Road near the proposed 5-acre battery storage, substation and more
solar panels. Photo 5 shows the current hay crop on the south east side where there are proposed
solar panels. With regard to Photo 1, | have circled multiple residential homes located on or right next

to the proposed project.

In the 1850's a man named William H. Williams, the founder of the town of Williams, was one of the
first to settle in Spring Valley because of its virgin soils and its ability to run livestock and farm his
wheat and barley. He recognized the land in Spring Valley was prime agricultural ground and had
many successes in Spring Valley. With this being said my point is contrary to what Janus Solar would
lead you to believe. Spring Valley is NOT like the Central California Valley desert. It continues to be
prime agricultural ground. With today's new technologies and farming methods, and because the
proposed project site is located in the West Side Water District and is able to be annexed into the
District, the farming possibilities are unlimited to what can be done in this area. Adjacent land owners
who have chosen to join the District have proven this land is full of farming opportunity for those
willing to work and to engage in the work of farming.

Attachment: Attachment #7 Matt Ferrini Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 201




3.1.k

ANticbhmeeht#0

((6Z8¢-ad) 10-02# Nwiad asn JejoS snuer : Z006) 191397 JUBWWOD IULLIB] HE L# JUSWYIeRy Juswydeny

Packet Pg. 202




3.1.k

Attachmeniil

((6z8€-ad) 1L0-0Z# Jwiad asn Jejog snuer : Z00E) 193197 JUSWIWIOD IULLIS] PN L# JUSWYIe)Y Jusydeny

| Packet Pg. 203 |




((6Z8€-ad) 10-0Z# Nwiad s Jejog Snuep : Z006E) 193397 JUBWIWOY 1ULLID4 P L# Judswydepy Juswyseny

—

<
(=]
N
)
o
et
(]
4
o
©
o

' i : . * { R - L= ol e S L . | . ..‘ ..,.HINL...H.FI.., 5
i -~ - - - . B a -




3.1.k

Attachmeniil

((6z8€-ad) 1L0-0Z# Jwiad asn Jejog snuer : Z00E) 193197 JUSWIWIOD IULLIS] PN L# JUSWYIe)Y Jusydeny

| Packet Pg. 205 |




3.1.k

Attachmeniil

((6z8€-ad) 1L0-0Z# Jwiad asn Jejog snuer : Z00E) 193197 JUSWIWIOD IULLIS] PN L# JUSWYIe)Y Jusydeny

| Packet Pg. 206 |




3.1.k

Attachmeniil

((6z8¢-ad) 10-0zZ# Hwiad @SN Je|Og SNUEr : Z006) 121397 JUBWIWOD IULLIBS HEN L# JUSWYDIBNY JUdWYdeRy

| Packet Pg. 207 |




Aditeoimneah 118

Jean Terkildsen
P.O. Box 562
Williams, CA 95987

March 27, 2023

Colusa County Planning Commission
1213 Market Street
Colusa, CA 95987

Re: Janus Solar Project/ Use Permit

Commissioners:
After reviewing the DEIR and Comments | am requesting the denial of a Use
Permit for the Janus Solar-Battery Storage Project for the following reasons:

1. The Williamson Act:

The purpose of this Act is to protect agriculture land from commercial and
industrial use. The Janus Solar and Battery Storage Project is proposing the
removal of 1,000 + acres from the Williamson Act. As a neighboring landowner,
with land in the Williamson Act, | am concerned with future commercial and
industrial encroachment along Spring Valley Road.

2. Property Values:

The devaluation of adjacent property, due to the Janus Solar Project,
should be considered before the project is allowed to continue. The negative
impact on present and future agriculture development could be felt for years. As
a fourth-generation family farm operation | strongly object to the approval of a
Use Permit for this project.

3. Fire Protection:

Fire protection is always a concern in rural areas. This project includes
196,000 solar panels and 5 acres for battery storage. A 50,000 gallon water tank
is to be located on site, however, the source and supply of water has not been
identified.

A plan for fire protection and training of primarily a volunteer fire
department has not been required before issuance of a Use Permit. These
issues should be addressed before this project is allowed to proceed.

Please consider these concerns in denying the proposed Use Permit for the
Janus Solar Project.

Very truly yours,

Jean Terkildsen

Ve rv Tt dion

Attachment: Attachment #8 Jean Terkildsen Janus Solar Comment Letter (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

Packet Pg. 208




Pi¢

430 Market Street, Suite G, Colusa, CA 95932
(530) 458-4141

Draft Proof

COUNTY OF COLUSA
547 MARKET ST, STE 102
COLUSA, CA 95932

NOTICE DESCRIPTION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
AND USE PERMIT FOR THE
JANUS SOLAR PROJECT

RUN DATES

03/16/2023

This is not an affidavit of publication.
You will receive the signed
affidavit of publication
within 5-days of publication date.

Attachment #10

3.1.m

LEGAL NOTICE

COUNTY OF COLUSA

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT]
AND USE PERMIT FOR THE
JANUS SOLAR PROJECT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT that the Colusa County
Planning Commission will conduct a Public Hearing on
Wednesday, April 5, 2023 at 9:00 a.m., or as soon thereafter as
the matter can be heard, in the Board of Supervisors Chambers
located at 546 Jay Street, Suite 108, Colusa, CA, to consider the
following:

PUBLIC HEARING: The Planning Commission will hold a
public hearing to consider all public testimony on the adequacy
of the response to comments to the Draft EIR previously
prepared and circulated and whether to adopt a resolution which
would: (1) certify the Final Environmental Impact Report (SCH
Number 2020070577); adopt the Mitigation and Monitoring
Reporting Program; and approve the Use Permit for the Janus
Solar project (PD-3829/UP 20-01). All persons are invited to
attend and be heard.

Project Location: The Project is approximately 6.5 miles
southwest of the City of Williams. Access to the site is provided
by Spring Valley Road and is approximately 1.64: miles to the
south of the Spring Valley Road/Walnut Drive street intersection.
The proposed Project would be located on three parcels (APN’s
018-050-005, -006, and -013) totaling 1,023.9 acres currently
used for cattle grazing in Colusa County, California. The Project
would connect to the Cortina Substation, located on Walnut
Drive, approximately 3 miles northeast of the Project site.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project would include: (1)
approximately 196,000 solar PV modules in multiple solar
arrays interconnected to form a utility-scale PV system and
ancillary infrastructure; (2) a battery energy storage system
(BESS) consisting of batteries, battery storage system enclosures,
ancillary infrastructure and fire protection systems; (3) and an
on-site substation that would connect to the existing Cortina
Substation via an approximately 3-mile-long, 60 kV gen-tie line
strung on new poles of up to 80 feet in height.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: The 45 day public comment
period for the Draft EIR began on October 14, 2021 and ended
on November 29, 2021. Comments received during the comment
period were responded to and those comments and responses
are included in the Final EIR.

DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY: The Final EIR, Draft EIR, Staff
Report and other project documentation is available for review
online at: https://www.countyofcolusa.org/996/Janus-Solar-
Project. Hard copies are available for review at the Colusa Main
Library at 738 Market St. in Colusa, CA 95932, the Williams
Branch Library at 901 E Street in Williams, CA 95987, and the
Community Development Department at 1213 Market Street,
Colusa, CA. 95932, (530) 458-0480. Additional documentation
is available for review in accordance with Agenda Scheduling
Deadlines at the Office of the Clerk of the Board, 547 Market
Street, Ste. 102, Colusa, CA (530)4.58-0508.

If you have questions or concerns regarding this matter, or
would like to submit comments you may do so to the following:
Secretary to the Planning Commission, 1213 Market Street,
Colusa, CA (530)458-0483, or by e-mail at gplucker@
countyofcolusa.com.

If you challenge the proposed project or environmental
determination in court, you may be limited to raising only those
issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described
in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered at, or prior
to, the public hearing.

Dated: March 8,2023

Attachment: 04-05-23 Janus Solar Public Hearing Notice (9002 : Janus Solar Use Permit #20-01 (PD-3829))

/s/ Melissa Kitts, Deputy Clerk
03/16/2023 - CCP

Packet Pg. 209






